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Dah Sing Bank commemorated its 75th anniversary in 2022. To celebrate this BES TEHEEEERFEE

important milestone, the Bank launched a series of activities designed to BIXAME B EFIERBEFIERE

show its gratitude towards its customers, and to reflect its commitment to FTHIFE 5 °

build a better and more sustainable future for Hong Kong, in line with its

brand tagline Together We Prosper and Progress. “Since our bank was established in

1947, we have been growing together
with Hong Kong. Looking ahead,
we will continue to strive to deliver
on our brand tagline of ‘Together
We Progress and Prosper. We will
also continue to run our business
operations prudently and instill
a culture of service quality in our
people, as part of our efforts to build
a customer-centric organisation that
enables our clients to meet their
changing needs. »

F4E52 Harold Wong

RHIR T R AR IRRITEURE
Managing Director & Chief Executive
Dah Sing Bank
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Community Joy and Values
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On 24 July 2022, the Bank sponsored
free ferry rides across the iconic
Victoria Harbour, where over 30,000
people travelled by Star Ferry
between Central and Tsimshatsui on
that day, symbolising Hong Kong’s

vitality and resilience asthe economy
slowly emerged from the fifth wave of
COVID.

The Bank-commissioned creative
yarnbombing public art displays
could be seen at Star Ferry in mid-
July and subsequently in a number
of the Bank’s branches. The displays
were created by local artists on the
theme of “Gift of Heritage for a Better
Tomorrow”, inspiring the vision of
a sustainable future that upholds
the values and traditions cherished
in our local communities and
neighbourhoods.
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Support for SME
Sustainability
Journey
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Walk for a Low Carbon Future
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To support SMEs in their transition to sustainable business practices, the Bank
collaborated with Friends of the Earth (HK) to jointly present the “SME ESG Best
Practices Recognition Programme”. The programme included two industry-
specific educational forums to help SMEs understand how evolving ESG trends are
impacting and shaping sustainable downstream and supply chain opportunities
relevant to the property and construction as well as the retail and e-commerce
sectors respectively.

emissions for Hong Kong through
the “Green WALK Carbon Emissions
Reduction Online Challenge” in which
over 364 million steps were recorded
in aggregate by public participants
between August and December 2022.

Additionally, the Bank invited Green
WALK’s campaign ambassador Mr.
Alex Fong and four elite Hong Kong
athletes - fencing champion Ms.
Vivian Kong, trail runner Mr. Wong
Ho-chung, badminton player Ms. Yip
Pui-yin and Olympic swimmer Ms.
Yvette Kong - as carbon reduction
team captains in the “Dah Sing Bank
75th Anniversary Charity Challenge”,
rallying members of the public to join
their team efforts. Each team quickly

FLARNRMARZK A -ZXATEEE reached their respective goal of
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In line with its ESG commitment,
the Bank demonstrated its advocacy
for green and low carbon lifestyles
through its title sponsorship of
the Green WALK Hong Kong 2022.
In addition to the campaign’s
City Orienteering Competition cum
Carnival held in January 2023 as its
finale, the campaign contributed to a
reduction of over 60 tonnes in carbon

750,000 accumulated steps within the
first week of the campaign, and the
Bank presented HKD150,000 to each
team’s designated charity, for a total
donation of HKD750,000.

NEENR BEER
Joyful Thanksgiving
for Customers
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Last but not least, the Bank launched
a 75th Anniversary Grand Lucky Draw
in joyful thanksgiving to its customers.
Held over a 75-day period, the lucky
draw featured 750 prizes including
15 grand prizes at HKD7,500 credit
card spending credits and 75 second
prizes at HKD1,000 credit card spending
credits each.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Deputy Chief Executive
Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive
Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Deputy Chief Executive
Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Alternate Chief Executive
Cliff Wai-Kin Chan
Alternate Chief Executive

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Seng-Lee Chan

Blair Chilton Pickerell
Paul Michael Kennedy
David Wai-Hung Tam
Paul Franz Winkelmann

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Chairman

Seng-Lee Chan

Paul Franz Winkelmann

Blair Chilton Pickerell

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Seng-Lee Chan
Chairman

Robert Tsai-To Sze

David Shou-Yeh Wong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

RISK MANAGEMENT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Blair Chilton Pickerell
Chairman

David Wai-Hung Tam

Paul Franz Winkelmann

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

COMPANY SECRETARY

Richard Tsung-Yung Li

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Cristo Chi-Leung Chow

Group Chief Financial Officer
Betty Wai-Yee Chung

Group Chief Operating Officer and

Group Head of Information Technology
Sze-Ching Chan (Amy Chan)

General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources
Ka-Wai Wong (Kevin Wong)

General Manager and Group Head of Compliance
Frederick Ka-Wai Lau

Group Chief Risk Officer and Group Head of Risk Management
Eric Ka-Yeung Ho

Chief Executive Officer and Director of

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
Pak-Hung Lau

Chief Executive Officer and Director of

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

REGISTERED OFFICE

26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre

248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
Tel: 2507 8866

Fax: 2598 5052

S.W.L.LF.T.: DSBAHKHH

Website: http://www.dahsing.com
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 82, was appointed as the Chairman of the Bank in
1983. He is also the Chairman of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”), Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Banco Comercial
de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited and
Macau Insurance Company Limited. He serves as a member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Bank, DSFH and
DSBG. Mr. Wong is the Honorary President of Guangdong Chamber
of Foreign Investors. He was the Vice President of The Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical
Engineering from Massachusetts Institute of Technology and has over
55 years of experience in banking and finance. He is the father of Mr.
Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, the Vice Chairman, Managing Director and
Chief Executive of the Bank.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 70, joined the Bank in 1977 and has served and
managed various departments before appointed as a Director in 1989,
promoted to a Managing Director in 2000 and then appointed as Vice
Chairman in April 2011. He is the Vice Chairman, Managing Director
and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited, the Managing
Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited,
Chairman of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and a director of various
major subsidiaries of the Group. He is also a Non-Executive Director
and Vice Chairman of Bank of Chongging Co., Ltd. (listed in Hong Kong
and Shanghai) in which the Group has a 13.2% equity interest. Mr.
Wong is an Associate of The Institute of Bankers (U.K.) and a Founder
Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and The International
Retail Banking Council of the U.K. He holds a Higher Diploma in
Business Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic College (now
known as Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and has over 45 years of
experience in banking.



EENEEBEEABBN

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

HITEZ @)

THESE
BT - EFAREIERTTHARE,

F5E B35 ARRITRIERERESRBKIER
THEHEERFeREEERQA([KHER] -
RIRITZ BB AR 2 EERBEE - HFR
2000F JIAAERST + RFR2005F ERFRNITE
EWHR2010F3ABEZFRESSEER - Tt
ER2017F8 ABEERARRIT L ERBICIRFR
THEE - BRI FA4REZTAAT SR
FEEBCIE - [HINARFET(FE)BRAR
SRPIRERITROBIRAR - RIRER(1976)8
RARRFIRBERNBRARIZES - T4
RAERBEEERK INRAEBERENAEE
GZRE  RIXZEZFBE THNIEBSEAE
BErEE ITAERBEXBRBAZINER
BB RBHETEREEEFELEN - &
ABEEERERIUAREE 2 S ERERM - £t
ERAIRIT - RSB RAHMRITEEFR QA
PEESERTTELEZRT -

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Mr. Wong, aged 53, is currently a Vice Chairman and the Managing
Director and Chief Executive of the Bank and the Group General
Manager of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”, the ultimate
holding company of the Bank). He joined the Bank in 2000, and was
appointed as an Executive Director in 2005 and a Vice Chairman
in March 2010. Mr. Wong was appointed as the Managing Director
and Chief Executive of the Bank in August 2017. He was appointed
as the Group General Manager of DSFH in April 2011. He is also
a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited, Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited and Macau
Insurance Company Limited. Mr. Wong is currently a member of the
Industry Advisory Committee on Long Term Business established by
the Insurance Authority, and a Non-official Member of the Trade and
Industry Advisory Board of the Trade and Industry Department. Mr.
Wong holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Harvard
University, U.S.A. and a Bachelor of Laws (Honours) degree from
King’s College, London, and is a qualified solicitor in England and
Wales and in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a son of Mr. David Shou-Yeh
Wong, the Chairman of the Boards of the Bank, DSFH and Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Wang, aged 62, joined the Bank as the Group Financial Controller
in 1995 and was promoted as a Director in 1997, responsible for
the overall financial management and control, operations and IT
functions of the Group for a number of years. He was promoted as
the Managing Director and Chief Executive of the Bank in May 2011
and was re-designated as the Deputy Chief Executive and Alternate
Chief Executive of the Bank in August 2017. He is also an Executive
Director and Deputy Chief Executive of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”), an Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (“DSBG”), as well as a Director of Banco Comercial de Macau,
S.A. and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited. Mr. Wang was the Group
Chief Financial and Operating Officer of the Bank, DSFH and DSBG
until June 2021. Mr. Wang is a qualified accountant, a Fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
holds a Bachelor of Social Science degree from The University of Hong
Kong and has over 35 years of experience in financial management
and banking.

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Mayhew, aged 55, joined the Bank in 1998, and was appointed
as an Executive Director in 2007 and as the Deputy Chief Executive
in August 2011. He was appointed as an Executive Director and the
Deputy Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited in June
2017. Mr. Mayhew is currently a Director of Dah Sing Insurance
Company (1976) Limited and Macau Insurance Company Limited.
He also serves as the Group Head of Treasury, Global Markets
& Corporate Finance of the Bank, responsible for its treasury and
corporate finance activities. He was an Executive Director of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (the ultimate holding company of the Bank)
during the period from August 2004 to May 2017. Mr. Mayhew holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree (Hons) (in Chinese and Economics) from the
University of London. He has over 30 years of experience in financial
services both in the U.K. and Hong Kong.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Deputy Chief Executive

Ms. Wong, aged 56, joined the Bank as the Group Head of Personal
Banking in February 2012, responsible for the development and
management of overall retail banking, bancassurance, retail brokerage,
wealth management businesses, private banking and vehicle financing.
She was appointed as an Executive Director in May 2012 and an
Alternate Chief Executive in May 2014. She was further appointed as
a Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank in April 2022. Ms. Wong holds a
Master of Business Administration degree from Brunel University (UK)
via Henley Management College and a Bachelor of Arts degree from
the University of Hong Kong. She has over 30 years of experience
in retail and personal banking business with other banks operating
in Hong Kong, including Standard Chartered Bank and CITIC Bank
International.

Ms. Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Alternate Chief Executive

Ms. Ma, aged 56, joined the Bank as Group Head of Corporate Banking
in February 2020, responsible for overseeing and supervising corporate
banking business. She was appointed as an Executive Director and
an Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank in February 2021. She has
nearly 30 years of solid banking experience in Hong Kong, the United
Kingdom and the United States, mainly in commercial and corporate
banking with a full spectrum of clients in various sectors. Ms. Ma
attained a Bachelor of Science degree in Economics from The London
School of Economics and Political Science.

Mr. Cliff Wai-Kin Chan
Alternate Chief Executive

Mr. Chan, aged 51, joined the Bank as General Manager and Head
of Wealth Management in 2009, and was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Bank in March 2019. He was further appointed as an
Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank in June 2022. Mr. Chan is Group
Head of Wealth Management and is responsible for the formulation
and execution of overall business strategies of the Bank’s wealth
management business, including securities brokerage, retail wealth
management, and private banking. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from the University of Cambridge and a Master degree in Business
Administration from the Harvard Business School. He is a Chartered
Financial Analyst of the CFA Institute and a Certified Private Wealth
Professional of the Private Wealth Management Association. Mr. Chan
has over 20 years of extensive experience in various areas including
financial services, manufacturing and public administration.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sze, aged 82, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Bank in 1996. He is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”), Dah Sing
Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) and Dah Sing Insurance Company
(1976) Limited. He serves as the Chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Bank, DSFH and DSBG, a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) of the Bank and DSBG and the
Chairman of the NRC of DSFH. He was the Chairman of the NRC of
DSBG from August 2005 to August 2017. Mr. Sze is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Nanyang Holdings Limited and Sunwah
Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited. He was an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited which was
delisted in January 2022 and Mr. Sze resigned in February 2022. Mr.
Sze is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He was a former partner of an international firm of accountants with
which he practised for over 20 years.

Mr. Seng-Lee Chan
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chan, aged 76, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Bank in May 2012 and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(“DSBG”), the immediate holding company of the Bank, in August 2008
after his retirement in June 2008 as the Chief Executive Officer of
Heidelberg China Limited. He was appointed as a member of the Audit
Committee and the Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Bank in December 2017. He has served as a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of DSBG since May 2011 and was further appointed as the
Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of DSBG in
August 2017. Mr. Chan has over 40 years of experience primarily in the
print media industry and has a sound knowledge of the Asian markets,
particularly in China.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Pickerell, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director (“INED”) of the Bank in December 2017, a member
of the Risk Management and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) of the
Bank in August 2018, the Chairman of the RMCC of the Bank in June
2020 and a member of the Audit Committee of the Bank in June 2021.
He was also appointed as an INED of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(“DSBG”), the immediate holding company of the Bank, in December
2017 and a member of the Audit Committee of DSBG in June 2021.

Mr. Pickerell is an Independent Director and a member of the Finance
Committee and Nominating and Governance Committee of the Principal
Financial Group, Inc. (which is listed on NASDAQ in the U.S.). He is an
INED and a member of the Nomination Committee and the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee of Link Real Estate Investment Trust
(which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”)). He is an INED and a member of the Finance Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee of First Pacific Company
Limited (which is listed on the Stock Exchange). He is also a member of
the Supervisory Committee of The Tracker Fund of Hong Kong (a Hong
Kong unit trust whose units are listed on the Stock Exchange) and a
Senior Advisor of McKinsey & Company. Mr. Pickerell is the Chairman
of Harvard Business School Association of Hong Kong Limited and a
member of the International Advisory Council of the Faculty of Business
and Economics of The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Pickerell was a court member of The University of Hong Kong from
December 2008 to November 2014 and a member of the Main Board
and GEM Listing Committees of the Stock Exchange from July 2015 to
July 2016. He was an INED and a member of the Audit Committee of
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the ultimate holding company of
the Bank) from June 2013 to December 2017.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Director (Continued)

Mr. Pickerell joined Nikko Asset Management Group as the Head of
Asia and Global Chief Marketing Officer in 2010 and served as the
Chairman, Asia of Nikko Asset Management Company until July 2015.
He joined Jardine Matheson Holdings Group in 1984 and held various
positions in Jardine Matheson Holdings Group. In 2003, he joined
HSBC Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (now known as HSBC Gilobal
Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited) as Chief Executive, Asia
Pacific. From 2007 to 2010, he served as Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer, Asia of Morgan Stanley Investment Management.

Mr. Pickerell holds an MBA degree from Harvard Business School,
U.S.A. and an MA degree (in East Asian Studies) and a BA degree (in
Political Science) from Stanford University, U.S.A.

Mr. Paul Michael Kennedy
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Kennedy, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Bank in December 2018. He is also an
Independent Non-Executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited, an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Octopus Holdings Limited and Octopus
Cards Limited and an Independent Non-Executive Director of Vistra
Group Holdings (BVI) Il Limited. He was a financial services partner
of KPMG Hong Kong from 1991 to 2006 and Managing Partner of
KPMG’s Shanghai office from 2000 to 2005. Mr. Kennedy was chief
operating officer and executive director of the Securities and Futures
Commission during the period from 2006 to 2010 and he subsequently
took up a role as a Managing Director of HSBC Hong Kong’s Global
Banking Division from 2010 to 2012. Mr. Kennedy was appointed as
Special Advisor to the Chief Executive of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (“HKEX”) in January 2013 and subsequently served as
the Group Chief Financial Officer of HKEX from May 2013 to December
2017. He continued to serve as Senior Advisor of HKEX until July 2018.
Mr. Kennedy is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Accounting
and Financial Administration from the University of Bangor in the
United Kingdom and has over 35 years of experience in the financial
services industry encompassing auditing and professional advisory
services, regulation, risk management, banking and listed company
management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. David Wai-Hung Tam
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Tam, aged 73, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director (INED”) and a member of the Risk Management and
Compliance Committee of the Bank in March 2019. He was appointed
as an INED of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the immediate holding
company of the Bank) in June 2021. Mr. Tam was an INED of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (the ultimate holding company of the Bank)
during the period from December 2018 to June 2021. Mr. Tam started
his career with The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited in 1968 and held various senior positions until February 1999. In
March 1999, Mr. Tam joined Hang Seng Bank Limited and was Deputy
General Manager and the Head of Commercial Banking during 2003 to
2008 and the Chief Risk Officer from 2008 until his retirement in 2012.
He was a director of Yantai Bank, a city commercial bank in Yantai,
from December 2012 to June 2017. He resigned as a Non-Executive
Director of Nameson Holdings Limited in April 2022 and retired as an
INED of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited in June 2022. Mr. Tam is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and the Chartered
Institute of Bankers in the U.K. and an associate of the Institute of
Bankers. He holds a master's degree in Business Administration from
the University of Toronto, Canada. Mr. Tam has more than 45 years of
experience in commercial banking industry in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Paul Franz Winkelmann
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Winkelmann, aged 67, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee and a member
of Risk Management and Compliance Committee of the Bank in May
2020. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director and a member
of the Audit Committee of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited. Mr.
Winkelmann joined PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) in 1984 and was
admitted to partnership in 1990 to become a member of the first group
of partners to set up PwC’s financial services practice in Hong Kong.
He specialized in the audits of financial institutions, both local and
international. He was partner-in-charge of PwC’s risk and compliance
matters for Greater China for 14 years up to June 2014. He was also
the leader of PwC’s Greater China Risk and Quality function overseeing
auditing and ethical standards within PwC. In 2001, he joined the
governance Board of Partners of PwC in Hong Kong and subsequently
was appointed to the Management Board of PwC China and Hong
Kong. Following his retirement from PwC Hong Kong in June 2014, Mr.
Winkelmann was engaged as a senior advisor of PwC in Hong Kong on
risk and quality matters during the period from July 2014 to December
2015. Mr. Winkelmann is currently an Independent Non-Executive
Director and a Non-Industry Member of the General Committee of
the Insurance Complaints Bureau. He is also the Non-lA Eligible DP
Member of Disciplinary Panel Pool of the Insurance Authority. He was
the Chairman of the Financial Reporting Standards Committee of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) from
2004 to 2009 and the President of HKICPA in 2009. In 2005, he was
appointed to the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform and
served for a period of 6 years. Mr. Winkelmann was the Chief Executive
Officer of Financial Reporting Council of Hong Kong from April 2016
to March 2019. He is a fellow member of the HKICPA. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts (Business) Degree from Trinity College, Dublin.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cristo Chi-Leung Chow
Group Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Chow, aged 55, was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the
Bank in June 2021 and was re-designated as the Group Chief Financial
Officer in April 2022, responsible for the financial management and
control functions of the Group. Mr. Chow has over 25 years of solid
accounting and finance experience in the banking industry and had
held various senior positions in financial institutions. He has extensive
experience in financial and regulatory reporting and tax, financial
control, capital management, budgeting, financial and business
analysis. Mr. Chow holds a Master of Science in Finance degree from
University of Michigan, U.S.A. and a Bachelor of Business degree from
Monash University, Australia. He is a Certified Public Accountant and a
Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Ms. Betty Wai-Yee Chung
Group Chief Operating Officer and Group Head of Information Technology

Ms. Chung, aged 57, joined the Bank in January 2019 as the Deputy
Chief Operating Officer and Group Head of Information Technology,
and was appointed as the Chief Operating Officer of the Bank in April
2020. She was re-designated as the Group Chief Operating Officer and
Group Head of Information Technology in April 2022. Ms. Chung has
over 30 years of solid banking and IT experience. Prior to joining the
Bank, she held various senior IT management positions in multinational
and regional financial institutions. Ms. Chung holds an Executive
Master of Business Administration degree from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Science
from Purdue University, U.S.A.

Ms. Sze-Ching Chan (Amy Chan)
General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources

Ms. Chan, aged 51, joined the Bank in January 2018 as General
Manager and Group Head of Human Resources Division. Ms. Chan has
over 29 years of experience in the human resources field, of which 26
years are in the banking and financial industry. She graduated from the
University of Strathclyde, U.K., with a Bachelor of Arts degree followed
by a Postgraduate Diploma in Human Resources Management.
Ms. Chan is a Fellow of The Chartered Institute of Personnel and
Development of the U.K.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Ka-Wai Wong (Kevin Wong)
General Manager and Group Head of Compliance

Mr. Wong, aged 57, joined the Bank in 2014 as General Manager
and Group Head of Compliance. Mr. Wong has solid experience in
managing regulatory compliance and providing compliance service, with
many years of experience in the financial services sector and regulatory
supervision. Mr. Wong attained a Bachelor Degree of Commerce
(Accounting) from The University of Birmingham, UK, a Master Degree
of Finance from Curtin University of Technology, Australia and a Master
of Laws Degree in International Corporate and Financial Law from
University of Wolverhampton, UK.

Mr. Frederick Ka-Wai Lau
Group Chief Risk Officer and Group Head of Risk Management

Mr. Lau, aged 52, joined the Bank in 2010 as the General Manager
and Head of Market Risk, and progressed to become the Head of Risk
Management and Control Department within the Group Risk Division
of the Bank in 2012. Mr. Lau was appointed as the Head of Group Risk
in April 2018 and was re-designated as Chief Risk Officer and Group
Head of Risk Management in April 2021. He was further re-designated
as the Group Chief Risk Officer and Group Head of Risk Management
in April 2022. He has over 25 years of working experience covering
mainly risk management and other roles in the banking sector, and
also in regulatory supervision capacity. Mr. Lau attained a degree in
business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
and a master degree in business administration from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Eric Ka-Yeung Ho
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Mr. Ho, aged 50, joined the Bank in July 2007. He was the Head of
Corporate Development, Strategy and Investor Relations of the Group
before the appointment as Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
(“DSB China”), a key operating subsidiary of the Bank, in November
2018. He was then appointed as Executive Director of DSB China in
June 2020 and the Chief Executive Officer of DSB China in July 2021.
Mr. Ho has over 25 years of experience in finance and banking industry
in China and Hong Kong. He worked for investment bank, international
commercial bank, and international accounting firm before joining the
Bank.

Mr. Pak-Hung Lau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

Mr. Lau, aged 58, joined the Bank and was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
(incorporated in Macau), a key subsidiary of the Bank, in January 2020.
Mr. Lau has over 30 years of solid banking experience in Hong Kong
and Macau. He started his career in banking by joining HSBC in 1986
and immediately before joining the Bank, he was the CEO of HSBC
Macau Branch.
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The Board of Directors and the Management of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited (the “Bank” or the “Group”) are committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance practices and devote considerable
effort to identify and formalize best practices. We believe that sound
and effective corporate governance practices are essential for
delivering sustainable value, enhancing a culture of business integrity
and maintaining investors’ confidence. Good corporate governance
promotes and safeguards the interests of shareholders and other
stakeholders including customers and employees, thereby enhancing
the credibility and reputation of the Bank.

The Bank abides strictly by the relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, and observes the rules and guidelines issued by regulatory
authorities including the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”). It
has complied with the requirements set out in the Supervisory Policy
Manual module CG-1 entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorised Institutions” (“CG-1") and CG-5 entitled
“Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” (“CG-5"), Guidance
on Empowerment of Independent Non-Executive Directors and the
circulars on Bank Culture Reform issued by the HKMA in all material
aspects.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND
PRACTICES

The Bank has in place a corporate governance framework which
identifies all the key participants of the Group and the ways which
they relate to each other and their roles in the application of effective
governance policies and processes.

The Bank has adopted a set of Board Governance Policy and
Procedures (“BGPP”) since 2013. The BGPP of the Bank is subject
to regular review and update to ensure compliance with the latest
regulatory requirements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND
PRACTICES (continued)

The BGPP has been developed in pursuance of the requirements of the
CG-1, which has laid down the governance framework and structures
of the Bank covering the responsibilities of the board, the organization
and functioning of the board, board committees, appointment of
directors and succession, board qualification and training, delegation of
authority and oversight of senior management, evaluation of the board
and individual directors, governance in group structure, controls on
structures established on behalf of customers, risk management, and
legal obligations of directors.

The supervision of the management and direction of the business and
affairs of the Bank shall be vested in the Board, who, in addition to the
powers and authorities set out in the Bank’s constitutional documents
expressly conferred upon them, may exercise all such powers and do
all such acts and things as may be exercised or done or approved by
the Bank. In discharging its responsibilities, the Board shall take into
account the legitimate interests of shareholders, depositors and other
relevant stakeholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of the Bank has the ultimate responsibility for the
supervision, leadership, operations and financial soundness of the
Bank. In discharging its responsibilities, the Board actively engages
in the affairs of the Bank and is cognizant of material changes in the
Bank’s business and the external environment in which the Bank
operates. The Board acts honestly and in good faith in the interest
of the Bank, and on an informed and prudent basis, having regard to
the legitimate interests of shareholders, depositors and other relevant
stakeholders.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises fourteen
members, of whom eight are Executive Directors and six are
Independent Non-Executive Directors. Members of the Board are as
follows:

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong — Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) — Vice Chairman

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong — Vice Chairman, Managing Director and
Chief Executive

Gary Pak-Ling Wang — Deputy Chief Executive

Nicholas John Mayhew — Deputy Chief Executive

Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong — Deputy Chief Executive

Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma — Alternate Chief Executive

Cliff Wai-Kin Chan — Alternate Chief Executive

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Seng-Lee Chan

Blair Chilton Pickerell
Paul Michael Kennedy
David Wai-Hung Tam
Paul Franz Winkelmann

The biographical information of the Directors is disclosed in the
“Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile” of this Annual Report.

The Board possesses appropriate experience, competencies and
personal qualities, including professionalism and integrity, to discharge
its responsibilities adequately and effectively. In addition, the Board
collectively has adequate knowledge and expertise relevant to each of
the material business activities that the Bank pursues and the associated
risks in order to ensure effective governance and oversight.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

According to the Terms of Reference of the Board, the key
responsibilities of the Board include:

. setting and overseeing the objectives and strategies of the Group

. approving annual budget and business plan, and monitoring
performance and execution of plan

o overseeing the development and implementation of
Environmental, Social and Governance and climate related
strategies

. establishing and overseeing risk governance

. appointment and oversight of senior management, and ensuring
competent management is in place

. setting corporate values and standards

. overseeing the remuneration policy

. ensuring a suitable and transparent corporate structure

. ensuring effective audit function and internal control

. ensuring an appropriate level of effectiveness in respect of the
structure, operation and risk management of the Bank

. matters involving conflict of interest of substantial shareholder or
any Director

. material acquisition or disposal of assets (not in the ordinary
business or operation of the Bank), investments and business
reorganization

. material capital projects with long-term commitments

. delegation of authority to Board level Committees or individual
Directors (for approving specific transactions)

. delegation to Senior Management the authority and responsibility
to manage the regular businesses and affairs of the Bank and its
subsidiaries consistent with the objectives and strategies of the
Bank, and within the risk framework and limits approved by the
Board

o appointment of Directors and Senior Management

. actively engaging in succession plans for the chief executive and
other key senior executives as appropriate

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

19



ERERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BEES @

EEeSFARRIOREE - W EFEFR
REOHEZERIIEE EFSRESEET
ZEEgZEHERN AR —FEEE
REZDBAUNESESLHMELE - REH
EFReRNeRR IR LB - @FHE
NEHEEHARNEERSEEEABERERME
RMHE - MEEESERZMEETHIHFERE
BEMEFRAREEG2E - EEEN2022F
HETTHREHNEE -

EESETZEES

EreRERZEeRRENANRIERER
BREEE BREGSEAANBEEZEGZEN
LBE EFEETREEZZES  RAMF
MEEGANEAREENAREZESG - EFEETE
Higs R EMSZ E AR MBRHEE - R
FRLHEIBZERERTAEERTE - URE
EEEXBREAEANER BEFEHTZ
BearTBRATEERMNESESHANE
ARF WEBAEZRAEFSERLREKNL
AEFGRELEE -

BEREES

ERZBEe((BRZEe AR NERIME
EESEARNMBHRERENEE ARk
SMNBRZBENEZ TIE - ARSI RS - RRE R
HERGREEEEHE BRZEENERER
B HAEEEERFTHIZCEEZEHASE
H - BRFERRZ2THANRE2ER - Lstit
REZEGZEH -

#HE  SERRAELFEEREERTIE &
BiEEME SEANMETREIERARTZIN
EBZHEMRRBIRL AR - CEHERE

BRBERZEERMEE -

RAFHRA  BERZEeHEOAAKREEHEE
BUIERTES([BUIENITES]) - BREZE
SUREARLBMELE(ER)  BRBEMEE &
HREERFEMELE - BEHZEER2022F H
BTN GH o

20  KERITEIRA R 2022F F

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In addition, special
Board meetings are held when necessary. Dates of regular Board and
Board Committee meetings are scheduled in the prior year to provide
sufficient notice to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. For special
Board meetings, reasonable notice is given. Board agenda is approved
following consultation with the Directors and Senior Management. All
Board meetings involve the active participation, either in person or
through other electronic means of communication, of Directors. The
Board held four regular meetings in 2022.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated its authority to various committees to deal
with specific matters under written terms of reference, which set out
in detail their respective authorities and responsibilities. The Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and Risk
Management and Compliance Committee were established under
the authority of the Board. The composition and terms of reference of
these committees are reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that
they remain appropriate and in line with the regulatory requirements,
the Group’s business and changes in governance practices. All Board
Committees adopt the same governance processes as the Board
as far as practicable and report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations after each meeting.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee (“AC”) has the authority to review all matters
related to financial statements and disclosure, audit work performed
by internal and external auditors, internal control systems, risk
management system and compliance for the whole Group. The
AC reports to the Board following each AC meeting, drawing the
Board'’s attention to significant issues or matters of which the Board
should be aware, identifying any matters in respect of which it
considers that action or improvement is needed, and making relevant
recommendations.

The AC meets at least three times a year with the Bank’s executives
including the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive, Group Chief
Financial Officer, Group Financial Controller, Group Chief Risk Officer
and Group Head of Risk Management, Group Chief Credit Officer,
Group Head of Internal Audit, and representatives from the Bank’s
external auditor. Special meetings of the AC are held when necessary.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the AC comprises four members
and all of them are Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”).
The members of the AC are Messrs. Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman),
Seng-Lee Chan, Paul Franz Winkelmann and Blair Chilton Pickerell.
The AC held four meetings in 2022.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The AC was established with written terms of reference and its major
roles and functions are as follows:

. To ensure the objectivity and credibility of financial reporting

. To review the internal control system and compliance with
regulatory requirements

o To make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor

o To review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards

. To approve the appointment, resignation or dismissal of the head
of internal audit

o To approve audit plans

. To review the effectiveness of the internal audit function

. To review findings and reports of the internal and external
auditors

. To review and monitor the integrity of the Bank’s annual and
interim financial statements, including significant financial
reporting judgements used in producing the financial statements

. To review the Bank’s internal controls and reports its major
findings and comments to the Board

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) is responsible
for overseeing the remuneration matters of the Bank, and also to
review and endorse the nomination of candidates for appointment as
Non-Executive Directors (including INEDs), Executive Directors and
Senior Management, prior to the approval by the Board of the Bank.
The NRC reports to the Board regularly on its findings, decisions and
recommendations.

The NRC meets at least twice a year and at such other times as the
NRC deems appropriate.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

21



_IJ:% k\\l_\fFFY =

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BEEEBT2EZESW

RERFHNZEE @)

RAFRAE - IRBMFWHEESH=ZAMEK - K
A ABILIENTES - WHBIIFENTESTH

EEF - RBENMFEESKE ARIRITE L IE

HITESMRBAEE(EFE) NETEEEALAK

RITEFETESLE - 2% MFE S 12022
FHBITTORGE ©

RALFNZES@XEMREHELALERER
B EXEZEMBENT

s EHANHERERRREEEBABZEA

s BHMERSEITARTHMGIZNRESE

BB E

s  EZRAEFSHBARTZFMBELRE
TBiEE

e FEEREREFRRETEABZAEIH
i

o HEREHMRARITEVE N GIE KEE

. BOEERFNEFGREZEGHEM - A
- AR RST AR FERM IS
iz

s ENRNEFENEZSEHEIENE R
B LEREZGRZEENEMNER

s ERLBHEFEEITLEXCE RIER
ZBE

22  AKFRITEBAT 20226 F

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (Continued)

As at the date of this Annual Report, the NRC comprises three
members, majority of whom are INEDs and is chaired by an INED.
The members of the NRC are Messrs. Seng-Lee Chan (Chairman)
and Robert Tsai-To Sze, who are INEDs of the Bank and Mr. David
Shou-Yeh Wong, who is the Chairman of the Bank. The NRC held four
meetings in 2022.

The NRC was established with written terms of reference and its major
roles and functions are as follows:

. To review and endorse the nomination of directors and senior
management

o To assist the Board in discharging its responsibility for the design
and operation of the Bank’s remuneration system

. To review and make recommendation to the Board in respect of
the Bank’s remuneration policy and practices

. To review and endorse the specific remuneration packages of
directors and senior management

o To ensure that regular review of the Bank’s remuneration system
and its operation is conducted

. To review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board and also its committees at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board

. To regularly review the efficiency and effectiveness of the
functioning of the Board and also its committees, particularly in
respect of the composition of Board and committee members

. To advise and assist the Board in discharging its culture reform
and related responsibilities
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Risk Management and Compliance Committee

The Risk Management and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) is
to provide guidance and oversight on the Bank’s risk management
strategy and development, review risk management issues and the
resolution thereof, review risk management policies and major risk
limits prior to the approval by the Board, and review major regulatory
compliance issues and development, and exercise oversight on the
compliance function and activities of the Bank. It has the authority to
conduct any enquiry and review on matters related to risk management
and compliance with risk policy and regulatory requirements. The
RMCC reports to the Board following each RMCC meeting, drawing
the Board’s attention to significant issues or matters of which the
Board should be aware, identifying any matters in respect of which it
considers that action or improvement is needed, and making relevant
recommendations.

The RMCC meets at least four times a year with the Bank’s executives
including the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Group Chief
Risk Officer and Group Head of Risk Management, Group Head of
Compliance, Group Head of AML and Financial Crime Risk and Group
Chief Operating Officer and Group Head of Information Technology.
Special meetings of the RMCC are held when necessary.

As at the date of this Annual Report, the RMCC comprises three INEDs
and the Chief Executive of the Bank. The members of the RMCC are
Messrs. Blair Chilton Pickerell (Chairman), David Wai-Hung Tam and
Paul Franz Winkelmann, who are INEDs of the Bank and Mr. Harold
Tsu-Hing Wong, who is the Chief Executive of the Bank. The RMCC
held four meetings in 2022.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Risk Management and Compliance Committee (Continued)

The RMCC was established with written terms of reference and its
major roles and functions are as follows:

. To assist the Board in reviewing all major risk management
policies and risk limits, including capital management policy and
capital plan, as well as the recovery plan

o To assist the Board in reviewing all major compliance and legal
issues, including those relating to anti-money laundering

. To assist the Board in overseeing the implementation of the
stress-testing programme, reviewing the stress-testing results,
including the stress test against capital plan and ensuring that
suitable actions are taken to mitigate potential risks where
necessary

o To monitor and ensure that major risk management policies and
risk limits of the Bank and its subsidiaries comply with relevant
regulatory requirements, and follow up on non-compliance issues
and their resolutions

. To provide periodic update to the Board on its work, finding and
recommendations

. To review any risk and/or compliance issues raised by the
HKMA which are considered significant by the Group Chief Risk
Officer and Group Head of Risk Management, Group Head of
Compliance, Group Head of AML and Financial Crime Risk,
Group Chief Operating Officer and Group Head of Information
Technology or Group Head of Internal Audit

. To oversee the resourcing for the risk management and
compliance functions of the Bank, including anti-money
laundering and counter-terrorist financing

. To interact with the AC to ensure consistency and compatibility
in actions and minimize any potential gaps in risk management
oversight

. To promote sound risk governance and a strong risk management
culture and provide guidance and oversight on the development
of risk management strategies as well as the risk tolerance and
risk appetite of the Bank



2\ B ffm 47 HE 2R

ARIRTTZ BB IR I 5E RIS E B EEIRK 56
N REEEREERG(MEARRDESR
) AN RITATFE B AR 2 BBKF - WL
FASREEREZARERDEDRIANEEE
ERFTESTRZE@H - EREE SR - BRR
HERBERRRG MR RERFETER])E—
FOREBRARE o BkRiRSEIDRERRTAR
REHRHAET2EHE - DR ARERDHREN B
1= BNKE  BAEN  B2RBMEREM
MEADNRERELBEEERR - THRAR
nBEER  FXERREGRES(CZ R
(mnigfERER - EEER - REERR - SERR -
ERER MIRTRRS) X TE R RN ER &
FRIEFEPTIZES] - WA ARNRITZ AR REMS)

[\ g2 1 4 0 BR 7 0 51 A SR 17 [ e (2] 3 22 S T B
EZENGHREVBREREN) ZRBRE
o RE-RIFHRRES@BRE - RB R
FHE - LB E  BREEZESNURR
BEBNBS THRANENREARRENZE
ZEEBRESE - I BERARITEERAR
AZEBTERRRBEFEA - RNRTOHERB—F
Sl e RBREL AT EIFECRRBIENE
1 [ e HE AR AR AR A L B S R KT LA B B e R
BHREE -

ERERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK APPETITE FRAMEWORK

The Bank’s risk appetite is defined as the level of risk the Bank is
willing to take, having regard to its resources and financial capacity,
strategic objectives and regulatory constraints (e.g. capital and liquidity
requirements), with the expectation that the risk taken or to be pursued
is sufficiently compensated or at acceptable return with reasonable
confidence level. Against this background, the risk appetite framework
is comprised of a Risk Appetite Statement (“RAS”) and a set of risk
tolerance is established. The RAS covers five key dimensions of the
risks and returns of the Bank, namely the target returns to shareholders,
earnings volatility, solvency, liquidity and others while more granular
risk types including credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk
and other less quantifiable risks (e.g. operational risk, reputation risk,
strategic risk, cyber risk, legal risk and conduct risk, etc.) are controlled
under different risk limits and risk mitigation measures that constitute
the risk tolerance of the Bank.

The RAS is a high level statement which sets out the risk-return
requirements as well as the risk taking capacity of the Bank, taking
into account its financial and capital strength and covers a wide range
of metrics including return on average shareholders’ funds, liquidity
maintenance ratio, core funding ratio, leverage ratio and measures of
impact on profitability and capital adequacy ratio under selected stress
scenarios, etc. Moreover, to ensure that the Bank’s operations and
risk taking activities are in line with the RAS, the Bank has adopted a
set of risk tolerance levels to govern and control specific categories of
risk, which is made up of major quantitative risk limits as well as some
qualitative measures.
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RISK APPETITE FRAMEWORK (Continued)

As for the process of risk appetite setting, the Board determines the
optimal risk appetite having regard to the Bank’s capital, risk profile
and strategy. In addition, the Board is responsible for overseeing the
development and monitoring of the Bank’s risk appetite to ensure that
the Bank is able to achieve sustainable growth in pursuing its business
strategy, operating within its tolerance levels. The RAS is designed to
be consistent with the Bank’s business strategy, risk and return balance
and market outlook, for the medium to longer term and it is not intended
to be changed frequently, unless there are significant changes in the
Bank’s strategy and operating environment. Furthermore, during the
annual and other ad hoc reviews of the RAS framework, risk scenarios
covering different courses of development of the global economies
including highly stressed scenarios are developed for the purpose
of conducting the firm-wide stress test. The results together with
regulatory developments will be taken as one of the key considerations
in the review of risk appetite.

Compliance with the RAS and risk tolerance is monitored and reported
to the Board and the RMCC respectively on a quarterly basis to ensure
that the businesses of the Bank are conducted within the requirements
of the risk appetite framework. Moreover, the risk appetite framework
and major risk appetite limits are subject to the review by the RMCC
and the Board on an annual basis, when the annual budget and
medium term plan of the Bank are reviewed and approved, or new
business and risk strategies are to be approved.

RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD

The Bank uses a formal, considered and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new Directors. The proposed appointment will first
be reviewed by the NRC, taking into account the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the Board. Upon recommendation of the
NRC, the proposed appointment will then be reviewed and, if thought
fit, approved by the Board after due deliberation.

In accordance with the requirement under the Banking Ordinance,
approval from the HKMA will need to be sought prior to the appointment
of any person as a Director of the Bank.
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RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD (continued)

The Bank issues appointment letters to each of the INEDs, setting
out the terms and conditions of their appointments. For proposed
appointment as INEDs of the Bank, the factors as laid down in the
HKMA’s Guidance on Empowerment of INEDs will be considered to
assess the independence of a proposed INED of the Bank. The same
factors will be revisited to reassess the independence of any INED
who has served the Board of the Bank for more than 9 years, where
applicable.

Pursuant to the Board Appointment and Succession Policy of the Bank,
the Board or NRC should satisfy itself that the candidate nominated
for appointment is a fit and proper person for appointment, taking into
account the following features and attributes of the candidate:

. age

. education background and professional qualification

. experience, especially working and commercial experience

o stature and reputation in the community

. capability

. professional and/or business management skills

. track record

. independence of mind (particularly in the case of non-executive
directors and INEDs)

o any financial or other interest in the business of the Bank

. other directorship

. intellectual strength

o fitness and propriety

Candidates as proposed Board members should not have any
conflict of interest that may impede their ability to perform their duties
independently and objectively or subject them to undue influence from:

o personal, professional or other economic relationships with other
members of the board or management (or with other entities
within the group)

. other persons including shareholders

o relationship arising from or connected to past or present positions
held
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RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE
BOARD (continued)

A Board director candidate has to confirm that there is no conflict of
interest prior to his/her appointment, apart from clearance under the
relevant regulatory requirements relating to connected lending.

REMUNERATION INFORMATION

Remuneration information in line with the requirements set out in CG-5 is
disclosed in the Regulatory Disclosure Statement at the Bank’s website
at www.dahsing.com and is accessible at the following direct link:

http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.html

MAJOR SHARE OWNERSHIP AND VOTING RIGHTS AND
RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited. The ultimate holding company of the Bank is Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited. Both Dah Sing Banking Group Limited and
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited are listed companies in Hong
Kong.

The Bank’s related party transactions are set out in Note 42 to the
Financial Statements of this Annual Report.

OTHERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Bank did not engage in
any material and complex or non-transparent structure that is difficult
for supervisors and stakeholders of the Bank to reasonably assess the
risks to which it is exposed.



EECHIREHE2022F 12831 HILFE 2 HE
ENREZZIFEVTERE -

EFRERHK
RIRITAERAAR(ARIT D 2 EBXBRER

R1T - U R EMEERE - WBARZEEE
58I BB R R 7E26 o

RENABIER

AERITREWB AR ([ AEE ) EE2022F12 A
318 IFE 2 2EFNFEI6A 2 A WEERR °

EZgERTHRKRBESR2258 L - Rk
139,500,00078 7T © £ 7202299 A 19 H R 3 & A%
ﬁ o

EFETRBREARHEBETREI10BT - &K
378,200,000/ 7T °

EBER

AR ARIRITE E2022F 12 A31 H LM BFE AKX
FRTEEER AR Z2ENB AR - EIL AR
ITIRIECE B R RIEH )EE5388(3)(b) KEEA M &
R BID022F EFER -

[}

NETRERERAZEBFBHNGEATBERER
B5E37 ©

B
AEERFE 2E NHEMBE 1,532,000
7TE °

EEEHREE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) are the
provision of banking, financial and other related services. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are shown in Note 26 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 36.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$2.25 per share,
totalling HK$139,500,000, which was paid on 19 September 2022.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$6.10
per share, totalling HK$378,200,000.

BUSINESS REVIEW

No business review for 2022 is prepared as the Bank is exempted
under section 388(3)(b) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance since
it is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited for
the financial year ended 31 December 2022.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Bank during the year are shown in
Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$1,532,000.
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EERHEE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Exg DIRECTORS
AEEAREARREARIEARRITEESH The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this
report are:
FFE David Shou-Yeh Wong
FE Chairman
=M Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
BIEE Vice Chairman
F 188 Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
BIEE - EFAATEFTIHARE Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive
Bk Robert Tsai-To Sze*
BeR B ) Seng-Lee Chan*
EmE* Blair Chilton Pickerell*
A Paul Michael Kennedy*
(R David Wai-Hung Tam*
s R Paul Franz Winkelmann*
FlaZE Gary Pak-Ling Wang
HITEEFETTHAREE Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive
BEEE Nicholas John Mayhew
HITEFFETTHAH Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive
E=S Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
HITEFEFETTHAGH Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive
Bk Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
HITEZFEFITHARE Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive
PR 4 B2 Cliff Wai-Kin Chan
HITEEFEFITHARE Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive
*BUIPTEE * Independent Non-Executive Directors
AARARIT 2 EBERAATEESARESE There being no provision in the Bank’s Articles of Association for
ZHRE  MEBRIESEERT - retirement by rotation, all Directors continue in office.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of the names of all the directors who have served on the boards
of the subsidiaries of the Bank during the year and up to the date of
this Report of the Directors is provided in the “Directors of Subsidiaries”
section which follows this Report of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
AND SHARE AWARD SCHEMES

The following were arrangements which subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year which enabled the Directors of the
Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in its
holding companies.

1. Share Option Schemes

Pursuant to the Share Option Schemes as approved by the
shareholders of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”)
and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), the Bank’s
ultimate and immediate holding companies respectively,
eligible participants may be granted options at a consideration
of HK$1 per option to subscribe for shares of DSFH or DSBG.
The exercise price per option share is varied by tranches of
grant, which is concluded on the basis no less exacting than
the requirement set out in Rule 17.03E of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) being determined as no less than
the higher of (i) the closing price of the relevant shares traded on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) on the
date of grant; and (ii) the average closing price of the relevant
shares traded on the SEHK for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
AND SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (continued)

1.  Share Option Schemes (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Share Option
Scheme

At the annual general meeting held on 27 May 2015,
the shareholders of DSFH, the Bank’s ultimate holding
company, approved the adoption of a share option scheme
of DSFH (the “DSFH Scheme”).

During the year, no options were granted to Directors of
the Bank under the DSFH Scheme and no Directors had
outstanding options under the DSFH Scheme.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Share Option Scheme

At the annual general meeting held on 27 May 2014, the
shareholders of DSBG, the Bank’s immediate holding
company, approved the adoption of a share option scheme
of DSBG (the “DSBG Scheme”).

During the year, no options were granted to Directors of the
Bank under the DSBG Scheme.

During the year, save for Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang, Mr.
Nicholas John Mayhew and Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong,
no other Directors of the Bank had outstanding options
granted under the DSBG Scheme and none of the Directors
had acquired shares in DSBG by exercising options granted
under the DSBG Scheme.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
AND SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (continued)

2. Share Award Schemes

Each of the Boards of DSFH and DSBG adopted a share award
scheme (respectively the “DSFH Share Award Scheme” and the
“DSBG Share Award Scheme”) both on 9 September 2021 (the
“Adoption Date”).

(a) DSFH Share Award Scheme

During the year, share awards were granted to Mr. Harold
Tsu-Hing Wong, Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew, Ms. Phoebe
Mei-Chun Wong, Ms. Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma and Mr. Cliff
Wai-Kin Chan under the DSFH Share Award Scheme. No
share awards were vested in the Directors of the Bank
during the year.

(b) DSBG Share Award Scheme

During the period from the Adoption Date to 31 December
2022, no share awards were granted to Directors of the
Bank under the DSBG Share Award Scheme.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Bank, its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Bank or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors do not have any service contracts with the Bank.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE BANK’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Bank’s business to which the Bank, its subsidiaries, its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a
Director of the Bank or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

33



34

EFEEREE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BRI RERX

BRARITEEZREFNREEXHKEBR
BB EFE)IRIEER - WHEE2022F12 A
S1HIEMZBETRFEEK

BEEEK

REFRN - NRITIEHL 2B EATERE D%
BRI IFEERNERERITHAH

HZE2022F12A31 HILFEHR - AEEEER
BATZ R GHBEEN AU HERENE42 -

FaiEsIRA

REREEE2022F 12 A31 B ILFE I R K -
RETE R EBELMEEBNCRITER
Il YR B 6OARARMF 2 CIRTTE (HFR) R AN Z 518
TR NRITE R ERBRAFEE R -

B BEm

A BRER OB B AE G EE IR -
ZRBMBEREER  BRTIERARITEREZ
BRBEFERGRISEE -

RRESE
BEHE
B

&% > 2023%3A31H

AFTIRITAIR AT 20224 F 3,

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors of the Bank is
currently in force and was in force throughout the financial year ended
31 December 2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 have been set out in Note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022, the Bank has fully complied with the requirements set out in
the Banking (Disclosure) Rules issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority under section 60A of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. The
Bank has fully complied with such disclosure requirements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Bank.

On behalf of the Board
Hon-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023



HEBARES
DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

REZE2022F12 A31 A IEFE A R EE20234F The names of the directors who have served on the boards of the
SABIHAIARRITZAFEEFEREEAH) I subsidiaries of the Bank during the year ended 31 December 2022 and
B REARBRTZHBARESSMES 2 up to 31 March 2023, being the date of the Report of the Directors of
E=3 (I the Bank for the year, are set out below:

(BN FHES)) (in alphabetical order)

PREESS CHAN Ha-Fong Nancy

BRI CHAN Ho-Tong (Tom CHAN)

BREEE CHAN Hoi-Kit Frederick

PR 4 B2 CHAN Cliff Wai-Kin

GREN CHANG Pui-Yuk Vanessa

BREA| CHEN Yi Chuan (Rawson CHEN)

B3y CHENG Yu-Chung (Patrick CHENG)

AER CHOW Chi-Leung Cristo

IR FUNG Siu-Ming (Philip FUNG)

5% HO Ka-Yeung Eric

BIxRE LAU Ka-Wai Frederick

2IaKE LAU Pak-Hung

RAEIR LEUNG Wai-Sum (Terence LEUNG)

£ S LI Richard Tsung-Yung

R Nicholas John MAYHEW*

EEM POON Clement

s Em SZE Tsai-To Robert*

TRz WANG Pak-Ling Gary

=EAR WONG Chit-Kwan (Vincent WONG)

= WONG Hon-Hing (Derek WONG)

FEE WONG Mei-Chun Phoebe

EFE WONG Shou-Yeh David

F1E 8 WONG Tsu-Hing Harold

R YAN Yun-Shum Grace

RnikE YUEN Yat-To (Henry YUEN)

BB TEETARTEENBRAESHY - * Those who have resigned/ceased as a Director of the relevant subsidiary(ies)

of the Bank.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

B E2022912 318 |LF[E For the year ended 31 December 2022
(LAVEEEF TAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

k=3
Note 2022 2021
FLESA Interest income 7 6,964,613 5,170,284
FESZH Interest expense 7 (2,592,986) (1,229,892)
BRI B WA Net interest income 4,371,627 3,940,392
R%E RAEUA Fee and commission income 8 2,432,747 1,406,822
RSB RME I H Fee and commission expense 8 (183,652) (209,399)
FREBRASHBA Net fee and commission income 2,249,095 1,197,423
FEERA Net trading income 9 144,011 174,981
Hib g @A Other operating income 10 51,263 63,466
EEWA Operating income 6,815,996 5,376,262
EiEX Operating expenses 11 (3,026,052) (3,031,484)
R EE B 2 & ERF Operating profit before impairment losses 3,789,944 2,344,778
EEREREE Credit impairment losses 13 (803,100) (373,343)
HRETREREEEEZ Operating profit before gains and losses on
Wz R B8 AT 2 & ERF certain investments and fixed assets 2,986,844 1,971,435
HERMEEEE L FER Net loss on disposal of other fixed assets (2,451) (7,412)
BEWMERNFEAE ZFUE Net (loss)/gain on fair value adjustment of
(B8) investment properties (38,311) 4,636
HENAFEEBEEEA Net gain on disposal of financial assets at fair
Hit2EPm=meREE 2 F R value through other comprehensive income - 4,993
DE SRR AT BRN S REE Net gain on disposal of financial assets at
FUE amortised cost 24 -
iy e Share of results of an associate 656,691 697,954
B N EIRE 2R EEE Impairment loss on the investment in
an associate 23 (1,683,000) (726,000)
BRI EHENERE ZEE Loss on deemed disposal of investment
in an associate (10) (31,202)
JEME BB 2 45 Share of results of jointly controlled entities 29,879 33,060
BRBLAT R Profit before taxation 1,949,666 1,947,464
I8 Taxation 14 (361,167) (309,039)
AERITRRELFEERR Profit for the year attributable to
shareholders of the Bank 1,588,499 1,638,425

FA2EEF29B WA AEEMERRZ —

#Bo e

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,

financial statements.

The notes on page 42 to 239 are an integral part of these consolidated



frefmimR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

#Z2022412 431 H L5 /E For the year ended 31 December 2022
(LAZEBEF TA5I7R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2022 2021
FERF Profit for the year 1,588,499 1,638,425
FEHMZE(SER) k& Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year
AREEEF D HEELRAWEIREAIEE ©  Items that may be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:
BEHE Investments in securities
NAFEFEBEZS T AEMEE  Net change in fair value of debt instruments at fair
WaEmEHTAZ A FEZEFE value through other comprehensive income (834,317) 69,682
BRSO RARIENEIZ/ARZ  Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income of an
Hihzm(EE) e associate accounted for using the equity method (226,037) 44,040
WAFEEEEZS T AEMEE  Net change in allowance for expected credit losses
WammEB LA EREEER of debt instruments at fair value through other
TR comprehensive income 7,109 7,388
FU IR RER RN A R Net gain realised and transferred to consolidated
income statement upon:
—HEURATFEAZEBHES) — Disposal of debt instruments at fair value
FFAHMEmMWRGE EHTA through other comprehensive income - (4,993)
B bt 2 RET 18 Deferred income tax related to the above 132,583 (12,091)
(920,662) 104,026
BMEBIMEB B ImRAER =2 Exchange differences arising on translation of the
financial statements of foreign entities (719,179) 207,164
TEEFHEEGFENERNIEE - Items that will not be reclassified to the consolidated

income statement:

UAE2AEZET ARMEE  Netchange in fair value of equity instruments

RS E T E 2 AFEEE)EEE  at fair value through other comprehensive income 586,378 (1,176)
B L 2 IRERIE Deferred income tax related to the above (35,153) (5,271)
551,225 (6,447)

MBEHEE 2 FEEME2ME(EE),”  Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year,

e net of tax (1,088,616) 304,743
HNBRBMBER2EETMREHEE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 499,883 1,943,168
FA2BEEF230B 2 W AR A M RET 2 — The notes on pages 42 to 239 are an integral part of these consolidated
o o financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2022412 431H As at 31 December 2022

(LAVEEEF TAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

HisE
Note 2022 2021
BE ASSETS
Be MEBITHER Cash and balances with banks 17 17,800,880 12,007,753
TERITIE 1218 AN B BRTFR Placements with banks maturing between one and
twelve months 8,616,565 4,531,863
FIEFEERENES Trading securities 18 562,161 4,425,384
UAFETEAEEHIABZNEMEE  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 18 9,303 14,119
TEeRmIA Derivative financial instruments 19 3,901,236 621,056
ZEEFREAMEKE Advances and other accounts 20 142,714,799 152,460,504
AAFEFEEEEET AL M Financial assets at fair value through other
ENENEREE comprehensive income 21 38,617,851 41,433,736
IABERR AR S EE Financial assets at amortised cost 22 32,926,090 24,531,186
B NRIRE Investment in an associate 23 2,159,290 4,230,951
KRS ERRILE Investments in jointly controlled entities 24 123,072 114,373
S Goodwill 25 713,451 713,451
mVEE Intangible assets 25 61,005 58,252
NENEMBETEE Premises and other fixed assets 27 3,645,703 3,802,228
REYE Investment properties 28 802,693 756,353
BERIREE Deferred income tax assets 34 262,273 120,418
BEAT Total assets 252,916,372 249,821,627
=L LIABILITIES
RITIER Deposits from banks 4,112,493 1,703,197
PTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 19 997,637 1,425,365
BIEEERENEE Trading liabilities 30 730,491 1,511,927
HFER Deposits from customers 31 199,802,595 197,022,441
BEREITHTRE Certificates of deposit issued 32 4,228,983 6,589,717
BIEET Subordinated notes 33 3,801,495 4,128,446
HAbBR B M8l Other accounts and accruals 7,915,029 6,536,586
BIERIIEE & Current income tax liabilities 284,453 160,235
EERIBEEE Deferred income tax liabilities 34 36,267 14,977
aEast Total liabilities 221,909,443 219,092,891
B EQUITY
AR A Share capital 37 6,200,000 6,200,000
EthRE(BERERF) Other reserves (including retained earnings) 38 23,639,119 23,630,149
BRES Shareholders’ funds 29,839,119 29,830,149
FIMERMTEA Additional equity instruments 39 1,167,810 898,587
EEaE Total equity 31,006,929 30,728,736
BmkaEE Total equity and liabilities 252,916,372 249,821,627

EERMN2023F3 731 B RIFERM

HEA FHE

BFE BEFGE
FA2EFEF239B Z M D ARGE BT Z —
#B o

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,

March 2023.

Hon-Hing Wong
Director

financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

Managing Director

The notes on pages 42 to 239 are an integral part of these consolidated



reEnBBWmER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#Z2022412 431 H L5 /E For the year ended 31 December 2022
(LAZEBEF TA5I7R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RRTRREGRES
Attributable to the
shareholders of the Bank
R
EEETA
B Hitufe REBER  Additional
Share Other Retained equity BRA
capital reserves earnings instruments Total equity
202251 A1 B &8 Balance at 1 January 2022 6,200,000 1,650,399 21,979,750 898,587 30,728,736
FERF Profit for the year - - 1,588,499 - 1,588,499
FEAMZEEE Other comprehensive loss for the year - (1,088,616) - - (1,088,616)
BOEMERMT A Redemption of additional equity
instruments - - - (898,587) (898,587)
BTHMERMT A Issue of additional equity instruments - - - 1,167,810 1,167,810
DARRAE Sz 5 AR 1B B Provision for equity-settled share-
BT 2 B based compensation - 239 - - 239
BIMERMETAZ Distribution payment of additional
KR equity instruments - - (41,652) - (41,652)
2021 F REIMR B 2021 final dividend - - (310,000) - (310,000)
2022 F FHAIR B 2022 interim dividend - - (139,500) - (139,500)
202212831 B &6 Balance at 31 December 2022 6,200,000 562,022 23,077,097 1,167,810 31,006,929
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FAEREEHRER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2022F1231H L FZ (4) For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued)
(LAVEEEF TAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RRITRRE (G
Attributable to the
shareholders of the Bank
goh
BEmIETA
A HithfAfE REEF Additional
Share Other Retained equity Bmast
capital reserves earnings  instruments  Total equity
20211 H1B &% Balance at 1 January 2021 6,200,000 1,311,557 20,847,169 898,587 29,257,313
FERT Profit for the year - - 1,638,425 - 1,638,425
FEAMZEKE Other comprehensive income for the
year - 304,743 - - 304,743
PARRIE ST (ST AR 1E R Provision for equity-settied share-
ERRI 2 B based compensation - 480 - - 480
BIMERITTAY Distribution payment of additional
IRE TR equity instruments - - (41,325) - (41,325)
P& L HERES - B3O Reclassification of net change in fair
DPATFEFEBEZHAFA  value of equity instruments at fair
Hit 2 ERaEeERE value through other comprehensive
TAZRVEEEHFE income upon derecognition - 33,619 (33,619) - -
2020F K EIR 2 2020 final dividend - - (291,400) - (291,400
2021 F R ER S 2021 interim dividend - - (139,500) - (139,500)
202112731 H 564 Balance at 31 December 2021 6,200,000 1,650,399 21,979,750 898,587 30,728,736
FAEEFE239H 2 ARG A B RE 2 — The notes on pages 42 to 239 are an integral part of these consolidated
B o financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#Z2022412 431 H L5 /E For the year ended 31 December 2022
(LAZEBEF TA5I7R ) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

k=3
Note 2022 2021
RETEHZRERE Cash flows from operating activities
KEERERA(FTA )RS F5E Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 40(a) 4,075,837  (2,097,338)
REZTBZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BEREMERAMETEE Purchase of investment properties and
other fixed assets (267,346) (301,708)
& Bt [E] 5F B EE TS 5K IR Proceeds from disposal of other fixed assets 208 215
B UL R I 48 R B A RIR B Dividend received from jointly controlled
entities and associate 230,664 230,578
WEEEMAR S FE Net cash used in investing activities (36,474) (70,915)
MEFTB2RERE Cash flows from financing activities
BITIRIBER Issue of subordinated notes 40(c) - 2,320,246
BEREEEY Repayment of subordinated notes 40(c) - (1,949,775)
BITRRIMER LT A Issue of additional equity instruments 1,167,810 -
EERE/IMERMT A Repayment of additional equity instruments (895,321) -
HEBBZNK Payment of lease liabilities (148,876) (190,146)
KESMERS I T B 2 R EEFUE Distribution payment on additional equity
instrument (41,652) (41,325)
SN BEETREEBRER Interest paid on subordinated notes and
B ME debt securities issued 40(c) (164,342) (170,924)
IREEAR N2 AR S Dividend paid on ordinary shares of the
Company (449,500) (430,900)
BEEBTARSFRE Net cash used in financing activities (531,881) (462,824)
ReRERRLSEREMN (D) Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
FEE equivalents 3,507,482 (2,631,077)
FURERERKRLIEE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year 16,042,821 18,688,804
MEREE 8 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (289,880) (14,906)
FRREERERREER Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year 40(b) = 19,260,423 16,042,821
FAE EF039E v M IAG A E®RE T — The notes on pages 42 to 239 are an integral part of these consolidated
5 o financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. —RER
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) provide retail banking, commercial banking and related
financial services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s Republic of
China.

The Bank is a financial institution incorporated in Hong Kong. The
address of its registered office is 26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre,
No. 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The ultimate holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(“DSFH”), a listed company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 31 March 2023.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASSs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”), financial assets and financial liabilities held for
trading, and financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in applying the
Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements in the period
the assumptions change. Management believes that the underlying
assumptions are appropriate and that the consolidated financial
statements therefore present the financial position and results fairly.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

There are no HKFRSs or interpretations that are effective from 1
January 2022 or not yet effective that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Consolidation (continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Consolidation (continued)
(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity holders of the Bank. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in an associate
includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss)

identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised
in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Consolidation (continued)
(c) Associates (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in the consolidated
income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the investments in
associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses.
The results of associates are accounted for by the Bank on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

(d) Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is subject
to joint control and none of the participating parties has unilateral
control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and the
consolidated statement of financial position includes the Group’s
share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.



fre MR T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. FEEHHEREHMEm@

23 FMEKWARZH

BB LA R HEREREZ AR
fh 2 E B 2 B TR BRA KL HT)
fERER A Z AR R A WK A

ERMEEDR-—EBAUNFEEREERTREA
182 B RRAR AN S LT AR R A A 3 1 B MR A SRR
EXHMITE - BRAEEA SR T AER
BRI SR BE HIE (E R ) Az fAEt R R R 2
WXHRAZEREERSRBBZEEFEZ
ERRRRE - A EERNXE  AREESR
TAZABAENER(MRRBERZITEE) Mk
FAEBRSRE  BTERABLEZEEREX - 1t
AEEEMERNANR LT TR MEEE
KERERNS2ERRMNEEZE XPUAR
FrA B s (B i -

EHEeREEX - HemEENEERRMER
BRHREIE - BRI S RARR EE R EERR
FiTRE R PARE IR AR ORI 2R B 2 M KRG BHERR ©

24 BRBERASWARZIEH

REEPANZRHEERBEUNEES KN
52 (B3 8 o AN E P RSB 2 25
HEES TR -

ERRBNARRRETHE 2 EFER - KE
LRt S N S
(iR -

BRRZUEZZE(HInis - LRERADH
O AR ) 2 AR X 5 35 A B R,

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated
income statement for all debt instruments measured at amortised cost
and fair value through other comprehensive income using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment
options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to
the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income from contracts with customers is
measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a
customer. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control over
a service to a customer.

Fees for ongoing account management, custody services and other
servicing fees that are continuously provided over an extended period
of time are recognised on systematic basis over the period the service is
provided.

Revenue related to transaction-based arrangements such as

interchange, broking services and import or export services is
recognised at the point in time when the transaction takes place.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the consolidated income statement when
the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities
Measurement methods
Amortised cost and effective interest rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss
allowance.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost before any impairment allowance)
or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. The calculation does
not consider expected credit losses and includes transaction costs,
premiums or discounts and fees and points paid or received that are
integral to the effective interest rate, such as origination fees. For
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (assets that
are credit-impaired at initial recognition) the Group calculates the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is calculated based on
the amortised cost of the financial asset instead of its gross carrying
amount and incorporates the impact of expected credit losses in
estimated future cash flows.

When the Group revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying
amount of the respective financial asset or financial liability is adjusted
to reflect the new estimate discounted using the original effective
interest rate. Any changes are recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Measurement methods (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial
liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and
commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit
loss (“ECL”) allowance is recognised for financial assets measured
at amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at
FVOCI which results in an accounting loss being recognised in profit or
loss when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the
transaction price on initial recognition, the Group recognises the
difference as follows:

(@) When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input)
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or
loss.

(b) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of
recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is determined
individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument,
deferred until the instrument’s fair value can be determined using
market observable inputs, or realised through settlement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o Fair value through profit or loss (including held for trading);

o Fair value through other comprehensive income; or

o Amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments
are described below:

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition
of a financial liability from the issuer’s perspective, such as
loans, government and corporate bonds and trade receivables
purchased from clients in factoring arrangements.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depend on:

o the Group’s business model for managing the asset; and

o the cash flow characteristics of the asset.



2.

fre MR T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FTESHBERUE®@)

26 sRMEEREE@

PHEEE)

() 2ERERZIE®

EFTAGE)

BREZEAR  AEEHBEEFTAET

P =fEEt SRR EHZ—

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments
into one of the following three measurement categories:
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Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”), and
that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”), are measured at amortised cost. The carrying
amount of these assets is adjusted by any ECL allowance
recognised and measured as described in section (ii)
below. Interest income from these financial assets is
calculated using the effective interest rate method.

FVOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent SPPI, and that
are not designated at FVPL, are measured at FVOCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”), except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s amortised
cost which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is
calculated using the effective interest rate method.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL
and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss and presented in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which it arises.
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

PHEEE) Financial assets (Continued)
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(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Business model: the business model reflects how the Group
manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is,
whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect the contractual
cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual
cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If
neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for
trading purposes), then the financial assets are classified as
part of “other” business model and measured at FVPL. Factors
considered by the Group in determining the business model for
a group of assets include past experience on how the cash flows
for these assets were collected, how the asset’s performance
is evaluated and reported to key management personnel,
how risks are assessed and managed and how managers are
compensated. Securities held for trading are held principally for
the purpose of selling in the near term or are part of a portfolio
of financial instruments that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking. These securities are classified in the “other” business
model and measured at FVPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and
sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the
“SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Group considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement (i.e. interest includes only consideration
for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending
arrangement). Where the contractual terms introduce exposure
to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at FVPL.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
SPPI.
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting
period following the change. Such changes are expected to be
very infrequent and none occurred during the period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do
not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a
residual interest in the issuer’'s net assets. Examples of equity
instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss, except where the Group’s
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably
designate an equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. When this election is used, fair value
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Dividends,
when representing a return on such investments, continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are included in
the “Net trading income” in the consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL
associated with its debt instrument assets carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI and with the exposures arising from loans to
customers, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts.
The Group recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each
reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

o An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;

o The time value of money; and

o Reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

Impairment allowance of financial assets measured at amortised
cost is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount
of the assets. Impairment allowance of loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts is recognised as a provision as
part of “Other accounts and accruals”. The carrying amount of
debt instruments measured at FVOCI is their fair value. Their
impairment allowance is recognised as part of “Investment
revaluation reserve”.

Note 3.2.2 provides more details of how the ECL allowance is
measured.
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(iii) Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies
the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When this
happens, the Group assesses whether or not the new terms are
substantially different to the original terms. The Group does this
by considering, among others, the following factors:

° If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the
modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows to
amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.

o Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as
a profit share/equity-based return that substantially affects
the risk profile of the loan.

. Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is
not in financial difficulty.

. Significant change in the interest rate.
J Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.
o Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements

that significantly affect the credit risk associated with the
loan.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognises
the original financial asset and recognises a “new” asset at fair
value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset.
The date of renegotiation is consequently considered to be the
date of initial recognition for impairment calculation purposes,
including for the purpose of determining whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the Group
also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is
deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in
circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor
being unable to make the originally agreed payments. Differences
in the carrying amount are also recognised in profit or loss as a
gain or loss on derecognition.
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
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(iii) Modification of loans (Continued)

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or
modification does not result in derecognition, and the Group
recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised
cash flows of the financial asset and recognises a modification
gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original
effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).

(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets
have expired, or when they have been transferred and either
(i) the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership, or (ii) the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the
Group has not retained control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but assumes
a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to other entities
and transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards. These
transactions are accounted for as “pass through” transfers that
result in derecognition if the Group:

o Has no obligation to make payments unless it collects
equivalent amounts from the assets;

o Is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and

o Has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from the
assets without material delay.
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Financial assets (Continued)
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(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification (Continued)

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group under
standard repurchase agreements and securities lending and
borrowing transactions are not derecognised because the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards on the basis of the
predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria for derecognition
are therefore not met. This also applies to certain securitisation
transactions in which the Group retains a subordinated residual
interest.

When the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the
assets have been transferred, and the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership,
and the Group has retained control of the transferred assets, the
Group applies continuing involvement approach.

Under this approach, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognise the associated liability, to reflect the rights and
obligations retained by the Group. The net carrying amount of
the transferred asset and associated liability is: (a) the amortised
cost of the rights and obligations retained by the Group, if the
transferred asset is measured at amortised cost; or (b) equal to
the fair value of the rights and obligations retained by the Group
when measured on a stand-alone basis, if the transferred asset is
measured at fair value.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are
classified and subsequently measured at amortised cost, except
for:

J Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
classification is applied to derivatives, financial liabilities
held for trading (e.g. short positions in the trading booking)
and other financial liabilities designated as such at
initial recognition. Gains or losses on financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are presented
partially in other comprehensive income (the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability,
which is determined as the amount that is not attributable
to changes in market conditions that give rise to market
risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of
change in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such
a presentation would create, or enlarge, an accounting
mismatch, in which case the gains and losses attributable
to changes in the credit risk of the liability are also
presented in profit or loss;

J Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial
assets which did not qualify for derecognition, or when
the continuing involvement approach applies. When the
transfer of financial asset did not qualify for derecognition,
a financial liability is recognised for the consideration
received for the transfer. In subsequent periods, the Group
recognises any expense incurred on the financial liability;
when continuing involvement approach applies; and

J Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.
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Financial liabilities (Continued)
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(ii) Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished
(i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires).

The exchange between the Group and its original lenders of
debt instruments with substantially different terms, as well
as substantial modifications of the terms of existing financial
liabilities, are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The
terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of
the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net
of any fees received and discounted using the original effective
interest rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
In addition, other qualitative factors, such as the currency that the
instrument is denominated in, changes in the type of interest rate,
new conversion features attached to the instrument and change
in covenants are also taken into consideration. If an exchange
of debt instruments or modification of terms is accounted for as
an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as
part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. If the exchange or
modification is not accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs
or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are
amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and others on
behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at the higher of:

o The amount of the loss allowance; and

. The fee received on initial recognition less income recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”.

Loan commitments provided by the Group are measured as the amount
of the loss allowance. The Group has not provided any commitment to
provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be settled net
in cash or by delivering or issuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowance is recognised as a provision. However, for contracts that
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group
cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn
commitment component from those on the loan component, the
expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised
together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the
combined expected credit losses exceed the gross carrying amount of
the loan, the expected credit losses are recognised as a provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Derivative and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at fair value. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is
positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives are embedded in hybrid contracts, such as
the conversion option in a convertible bond. If the hybrid contract
contains a host that is a financial asset, then the Group assesses the
entire contract as described in the financial assets section above for
classification and measurement purposes. Otherwise, the embedded
derivatives are treated as separate derivatives when:

o Their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to
those of the host contract;

o A separate instrument with the same terms would meet the
definition of a derivative; and

o The hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

These embedded derivatives are separately accounted for at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated income
statement unless the Group chooses to designate the hybrid contracts
at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated and qualifies as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group
designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised
assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedges).

The Group documents, at the inception of the hedge, the relationship
between hedged items and hedging instruments, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values of hedged items.
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2.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative and hedging activities (Continued)
(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the consolidated
income statement under “Net trading income — Net gain/(loss)
arising from financial instruments subject to fair value hedge”,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit
or loss over the period to maturity. If the hedge relationship no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or is terminated
for reasons other than derecognition, e.g. due to repayment of
the hedged item, the unamortised carrying value adjustment
(the difference between the carrying value of the hedged item
at the time of termination and the value at which it would have
been carried had the hedge never existed) to the hedged item is
amortised to the income statement over the remaining life of the
hedged item by the effective interest method. If the hedged item
is derecognised, the unamortised carrying value adjustment is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

(b) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting.
Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that does
not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in
the consolidated income statement under “Net trading income —
Net gain/(loss) from derivatives entered into for trading purpose”.
For derivatives that are managed in conjunction with designated
financial assets or financial liabilities, the gains and losses arising
from changes in their fair value are included under “Net trading
income — Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss”.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Bank or the counterparty.

2.10 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to
other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks
or customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent
to counterparties are also retained in the consolidated financial
statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements, unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the
purchases and sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in
trading income. The obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as
a trading liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position with appropriate amounts of impairment allowances made.
In the case of delinquent loans on which collateral assets have
been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal
arrangements or court orders, and with the legal title of the assets
having been passed to the Group, such loans are derecognised. The
foreclosed assets held for resale are included in “Advances and other
accounts — Other assets”.

2.12 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee (“EC”) as its chief operating
decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an
arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs being
eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining operating segment
performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”, the
Group has the following segments: Personal Banking, Corporate
Banking, Treasury and Global Markets, Overseas Banking and Others.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation currency and the
functional and presentation currency of the Bank and major part
of the Group.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement are presented net in the
consolidated income statement within the corresponding item.
Foreign exchange gains and losses on other comprehensive
income items are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within the corresponding item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as FVOCI, a distinction
is made between translation differences resulting from changes
in amortised cost of the assets and other changes in the carrying
amount of the assets. Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and those related to changes in the carrying amount,
except for impairment, are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items, such
as equities classified as FVOCI, are included in the investment
revaluation reserve in other comprehensive income.
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2.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land and
all other fixed assets are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
- Premises Over the remaining period of lease
- Furniture, fittings, equipment Over the estimated useful lives
and motor vehicles generally between 3 and 10
years or the unexpired terms of
the lease, whichever is shorter

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.17).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the

proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
this information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by external
valuers. Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing
use as investment property, or for which the market has become less
active, continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental income
from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of
transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises and other
fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a
previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

2.16 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised separately
from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual or
other legal rights, and their value can be measured reliably. They
include trade names and intangible assets of core deposits, contracts
and customer relationships. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
amortisation, and/or accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated based on estimated useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years
using a diminishing balance method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels (cash-generating units) for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s financial statements, impairment testing of the investment
in a subsidiary or an associate is also required upon receiving dividend
from that entity if the dividend exceeds the Bank’s share of the total
comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that entity in the Bank’s
statement of financial position exceeds the Bank’s share of the carrying
amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its consolidated
statement of financial position.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In such case, the tax is recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period
in the countries where the Bank and the subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and that are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these
losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of debt
securities at FVOCI, which is charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income, is also credited or charged directly to
other comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in
the consolidated income statement upon the realisation of relevant
investments.
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2.19

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

(b) Share-based compensation
(i) Share option schemes

The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the share
option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of exercise
under the share-based compensation plans. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is the
fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at each
reporting period with any change in the cost recognised in the
consolidated income statement, with a corresponding credit or
adjustment to the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’ funds.
The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at the grant
date, is charged to consolidated income statement in accordance
with the terms of the vesting of the options over time. When the
options are exercised, the holding company will issue new shares
to settle its obligation, and transfer applicable amount from the
“Share-based compensation reserve” to the “Share capital”
account.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Share-based compensation (Continued)
(ii)  Share award schemes

For award shares under the Share Award Scheme, the amount
to be expensed as share-based compensation expenses is
determined by reference to the fair value of the award shares
granted, taking into account all non-vesting conditions associated
with the grants on grant date. The total expenses is recognised
over the relevant vesting periods or on the grant date if the shares
vest immediately, with a corresponding credit to the “Shared-
based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’ funds.

For those awarded shares which are amortised over the vesting
periods, the Group reviews its estimates of the number of award
shares that are expected ultimately vest based on the vesting
conditions at the end of each reporting period. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative amount recognised in prior years is
charged or credited to share-based compensation expenses in
the current year, with a corresponding adjustment to “Share-based
compensation reserve”.

Where award shares are acquired by the Share Award Scheme
from the market or by electing for scrip in lieu of cash dividends,
the total consideration of acquired from the market (including any
directly attributable costs) or under the scrip dividend scheme
is presented as “Shares held for share award scheme” and
deducted from total equity.

Upon vesting, the related costs of the vested award shares
purchased from the market and shares acquired from reinvesting
cash dividends or received under the scrip dividend scheme
(dividend shares) are credited to “Shares held for share award
scheme”, with a corresponding decrease in “Share-based
compensation reserve” for the purchased shares, and decrease
in retained earnings for the dividend shares.
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2.19

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or

constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely than

not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;

and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

WEZBEREETRE  FHZEETEZUELY Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
AIRE MR B 2 B RIERE RS REE - B fE R —48
RIEERER —EEEBIER 2t e 2R

N IR RLLERERR R

outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the
Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-
lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However,
for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable,

o variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date, if any

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees, if any

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party financing was received,

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does
not have recent third party financing, and

3 makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received,

3 any initial direct costs, and

U restoration costs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.22 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded from the
consolidated financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

2.23 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the
consolidated financial statements in the period in which they are
approved by shareholders.

2.24 Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of
acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks and other financial
institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and certificates of deposit
and investment securities which are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then
be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management
of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the
financial business, and operational risks are an inevitable consequence
of being in business. The Group’s aim is therefore to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk Management and
Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) under the authority delegated by the
Board oversees and guides the management of different risks which are
more particularly managed and dealt with by the Group Risk Division
(“GRD”) and different functional committees. In addition, Internal Audit
is responsible for the independent review of risk management and the
control environment.

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that also
covers the Group’s Risk Appetite framework. The Risk Strategy sets out
the core values and high level risk management direction of the Group,
taking into account the overall business strategy and direction, under
which a robust Risk Appetite framework is established to guide the
strategic planning process and strengthen the risk-return management.
Fundamentally, the Risk Appetite framework sets out the types and
amount of risk that the Group is willing to take in order to achieve its
business plan. The Group’s risk appetite metrics are composed of key
indicators for measuring capital, risks, return and liquidity and this is
supplemented by a set of risk tolerances made up of major risk limits
of the Group. In order to ensure that business is conducted within our
established risk appetite, monitoring on the compliance with the risk
appetite limits and risk tolerance is undertaken on a quarterly basis.
In this connection, the Group has set out its Risk Appetite Statement
that covers five key dimensions of the risks and returns of the Group,
namely, the target returns to shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency,
liquidity and other key risk measures. The GRD is responsible for the
ongoing monitoring of the compliance with the Risk Appetite Statement
and the regular reporting of the status to the RMCC and the Board.
Moreover, the Risk Appetite framework and major risk appetite limits
are subject to review by the RMCC and the Board on an annual basis.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk

and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of assets.
The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating short-term
funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while maintaining
sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its lending to
commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers appropriate
fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk and market
conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance sheet loans
and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees and other
commitments such as letters of credit, performance bonds and other
bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter (“OTC”) instruments, including
derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market movements in
equities and bonds and in currencies and interest rates. The Board
places trading limits on the level of exposures that can be taken in
relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging arrangements,
foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are normally offset by
entering into counterbalancing positions (including transactions with
customers or market counterparties), or by the use of derivatives,
thereby controlling the variability in the net cash amounts required to
liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in interest
rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate assets or
increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part of these financial
instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and the terms of
hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates, hedge period
and purpose are determined and documented at the inception of each
fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed at inception on a
prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing basis, based on
actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge relationships that do
not meet the effectiveness test requirement of hedge accounting are
discontinued with effect from the date of ineffectiveness of the fair value
hedge.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to changes
in the fair values of fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate debt
securities held in respect of a benchmark interest rate. Pay-floating/
receive-fixed interest rate swaps are matched to specific issuances of
fixed-rate liabilities or pay-fixed/receive-floating interest rate swaps are
matched to fixed-rate debt securities held with terms that closely align
with the critical terms of the hedged item.

Only the interest rate risk element is hedged and therefore other risks,
such as credit risk, are managed but not hedged by the Group. Interest
rate risk to which the Group applies hedge accounting arises from
fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate debt securities held, whose
fair value fluctuates when benchmark interest rates change. The Group
hedges interest rate risk only to the extent of benchmark interest rates
because the changes in fair value of an issued liability or debt security
are significantly influenced by changes in the benchmark interest rate.
Hedge accounting is applied where economic hedge relationships meet
the hedge accounting criteria.

Before fair value hedge accounting is applied by the Group, the Group
determines whether an economic relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument exists based on an evaluation of the
qualitative characteristics of these items and the hedged risk that is
supported by quantitative analysis. The Group considers whether the
critical terms of the hedged item and hedging instrument closely align
when assessing the presence of an economic relationship. The Group
evaluates whether the fair value of the hedged item and the hedging
instrument respond similarly to similar risks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group establishes a hedge ratio by aligning the par amount of the
fixed-rate debt security or issued liabilities and the notional amount of
the interest rate swap designated as a hedging instrument. Possible
sources of ineffectiveness are as follows:

(i) changes in market liquidity and bid-ask spread of the debt
securities;

(ii)  the fair value changes related to the benchmark rate before next
fixing date and on the fixed spread over the benchmark rate of
the interest rate swap;

(iiiy  changes in interest rate sensitivity at different fair value level;

(iv) the effect of the counterparty and the Group’s own credit risk on
the fair value of the interest rate swap, which is not reflected in
the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the change in
interest rate; and

(v) differences in maturities of the interest rate swap and the debt
securities held or the certificates of deposit issued.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

REBFRE T =2 HaF R @A T EE The Group held the following interest rate swaps as hedging

ZEHTA -

instruments in fair value hedges of interest risk.

Z|E A
2022%F12H31H 31 December 2022 Maturity
1R 1EE 5k

Less than Z5%  More than
E IR — F =@ Risk category — interest rate risk 1year 1-5years 5 years
BT BE-FRE Hedge of issued liabilities —

certificates of deposit
H{E Nominal amount 3,898,625 389,863 —
B E 2 Average fixed interest rate 3.17% 0.74% -
HhET s BEIAEES Hedge of issued liabilities — subordinated notes
H{E Nominal amount - 4,093,556 -
S [E R = Average fixed interest rate - 3.86% -
HHBEITZBE-BE Hedge of issued liabilities — borrowing
HE Nominal amount - - =
R E & Average fixed interest rate - = =
a2 WA FERT 2 A H# 8) Hedge of debt securities held at fair value
FFAHEAM R B AER through other comprehensive income
H{E Nominal amount 4,238,195 10,124,343 5,563,679
S [E E = Average fixed interest rate 3.94% 3.45% 3.34%
HEE 2 VB AT BRE Hedge of debt securities held at
BEIEES amortised cost

H{E Nominal amount 48,468 10,620,370 8,846,085
S E 2 Average fixed interest rate 4.52% 3.32% 3.12%
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3. HKERERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
31 EAEMIARM@ 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)
3.1 HERBEER MEEEZHTET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

A accounting (Continued)

FIRE R 2 A FEE @) Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

FH A
2021F12H31H 31 December 2021 Maturity
1F AR 1AL 5 A E

Less than 54 More than
[BL B 8 Al — ) R R Risk category — interest rate risk 1 year 1-5 years 5 years
BT BE-FRE Hedge of issued liabilities —

certificates of deposit
HE Nominal amount 6,111,217 389,833 -
S B E 2 Average fixed interest rate 0.41% 0.74% -
HhET s BEIEEES Hedge of issued liabilities — subordinated notes
H{E Nominal amount - 4,093,241 -
S E R = Average fixed interest rate - 3.86% -
BTz aE-E8 Hedge of issued liabilities —
borrowing
HE Nominal amount - - -
S E 2 Average fixed interest rate - - -
HihEE 2 WA ER 2 B % %) Hedge of debt securities held at fair value
FFAEMEEEEMESES through other comprehensive income
H{E Nominal amount 5,257,227 11,881,126 7,826,347
SR E Average fixed interest rate 3.76% 3.60% 3.41%
SRR 2 AR B BR A Hedge of debt securities held at
BEEHEH amortised cost

H{E Nominal amount 95,119 7,520,434 6,302,929
TS E E = Average fixed interest rate 4.63% 3.20% 3.38%
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as

follows:
2022
REE
GREBRREA
BELARE NS
REEZ M
BRZAYE
WhARRELR
it E0225 Accumulated
H%N  amount of fair value
BEEMPRRRAE HYHEE  hedge adjustments
ZHWERZDYE ZBVESE  remainingin the
HHERRELR Change in consolidated
Accumulated amount of GAmBRRRAES value subject to statement of
far value hedge adjustments HiER 288 hedge usedfor financial position
on the hedged item included Line item in the calculating hedge ~ for any hedged
KaE in the carrying amount consolidated statement ineffectiveness items that have
Carrying amount ofthe hedged item of financial position for 2022 ceased to be
gE gk &E &%  inwhichthe hedged #(F)  adjusted for hedging
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities  item is included Note (a) gains and losses
A - 4,228,983 - (59,505  BETHENE 41,608 -
Certificates of deposit Certificates of deposit
issued
R = 3,801,495 - (292,061) REEH 328,947 -
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
] - - - - BOER - -
Borrowing Deposits from banks
REJIDTESER 18,776,876 - (1,260,861) - NATEEEARS (1,923,889) -
PERINY ket STAE A2 E b
Debt securities held at Financial assets at fair
fair value through other value through other
comprehensive income comprehensive income
R BANRSIE 17,622,300 - (1,892,623) - DRI (1,792,343) -
Debt securities held at Financial assets at
amortised cost amortised cost
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3. HKEREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

31 ERAEMIARE@m 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

31 BEEBREERH WV ETEEZITET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
A accounting (Continued)

DEEE (@) Fair value hedges (Continued)

BRAEERYIMIER 22T « ()

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as
follows: (Continued)

86

2021
RaE
FRUBIMRRR
RSl
REB L
ERATE
Hr2RREes
A E2001F Accumulated
SBEM amount of fair value
BREHIFREREE BUREE  hedge adjustments
ZEPRRZLTE LATERY femaining in the
HRSIRAELR Change in consolidated
Accumuiated amount of BABBRRRNES value subject to statement of
far value hedge adjustments HWEE 2 EE hedge usedfor ~financial posttion
on the hedged item included Line tem inthe calculating hedge for any hedged
K inthe carrying amount consolidated statement ineffectiveness items that have
Carrying amount of the hedged item of financial position for 2021 ceased o be
43 L BE &  inwhichthe hedged #(F)  adjusted for hedging
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabiliies  item s included Note (a) gains and losses
B - 6,489,717 - (11333 BEINFHE 12,553 -
Certificates of deposit Certificates of deposit
issued
EER - 4,128,446 - BA5  HEEE 100,222 -
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
[F& - - - - BAER 4797 -
Borrowing Deposits from banks
WRZNATEHEEE 25,986,544 - 656,142 - ATEHSEEE (958,589) -
e A A 2E4ED A2 EERA
EBEs SHAE
Debt securities held at fair value Financial assets at fair
through other comprehensive value through other
income comprehensive income
R ZNBRIAT BN 14,134,481 - 216,000 - AEBEASIES (630,866) -
EfEs SHAE
Debt securities held at amortised Financial assets at
cost amortised cost

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,
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DFEH ()

BRABTEREMIAZIER REMRMZ A
T

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and
hedge ineffectiveness were as follows:

2022
RRGTE
A0E
g
ZATESE
Change in fair
valueusedfor  BRRREE
GREBRRRA calculating ZHREN
AEHRIALER hedge  Ineffectiveness
%EWE Line item in the consolidated  ineffectiveness  recognisedin ~ KERADEH AN
i Carrying amount statement of financial position for2022  profit(loss) 2EE
Norminal EE 8%  where the hedging instrument (%) F(R)  Line item in profit or loss that includes
amount Assets Liabilities is included Note (a) Note (a) hedge ineffectiveness

ek

Interest rate risk

FliE S - SingaE 4,288,488 - 60249 f7EERIA (41,976) (368) AATEHMNERSBIZ TR/

Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial instruments (B8)
hedge of certificates of deposit Net gain/(loss) arising from financial

instruments subject to fair value hedge

T8 - itk B 4,093,556 - 25718 fi42RIA (332,353) (3,406) RATEHMHABLBIZ G/

Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial instruments (E8)
hedge of subordinated notes Net gain(loss) arising from financial

instruments subject to fair value hedge

GIES - R - - - [ESRIA - - BATEHMNEBERIZZFAE/

Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial instruments (E#)
hedge of borrowing Net gain/(loss) arising from financial

instruments subject to fair value hedge
fixE-SibE 2 A TE 19,926,217 1,260,861 - [T4EERIR 1,923,860 (29) RATEIMOEBSRIAC TG/
SR AERGH ALMRERER Derivatives financial instruments (BE)
B Net gain/(loss) arising from financial

Interest rate swaps - hedge of debt instruments subject to fair value hedge
securities held at fair value through other
comprehensive income

FiEeD-UikhE i ER 19,514,923 1,893,831 1223 fHEERIA 1,792,359 15 AATENMOEESRIA TG/
ARSI EBES Derivatives financialinstruments (BE)

Inerest afe siwps - Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
hedge of debt securites held instruments subject to fair value hedge
at amortised cost

B Note:

() DREZIAERANZIEAFEEPERRLTE A (a)  The amount of hedge ineffectiveness recognised in profit/(loss) for each

WEHHIE RN ENNBEES LAY E 2 HHhT category of fair value hedges is the difference between the change in

i
AENAFEEHINERNZZR -

value of the hedged item subject to hedge in the current year and the
change in fair value of the corresponding hedging instrument in the current
year.
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMEBEREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 ERAEMIARE@m 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

31 FERBREER N ETEEZITET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
A accounting (Continued)

AT EE @) Fair value hedges (Continued)

ERAETE AL P T AZIEE R RM 2z 2B The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and

88

NRNC ) hedge ineffectiveness were as follows: (Continued)
2021
BnE
20015
HREH
LATERY
Change in fair
valugusedfor AR
AR D= calculating LERE
AAHHTAYER hedge  Ineffectiveness
G FEE t Lineteminthe consolidateg  Ineffectiveness — recognisedin  ypcag g &y
il amyng amoun statement of financial posiion fordft— profiffoss) g
Nominal BE B where the hedging instrument (%) (%) Line item in profit or loss that includes
amount Assets Liabilties ~ is included Note (2 Note &) hegge inefctiveness
iR
Interest rate risk
lERS-HnETE 6,501,050 5% 1,765 52RIE (12,720) (167 BATEMFHERSBIE PG/
Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial instruments (BE)
hedge of certificates of deposit Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge
FikEg-HitRERER 4,003,241 56,051 20007 (TEERIA (100,376) (154) BAFEMMHERCBTIAZRE/
Interest rate swaps - Derivatives financial instruments (B8
hedge of subordinated notes Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge
FIEEE-HniEE - - - (EERIA (4,726) M RATEHMERERIA ThE/
Interest rate swaps - hedge of borrowing Derivatives financial instruments (B8
Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge
RS- S IR TE 24,964,700 45289 701403 fTAE2EIA 951,568 (7021) RATEEANEELRIZ ThE/
SR AEREH AR ENER Derivatives financial instruments (BE)
EHES Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
Interest rate swaps - instruments subject to fair value hedge
hedge of debt securities held at fair value
through other comprehensive income
GIES-ERS Rl 13918482 159,256 514 fTEREITA 630,827 (39) BATEHROEBERIAZTNE/
BB ERE 5 Derivatives financial instruments (58)
Interest rate swaps -

hedge of debt securities held at amortised
cost

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,

Net gain/(loss) arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge
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3.1 FFERBEERY P EFEEZITLET
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The following table contains details of only the hedging instruments

used in the Group’s hedging strategies which reference USD LIBOR

and have not yet transitioned to SOFR or an alternative interest rate

Fl s ELAE o benchmark.
2022
ARGTEE RN RITRIRZE
MEHEEZ FiaH=
BREE DNTEZS BELEMN
Carrying amount Change in fair HE
value used for Notional
EE EEEERER calculating  amount directly
Nominal BE &f& Balance sheet line hedge impacted by
amount Assets Liabilities item(s) ineffectiveness IBOR reform
AT EHH
Fair value hedges
Flk
Interest rate
F|Zim H 37,060,431 2,370,262 320,968 HHHTATR 2,845,901 34,327,198

Interest rate swaps

Rt 7 37,060,000,000 3 7T T & Y F & 7 23
F o HAR2,733,000,00078 ST A5 A FEET2023F 55 —
ZTREHNERETMIEITRIZERBFZFT

H o

Hedging derivatives

Of the HK$37,060 million nominal amount of interest rate swaps

replacement in Q2 2023.
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3. HHEERREEm)
3.2 FERMK

AEFBZIBEERBRAERAXRZHF REE
BITHAEEZEREE - WEREVRAERE
HeEFRKEERD URheRIAZES (B
TTHETA) -

AEERAEREEEZRE([RHEEZES))
BEMEREANEERRMD - FEEEEZER
g((EEEEZEe D EMERRERREZES
(ITERKERREZER ) IRONABEHFE
REMEEB 2 EERRREREEHAZEER
g ZELREERTTRAHREERRAEET
ITRYAETHTEERSREBREEAERR
B o EERREE - AR - HEERMERZ R EE
FHIMMEEBEA e

AEENREEREESEUNEERR - 58
WERARBECEEBRRAREZZ2E A L E
ARBEREREANBLETE 2 B85 R -
BEE FEZREeGERRITETHMERER
EHEERRMA EEREREELR - A%
B E XA EE AR EBEZAEREER
BER - 2R MR E RSB AR -

AEBECHRTERREBEY T AEEZNEH
MBERERF - TEHETEERR - AERHE
EFGHE S EENS  RERBEBRETH
ARER -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,
and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee (“GCC”) for approving major
credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee (“CMC”) and the
Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”) are the committees
responsible for credit policy formulation and portfolio monitoring of the
loan and treasury businesses respectively. These committees have
been chaired by the Chief Executive or Group Chief Risk Officer with
certain Executive Directors and senior business and credit officers
as members. Credit risk measurement, underwriting, approval and
monitoring requirements are detailed in credit policies.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis. Credits
are extended within the parameters set out in the credit policies and are
approved by different levels of management based upon established
guidelines and delegated authorities. Credit exposures, limits and asset
quality are regularly monitored and controlled by management, credit
committees and GRD. The Group’s internal auditors also conduct
regular reviews and audits to ensure compliance with credit policies
and procedures, and regulatory guidelines.

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval and
review of new products and activities, and credit policies with details of
the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and impairment policies.
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TMISERAEEFESAG RN ZEINER

il
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FORTTANOREMELEERAELERZE
#) o BERP Y BB IR K (BRI ARE Y -

I

MEEEBME - FEFRREFAEEAETE -
EPFRESRFBEERIMNENCENXHE
BAGEFETEETRTOBSIA - 4t - &
FREYEFFREREPIMERAZHBER
RIEFBEBERAZEEEER - KB ERER
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement

Credit risk grading

The Group uses internal credit risk grading that reflects the credit
quality of the borrowers. The Group uses internal credit grading
scorecards tailored to the various categories of counterparty. The credit
grading scorecards take into consideration borrower and loan specific
information collected at the time of application (such as disposable
income, and level of collateral for retail exposures; and financial
indicators and qualitative indicators for corporate exposures). For retail
exposures, this is supplemented with internal data such as delinquency
status and external data such as credit bureau scoring information
on individual borrowers. In addition, the scorecards enable expert
judgement from the credit risk officer to determine the final internal
credit grade for each exposure. This allows for considerations which
may not be captured as part of the other inputs into the scorecards.

The following are additional considerations for each type of portfolio
held by the Group:

Retail

After the date of initial recognition, for personal unsecured lending of
retail business, the likelihood of default is monitored on a periodic basis
by behavioural score. This score is mapped to a Probability of Default
(“PD”).

Corporate

For corporate business, the credit grade is determined at the borrower
level. A relationship manager will incorporate any updated or new
information/credit assessments into the credit grading scorecard on an
ongoing basis. In addition, the relationship manager will also update
information about the creditworthiness of the borrower every year from
sources such as borrower’s financial statements. This will determine
the updated internal credit grading.

Using the internal observed default rate supplemented with external

default data, and by applying statistical methods, PD master scales are
calibrated to arrive at the PD for each credit grade.
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3. UHBEREE@®
32 FEARM®
321 FEREEE @)
EEREMBTR ()

HE

BRAMERRMYMISHEE N2 EBES KRR
ZEBAERAINEFERBZEETFR - ZF
MR TFEEERERH - BRI ZERRL
AT BB R M 2B TERE -

322 BHISEERIE

HBMBREERFZIREM B VSRR EEEE
BEXREHMIBURE 3R R - Hifiutan
T~

s RUMGHERESFEEERENERTAD
*Eﬁﬂ%%ﬂ IREGEERRHASESEE

c HERTARIRAEERRBTIERERR
RiE(MEERBAREEMN]) - ANEEE
E[RER2]) BINREREEEERIE

. HeMTABSKRREREERE AT
BRI E R3] -

. 1SR AZEMEEBERIBENE
AE12EANTT R EE 2 BN EMBIBZ
E2HEHMEREERIONSRTE - BER2
S EBR3z TARRIEE AR EE A
SEER -

. REESMBREENZHARENEE
BiEN— A B2 R EE BT A
B o

o BAREZEEREZREERZEFRTY
MERRFEEEREZEREE - HIEH
EEBRE-—EREHMHEEAE (RS -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

Credit risk grading (Continued)

Treasury

For debt securities and interbank exposures under the Treasury and
Global Markets portfolio, external rating agency credit grades are used.
These published grades are continuously monitored and updated. The
PDs associated with each grade are determined based on default rates
published by the rating agencies.

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement

HKFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for impairment based on
changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:

o A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial
recognition is classified in “Stage 1” and has its credit risk
continuously monitored by the Group.

J If a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”) since initial
recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to
“Stage 2” but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

o If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is then moved to “Stage 3”.

. Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that
result from default events possible within the next 12 months.
Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on
expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

o A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with
HKFRS 9 is that it should consider forward looking information.

. Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those
financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition.
Their ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

The following diagram summarises the impairment requirements under
HKFRS 9 (other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial

assets):
BRI EFEEZEE
Change in credit quality since initial recognition
< >
PEER 1 PEER 2 PEER 3
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
(VR FER) (FERR B MmnHERERIEEIMN) (FERESE)
(Initial recognition) (Significant increase in credit risk (Credit-impaired assets)
since initial recognition)
121 A i e AE B &8 > HFEHEEEE 2R HEEER
12-month expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses Lifetime expected credit losses

AN SR B B AR T ER AN 2 3 B A B R R AR st 40
T~

3221 EERERKIEE N

ERANT—ERSRRABARERALRT
BB R EE AR

BEFEAME - EIBEEFRLREKN
THEE - AIRERFIEBREIFRERT
FBERRARIFER R 2 EF TRE—RK

. HREREEAME @ ERREEFRLRE
g REBEEVREETR R—REARZ
i

« EB#MAZ((BHMAR)EBE30X

c  BEXHEAME  EERACDE2B/A/[ER

ZR )

. EERACHBACREER(BERE
BDZEFABE2RSFHET - D BEZE
HRZRTETHRIERA 2 BB R AERIZ 5
HFZEKFREN -

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group in
addressing the requirements of the standard are discussed below:

3.2.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk

The Group considers a financial instrument to have experienced a
SICR when one or more of the following criteria have been met:

o when there is significant adverse external credit rating transition
for the bond portfolio, migrating from investment grade to non-
investment grade, or one notch downgrade for bond with original
non-investment grade at purchase

. when there is internal credit rating transition, ranging from one
notch to five notches depending on its initial credit rating, for
corporate portfolio

o when the day past due (“DPD”) exceeds 30 days

. when the borrower is reported as “Early Warning” for corporate
portfolio

o when the borrower is reported as Special Mention according
to the loan classification of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA”). The decision to classify the loans is based on
the borrower’s repayment ability and likelihood of individual
counterparties defaulting.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3.2.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed on a monthly basis at a portfolio
level for all retail financial instruments held by the Group. In relation to
corporate financial instruments, where an Early Warning list is used to
monitor credit risk, this assessment is performed at the counterparty
level and on a monthly basis. The criteria used to identify SICR are
revised as when appropriate by the respective credit departments of the
portfolios.

The Group has not used the low credit risk exemption for any financial
instruments in the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

3.2.2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a financial instrument as in default, which is aligned
with the definition of credit impaired (referred to as “Stage 3 financial
assets”), when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

. significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

o a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

o the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that
the Group would not consider otherwise;

3 the borrower is bankrupt;

. it is reported as substandard, doubtful or loss according to the
loan classification of the HKMA. The decision to classify the loans
is based on the borrower’s repayment ability and likelihood of
individual counterparties defaulting; and

o the disappearance of an active market for a security because of
financial difficulties.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets (Continued)

A loan that has been renegotiated due to deterioration in the borrower’s
condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless there
is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has
reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. In
addition, a retail loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is considered
credit-impaired.

3223 Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month (“12M”) or Lifetime basis
depending on whether a SICR has occurred since initial recognition or
whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired. Expected credit
losses are the discounted product of the PD, exposures at default
(“EAD”), and loss given default (“LGD”), defined as follows:

. The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on
its financial obligation (as per “Definition of default and credit-
impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (“12M PD”), or
over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime PD”) of the obligation.

o EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed
at the time of default, over the next 12 months (“12M EAD”) or
over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime EAD”). For example, for
a revolving commitment, the Group includes the current drawn
balance plus any further amount that is expected to be drawn
up to the current contractual limit by the time of default, should it
occur.

o LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss
on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty,
type and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other
credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of
exposure at the time of default. LGD is calculated on a 12-month
or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of loss
expected to be made if the default occurs in the next 12 months
and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made
if the default occurs over the remaining expected lifetime of the
loan.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3223 Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each
future month and for each individual exposure. These three components
are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.e.
the exposure has not prepaid or defaulted in an earlier month). This
effectively calculates an ECL for each future month, which is then
discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate
used in the ECL calculation is the original effective interest rate or an
approximation thereof.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the
current 12M PD. The maturity profile looks at how defaults develop on
a portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the lifetime of
the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical observed data and is
assumed to be the same across all assets within a portfolio and credit
grade band. This is supported by historical analysis.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the expected
payment profile, which varies by product type.

o For amortising products and bullet repayment loans, this is
based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrower
over a 12-month or lifetime basis. This will also be adjusted
for any expected overpayments made by a borrower. Early
repayment/refinance assumptions are also incorporated into the
calculation.

. For non-revolving products, the exposure at default is predicted
by taking current drawn balance and adding a “credit conversion
factor” which allows for the expected drawdown of the remaining
limit by the time of default.

. For revolving products, the EAD is estimated by taking the
maximum between the on-balance sheet exposure and the
estimated utilised amount at default based on utilisation rate.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3223 Measuring ECL — Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors
which impact the recoveries made post default. These include collateral
type and projected collateral values, historical discounts to market/book
values due to forced sales, time to repossession and recovery costs
observed.

Forward-looking economic information is also included in determining
the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. Refer to Note 3.2.2.4 for
an explanation of forward-looking information and its inclusion in ECL
calculations.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation, such as how the
maturity profile of the PDs and how collateral values change etc., are
regularly monitored and reviewed.

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate
forward-looking information. The Group has performed historical
analysis and identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit losses for each portfolio.

These economic variables and their associated impact on the PD, EAD
and LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert judgement has also been
applied in this process. Forecasts of these economic variables (the
“base economic scenario”) are provided by some economic research
institutions and the in-house economic research team on a regular
basis and provide the best estimate view of the economy over the next
five years. For the economic variables out of the forecasting periods (i.e.
after the next five years), the point-in-time default risk level at the last
forecasting period is referenced to estimate the lifetime default risk level
of each instrument. The impact of these economic variables on the PD,
EAD and LGD has been determined by performing statistical regression
analysis to understand the impact changes in these variables have had
historically on default rates and loss rates.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed by considering either the change
in credit quality, expert credit judgement and backstop indicator. This
determines whether the whole financial instrument is in Stage 1, Stage
2, or Stage 3 and hence whether 12-month or lifetime ECL should be
recorded. Following this assessment, the Group measures ECL as
either a probability weighted 12-month ECL (Stage 1), or a probability
weighted lifetime ECL (Stages 2 and 3). These probability-weighted
ECLs are determined by running each scenario through the relevant
ECL model and multiplying it by the appropriate scenario weighting.

ECL model refinements

In 2022, the COVID-19 pandemic had led to rapid deterioration in
business conditions and unprecedented economic uncertainty, which
had affected the performance of ECL models since it is a rather
exceptional event that was beyond historical observations of the model
setting. Coupled with market’'s concern on the PRC property developer
sector as well as the rapid rise in interest rates, there were challenges
to model performances as the ECL estimates could be overly sensitive
in response to such interplay of abrupt changes in macroeconomic
factors and market environment. To properly reflect asset quality of the
credit portfolios under such conditions, the Group continued to conduct
various portfolio reviews and performed statistical analysis to assess
reasonableness of ECL model outputs and come up with refinements, if
considered necessary.

Against such background, refinements were made on a few
macroeconomic factor inputs used in ECL models as forecasts of those
factors given by reputable macroeconomic forecast agencies would
lead to movements in ECL requirements that was not substantiated
by the prevailing economic environment as well as results of internal
assessments and analysis mentioned above. The relevant ECL impact
arising from the movements of those macroeconomic factors had been
moderated accordingly for end-December 2022 position.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Management judgments and overlay

By the end of 2021, considering the concern on credit deterioration
of the PRC property developer sector, a rather exceptional event that
was beyond historical observations of the model setting rather than
a general portfolio phenomenon, the Group imposed considerable
amount of management overlay on the outputs of ECL models in order
to cater for the unexpected credit losses arising from certain PRC
property developers. Relevant exposures to these concerned PRC
property developers had been downgraded during 2022 and therefore
the management overlay imposed had been materialised into part of
the ECL provision requirements for the year.

Apart from the above, the Group imposed management overlay on the
ECL model output for the vehicle finance portfolio for end-Dec 2021
position, taking into account the potential impact on certain borrowers
that relied on the Government’s Pre-approved Principal Payment
Holiday Scheme if the Scheme came to an end. As the Government
extended the Scheme to end-Jul 2023, such overlay was maintained
for end-Dec 2022 position. This overlay merely accounted for 0.18%
of total outstanding for the vehicle finance portfolio at end-Dec 2022
position.

By the end of 2022, Mainland China has moderated its zero-COVID
policy and the HKSAR Government started to ease the social
distancing measures, including border restrictions. Economic activities
are expected to pick up. However, rising interest rates, depending
on the pace and the magnitude, added uncertainties to the economic
recovery. Besides, development of the PRC property developer is to
be further observed. Against this background, the Group continued to
adopt appropriate assessment and risk management procedures in
the measurement of ECL, including review of credit portfolios, different
macroeconomic forecast scenarios, reasonableness of the outputs of
ECL models, and adequacy of ECL allowances.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions

The Group relies on a broad range of forward-looking economic
indicators as model inputs, such as the forecasts of macroeconomic
factors (“MEFs”) such as property price indices, GDP growth rates,
unemployment rates, and interest rates. The selection of MEFs had
gone through stringent statistical data tests commonly adopted by the
industry as well as expert judgements to ensure that MEFs used in
the ECL models are relevant to and reflective of the risk profile of the
Group’s credit portfolios while satisfying required quantitative standards.
The scenarios “base”, “good” and “bad” were determined based on the
underlying assumptions described in the below table. In particular, the
“base” scenario makes reference to a set of macroeconomic forecasts
obtained from different economic research institutions and the Group’s
economist. “Good” and “bad” scenarios were developed by referencing
the MEFs in the “base” scenario, with appropriate adjustment to the
upside and the downside potential variations taking into account
the uncertainties in the forward-looking economic environments.
The magnitude of adjustment were quantified based on historical
movements of the MEFs observed through a long span of observed
data covering peaks and troughs of past economic cycles.

Scenario Underlying assumptions of the scenario

Base Forward-looking macroeconomic factors are a key
component of the macroeconomic outlook. The base
scenario is based on a set of macroeconomic forecasts
which formulate a “base case” view of the most probable
future direction of relevant economic variables.

Good This scenario is determined by making reference to the
“base” scenario and reflects positive uncertainties by
incorporating upside variations to the “base” scenario
macroeconomic forecasts.

Bad This scenario is determined by making reference to the
“base” scenario and reflects negative uncertainties by
incorporating downside variations to the “base” scenario
macroeconomic forecasts.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)
Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

Members of the CMC as well as department heads of risk units put
forth their most holistic view on the likelihood of occurrence, enabling
the Group to generate forecasts of economic factors and the forward-
looking PD and LGD. To have further professional review and
reasonableness checking, the Group’s economist provided his overall
view on whether the collective forecasted outcome is generally in line
with his expectation. As a stringent measure, the summarized outcomes
will be submitted to the CMC for final approval. These forward-looking
PD and LGD are then used as input parameters in the expected credit
loss model.

Significant period-end assumptions used for the ECL estimate are set

out as below.
5 HAATRE P19 B 1 HA AR
Average of 5-Year One-Year
7R2022F12H31H As at 31 December 2022 Forward-Looking  Forward-Looking
BB HAEERERKE Hong Kong GDP Growth EHig Base 1.8% 0.9%
(BHH) Rate (%) Rif Good 7.4% 6.5%
TR Bad -3.8% -4.7%
BEBEEWEERS Hong Kong Residential Property & Base 2.0% -3.9%
EEEH (AL Price Index Change (%) RiF Good 25.2% 19.3%
TR Bad -21.2% -27.1%
BEKRER(BHL) Hong Kong Unemployment Ht Base 2.9% 3.3%*
Rate (%) B#T  Good 2.3% 2.3%*
TR Bad 5.2% 5.6%*
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3. HMEBEREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

322 HAEEEEE @) 3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 MATEHIEEBBAER 2 At ER @) 3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)

AR EEE BT (E) Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

ST HARTIE T 1988 14F BRATHE
Average of 5-Year One-Year
M20215F12H31H As at 31 December 2021 Forward-Looking Forward-Looking
EBAMEERBLRE Hong Kong GDP Growth H Base 2.0% 2.3%
(BADt) Rate (%) Rif Good 7.6% 7.9%
TR Bad -3.6% -3.3%
EBEEYEER Hong Kong Residential Property Base 5.5% 7.4%
BHEH(ADL) Price Index Change (%) RiF Good 28.8% 30.6%
TR Bad -17.7% -15.8%

BEBAKREX(BDLE) Hong Kong Unemployment Ht Base 3.1% 3.9%*
Rate (%) Rif Good 2.3% 2.3%*

TR Bad 5.4% 6.2%*

* ZEVFRATEMEN ERK1FH IR THR * These one-year forward looking rates represent forecast average rates for

= one year.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

The average weightings assigned to each economic scenario, “base”,
“good” and “bad” are as follows.

20224 20214F

12H31H 12H31H

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

HifE Base 71% 66%
Ruf Good 14% 12%
TR Bad 15% 22%

BB RRIA R M5 S A B 2 HAn AR i
ERER(PINEMEE  SERBARD 2
) ERRAEEAYE - RUBHESHEYE
RS IR R E R R REE
A -

FERHEEBREANZRIERRMOT
() REXR - ERESEEMREERERARE
TTRMENRENNTE

(i) AEAERREX EREHQRESLEM
mibENEATE &

(i) EEREY  ERNEHRISEFHEM ARG
ENERTE -

Other forward-looking considerations not otherwise incorporated within
the above scenarios, such as the impact of any regulatory, legislative
or political changes, have also been considered, but are not deemed
to have a material impact and therefore no adjustment has been
made to the ECL for such factors. This is reviewed and monitored for
appropriateness on a quarterly basis.

Sensitivity analysis

The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL allowance are as
follows:

(i) Unemployment rates, given its impact on secured and unsecured
borrowers’ ability to meet their contractual repayments;

(i) GDP growth rates, given the significant impact on companies’
performance and collateral valuations; and

(iiiy  Property price indexes, given the significant impact it has on
mortgage collateral valuations.
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3. HKERERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

322 HAEEEEE @) 3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3224 MAEHEEBBRER AT ER @) 3224 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)

R T () Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
UTAREREASENCEZEHRETHER Set out below are the changes to the ECL that would result from
BREMEABE LS HMNESE L BTG reasonably possible changes in these parameters from the actual
EEBRERBITE assumptions used in the Group’s economic variable assumptions:
=5 Retail
EHEEFBENEE
ECL Impact
2022 2021
KEX Unemployment rates +1% 86,867 34,658
-1% -13,103 -9,092
EEBEERE GDP growth rates +0.5% -4,610 -5,772
-0.5% 4,701 5,890
S ESIEEEEE Property price indices +5% -4,228 -1,004
-5% 8,360 7,061
(= Corporate
EHEEBFENEE
ECL Impact
2022 2021
KEX Unemployment rates +1% 35,288 31,412
-1% -32,079 -27,843
EEBEERE GDP growth rates +0.5% -7,129 -6,485
-0.5% 7,417 6,763
UE SEREEET Property price indices +5% -7,254 -3,804
-5% 10,049 8,834
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3. HHEERREEm)
3.2 EERMRm@®)
3.2.3 HEBE R RIZSIEEZHE

AEBECRENERARRZSE FEE - TEHL
ERREEREEREBEST Z2ER - RIE

ERAERZEFEE  TEXERZBEERAR

BE  ERERBAAMAEERE S EHIER -

BRAIRZGHFEB &S ERERZAER
RREETE - MITEZBE E'Jﬁﬁi%%fm,\?ﬁAf/ﬁ*E*E
HETXEERENOR - BRZBEETHI2EH
RETREH R FEFAMRE - AR
TOHEESEEZE A TENES -

AEENEER - RAKEERR - & WIUER
miEREEBENTER - SEFETETAFRM
EEZXSHTFEERR  AEBERGIEITET
RAEEHTFAREZSRME  BRACEYZT
SEPNEESEIEMRZEE  MESTET
AHFZEERR - AREEEZEE2E @5
HF2MBRENREEFTR - BRER S BEE
ZBEERITET A MEREEEAE - &
ZERRBERI AR REBEEEREELX
FRTENEEBRA - 313271 38 61 HE R 155K
AREARENEAR BRYKEMREREE
PRt RIEETTERE - THREEERENR
18-

SRR EARMFEUR M NARSSBMZ BEAE B
ERANEEREEE - AEELS &Hﬁﬁﬁﬁ
EBENBEN - Bl WEARETTHAKERE
KEXREERR

FIEEERE  ERmAGHRIERR - BIURR
EPHAZZUFHEEEN Ren8BikE
BREEN o

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and control
concentration risk with respect to individual borrower or counterparty
group, industry or country. Exposure limits by borrower or counterparty
group, industry or country are in place and their exposures are
monitored and reported to credit committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are capital
based while the limits for industry are relative to the size of the overall
credit portfolio and bounded by regulatory limit. Country limits are also
set up with reference to the sovereign credit rating from international
credit rating agencies. All these limits aim to achieve a more balanced
portfolio.

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will obtain
collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control credit risk
exposure to counterparty arising from derivative positions, the Group
limits its derivative dealings with approved financial institutions, and uses
established market practices on credit support and collateral settlement
to reduce credit risk exposure to derivative counterparties. Overall
credit risk limit for individual financial institution counterparty, including
valuation limit for derivatives, is approved by the GCC with reference to
the financial strength and credit rating of individual counterparty. The
acceptable types of collateral and their characteristics are established
within the credit policies, as are the respective margins of finance.
Enforceable legal documentation establishes the Group’s direct,
irrevocable and unconditional recourse to any collateral, security or
other credit enhancements provided.

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice, the Group would assess the necessity to
withdraw the credit line in cases where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not expose the Group
to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are based

upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile, cashflow position
and ability to repay.

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

105



iR e SRR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.
3.2

B AR SR ®)
EERKE @)

3.2.3 BRI R R FEFIREE 2 BR (#)

(F) BERRBX

REE LS ERRNE MDA
KB FRH A Z IR RS
=3

BRERERER
o BRI MR

o« HEAYE:

o HEMEXBEEMREEREWE

. EHeT ENESEFMNBRE

° EIRFR
. EHRRE o
Uboh - BAREERE S| EERA B2 @5

BERMBZLINRENSRE  SEEMmER
HREEIMNEIFRAREEERL

(2) EBES

B¥XeRmIAAAMAEREERRZEER
MEZLFERTAN  BHEFLBEERE
B A
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3.2

323

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(a) Loans and advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral for securing loans and advances. The principal
collateral types are:

o Mortgages over properties;

. Charges over business assets such as premises and
accounts receivable;

. Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities
and equities;

. Charges over deposits; and

J Charges over shares.

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will, where
possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower as soon as
impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual loans and
advances.

(b) Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured, with
the exception of asset-backed securities and similar instruments,
which are secured by portfolios of financial instruments or
underlying assets.
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32 FEARGM®
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(c) Derivatives

All counterparty credit risk for derivatives trading are managed
as part of the credit risk control and monitoring process in
respect of the counterparty including credit controls such as
setting individual limit for valuation risk, daily settlement limits
and performing periodic credit assessment. Moreover, the
Group requires derivative contract counterparties to enter into
International Swaps and Derivatives Association Agreement or
analogous master agreement in order to follow the standardised
market practice of close-out netting arrangement in the event of
default or early termination and in accordance with the regulatory
requirements.

Collateral arrangements with most counterparties are also
in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these

counterparties.

3.2.4 Write-off policy

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has
exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include (i) ceasing enforcement
activity and (ii) where the Group’s recovery method is foreclosing
on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering in full.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to
enforcement activity. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
outstanding amounts of financial assets written off before completion
of enforcement activity of the underlying collaterals was HK$9 million
(2021: HK$13 million). Please refer to Note 3.2.9 for the total amount
of loans and advances to customers, loan commitments and financial
guarantees with or without collateral held by the Group written off in
2022 and 2021.
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(LA™ F7Thi57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMHBERMEE=

3.2 FERMRm@m)

)

325 K AFEZHEHin A MISEIZF AT
ZREFEEEE

TREZEMTANEERBRZON - TI2E

EENKREE S2EBRENI T AEEZSE

ERMEEZRHERERR

(1) ZAfEREFENEREE

2022512H31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements

The following tables contain analysis of the credit risk exposure of
financial instruments. The gross carrying/notional amount of financial
assets below also represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk on these assets.

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment

At 31 December 2022
BEE/ %528

Gross carrying/notional amount

RiEE
BREE  RBIMUT FiEEE
E% Special Sub-standard &t ECL FE
Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
ROMBBRRER Balance and placements with banks 26,432,036 - - 26,432,036 14591 26,417,445
~FEE - Stage 1 26,432,036 - - 26,432,036 14,591 26,417,445
—[E2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
-B&3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
PYNTIHEEES-EIHIN Debt instruments at fair value through
EpzAlanERTA other comprehensive income 39,775,573 - - 39,775,573 48275 39,727,298
- - Stage 1 39,697,600 - - 39,697,600 47,645 39,649,955
-FEE2 - Stage 2 77,973 - - 77,973 630 77,343
—[83 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
IBSRATRNESTA Debt instruments at amortised cost 32,985,496 - - 32,985,496 59,406 32,926,090
—B&EH - Stage 1 32,985,496 - - 32,985,496 59,406 32,926,090
—[&82 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—-B&3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
REETREH Loans and advances to customers 132,178,461 1,812,898 2,539,012 136,530,371 1,636,402 134,893,969
3 - Stage 1 123,617,447 - - 123,617,447 406,618 123,210,829
S Y ~Stage 2 8561014 1,812,898 - 10373912 42731 10,031,181
—-FEEx3 - Stage 3 - - 2,539,012 2,539,012 887,053 1,651,959
555 Trade bills 3,666,988 - - 3,666,988 5,570 3,661,418
—R&en - Stage 1 3,665,808 - - 3,665,808 5,569 3,660,239
—[EE2 - Stage 2 1,180 - - 1,180 1 1,179
—[£E3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
B HE R EMEER Accrued interest and other accounts 4,102,480 11,806 70,319 4,184,605 25,193 4,159,412
BB - Stage 1 4,077,962 - - 4,077,962 10,169 4,067,793
-Rg2 - Stage 2 24518 11,806 - 36,324 2,238 34,086
-R&E3 - Stage 3 - - 70,319 70,319 12,786 57,533
EFAERBBER Loan commitments and financial
guarantees 74,563,798 33,167 10,125 74,607,090 98,973 74,508,117
~FEE - Stage 1 71,765,299 - - 71,765,299 89,684 71,675,615
V) - Stage 2 2,798,499 33,167 - 2,831,666 9,289 2,822,377
~[83 ~Stage 3 - - 10,125 10,125 - 10,125
At Total 313,704,832 1,857,871 2,619,456 318,182,159 1,888,410 316,293,749

ERBUITEERES  EIRAATES 2

Az

SPARMEmRENER TE A

ELRENBREEGFETESAENE

HiEERE -
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For the purpose of this disclosure, notional amount of debt
instruments at FVOCI and the associated ECL allowance
maintained in investment revaluation reserve are presented.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

At 31 December 2021

REE/ 25LE

Gross carrying/notional amount

BHEE
BRET  ORBSUT BEER
% Special  Sub-standard =) ECL et
Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
BITHERRER Balance and placements with banks 16,548,044 - - 16,548,044 8428 16,539,616
—[EE - Stage 1 16,548,044 - - 16,548,044 8,428 16,539,616
—[E2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—[&83 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
AATEEEAHEFHA Debt instruments at fair value through
: Jﬁ@%ﬂﬁﬁ%zﬁl\ other comprehensive income 40,301,303 - - 40,301,303 41,165 40,260,138
—[EE - Stage 1 40,301,303 - - 40,301,303 41,165 40,260,138
— g2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—[B&3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
KB ATRAEETA Debt instruments at amortised cost 24,561,302 - - 24561302 30,116 24,531,186
—P&e1 - Stage 1 24,561,302 - - 24,561,302 30,116 24,531,186
—-R&e2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—-B&3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
EPERREBH Loans and advances to customers 141,659,998 1,255,174 1,398,836 144,314,008 1,370,047 142,943,061
~FE&1 - Stage 1 131,413,203 - - 131,413,208 469,184 130,944,019
—RREx2 - Stage 2 10,246,795 1,255,174 - 11,501,969 354,154 11,147,815
—FRE3 - Stage 3 - - 1,398,836 1,398,836 547,609 851,227
85 Trade bills 4,253,850 - - 4,253,850 7,347 4,246,503
L3 - Stage 1 4,253,340 - - 4,253,340 7,347 4,245,993
~E52 - Stage 2 510 - - 510 - 510
—[&&3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
BRI R EMmEEE Accrued interest and other accounts 5,202,515 4,408 69,575 5,296,498 25,558 5,270,940
- - Stage 1 5,210,645 - - 5,210,645 11,298 5,199,347
V) - Stage 2 11,870 4,408 - 16,278 489 15,789
—[&E3 - Stage 3 - - 69,575 69,575 13,771 55,804
BRERIBER Loan commitments and financial
guarantees 76,041,645 40,878 46,227 76,128,750 120,604 76,008,146
—[EE - Stage 1 73,678,288 - - 73,678,288 114,783 73,563,505
17, - Stage 2 2,363,357 40,878 - 240423 5821 2398414
463 - Stage 3 - - 46,207 46,207 - 46,207
= Total 308,588,657 1,300,460 1,514,638 311,403,755 1,604,165 309,799,590
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3.2

325

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

The credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Retail

Class 1 “pass”, which covers loans that are current or within 30
DPD.

Class 2 “special mention”, which generally covers loans with
31-90 DPD.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which generally covers loans
that are more than 90 DPD.

Corporate

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal
loan grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are
current in meeting commitments and for which the full repayment
of interest and principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which
borrowers are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to
credit losses to the Group if the deterioration in loan quality
cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13
of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in
which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely
to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and
the Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest; or
loans that are considered uncollectible after all collection options
have been exhausted.
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)
Treasury
Class 1 “pass”, which covers exposures to counterparties with

internal credit rating of BB- or above.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers exposures to
counterparties with internal credit rating of B+ to B-.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers exposures to
counterparties with internal credit rating of CCC+ or below.

(2) Financial assets not subject to impairment

BREE
Gross carrying amount
2022 2021

BIEEERGHEE Trading assets

—EBES — Debt securities 562,161 4,425,384

—{THET R — Derivatives 746,544 360,405
HHRPTAET A Hedging derivatives 3,154,692 260,651
AT EE B EEEH ABED Financial assets at fair value

TREE through profit or loss

—REES — Investment funds 9,303 14,119
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HKERERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

325 Kt ABFEZBEFm A AMIEEIEFAT 3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
ZREBEEREE ® or other credit enhancements (Continued)

REB 2 EERPAIBE TSI fEE — B a1 - The results of credit performance of the Group can be further assessed

with reference to the following:

. HEFZHEAN B IRIBER T AERRRZ . Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
B’e . portfolio, are backed by collateral;

. EERECEFPEREBRIEEFPER KR . Loans and advances to customers that are credit-impaired
TRAAFAM1.86%(20214F : 0.97%) & constituted 1.86% (2021: 0.97%) of the total loans and advances

to customers; and

. BT 75 I B Ath 5 548 & 1 72% (20214 - . 72% (2021: 73%) of the investments in debt securities and other
73%) & VIEA-EERA - bills have at least an A- credit rating.
326 BEXREY 3.2.6 Loans and advances
EEERRBFEMNT Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:
2022 2021
BER BT EEE Gross loans and advances 136,530,371 144,314,008
k- REEERTE Less: total impairment allowances (1,636,402)  (1,370,947)
FEE Net 134,893,969 142,943,061
EERBEZEREBR Credit-impaired loans and advances 2,539,012 1,398,836
Bk« RS REER Less: Stage 3 impairment allowances (887,053) (547,609)
HEE Net 1,651,959 851,227
BERRRATE" Fair value of collateral held* 1,056,118 758,124
EEREEFEBRERFER Credit-impaired loans and advances as
MR BREE DL a % of total loans and advances to
customers 1.86% 0.97%
* EIFRAFEDREERSMERERREESL * Fair value of collateral is determined at the lower of the market value of
% MERREAEET ° collateral and outstanding loan balance.

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HKEREEm 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

326 EARBH @) 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

TRIRIEE BRI RAR 2 RMEEED BIE The table below shows the percentage of impairment allowance as a
ERRBRZEDH - percentage of loans and advances for each of the three broad internal

rating classes.

2022 2021
WEEE AR
HEMREREE IHERGRE
ADL Ant
BEXRBHKR Impairment EHNEHK  Impairment
B2tk allowance as Bkt allowance as
Loans and a % of Loans and a % of
advances loan balance advances loan balance
% % % Y%
487 Class
1—-1E® 1 - pass 96.8 0.4 98.1 0.5
2—FFRlEE 2 — special mention 1.3 15.3 0.9 8.2
3—IRAIAT 3 — sub-standard or below 1.9 34.9 1.0 39.2
100.0 1.2 100.0 1.0
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HXRREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

326 EFREB5 &) 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(F) BRERMBRELENFSNESER
BEZEFERRBR

Loans and advances to customers that are credit-
impaired under HKFRS 9

(a)

EEREER RN AR N AN E BT
PRz HRERR D FERERDTIT

The analysis of the gross amount of credit-impaired loans
and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related
collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:

BEERR
Jlioeik RE%ER BREIE AFE
Gross  Impairment Carrying  Fair value of
2022%12A31H At 31 December 2022 exposure allowance amount collateral held
EEREZER Credit-impaired loans
TEAER Loans to individual:
—fERAFR — Credit cards 14,176 11,991 2,185 -
—RIBEN — Mortgages 254,376 52,170 202,206 219,655
—Hth — Others 340,231 168,771 171,460 43,633
PEER: Loans to corporate entities:
—BHER —Term loans 1,566,736 569,768 996,968 498,002
—RIBER — Mortgages 109,328 6,608 102,720 108,734
-EF8E — Trade finance 106,092 35,465 70,627 43,726
—Hth — Others 148,073 42,280 105,793 142,368
EEREZEREE Total credit-impaired loans 2,539,012 887,053 1,651,959 1,056,118

114 X#RITERAT 20226 F
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SRR Y R

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Loans and advances to customers that are credit-

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

BExEFERRERE impaired under HKFRS 9 (Continued)
FEERD
R\ EE BEER FEE ANTHE
Gross Impairment Carrying  Fair value of
2021F12H31H At 31 December 2021 exposure allowance amount collateral held
EEREZER Credit-impaired loans
AAER : Loans to individual:
—ERR — Credit cards 17,250 14,749 2,501 -
—RIBER — Mortgages 204,192 37,027 167,165 181,543
—Hfth — Others 367,247 167,404 199,843 58,139
PEER: Loans to corporate entities:
—BHER — Term loans 254,374 116,752 137,622 158,756
—RBER — Mortgages 111,170 10,032 101,138 105,930
—EBomE — Trade finance 267,908 142,939 124,969 93,559
—Hfth — Others 176,695 58,706 117,989 160,197
EEREBEEREE Total credit-impaired loans 1,398,836 547,609 851,227 758,124
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMBEREE@®
3.2 FERB@
326 EF KRB &)
(2) BE3EANLZERRER

(i) BEKIEEESAEH

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)
(b) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(i) Gross amount of overdue loans

2022 2021
BEREE EEAAREE
BERBHE B iR
Gross Gross
amount 1h#azE amount of Ih4a%E
of overdue ADL overdue At
loans % of total loans % of total
REBEPERRER Gross loans and advances to
4A%E - EH customers which have been
overdue for:
—3fE A LA LZ=6MEA — six months or less but over
three months 535,376 0.39 103,435 0.07
—6EANLEE1F — one year or less but over
six months 987,443 0.72 126,868 0.09
—1F L E — over one year 332,525 0.25 583,423 0.40
1,855,344 1.36 813,726 0.56
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMERBREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.6 EARB @) 3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)
(2) BH3EAULZERRER(E (b) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
(Continued)
(i) BHKEEEFRBLZHE (i) Value of collateral held and impairment allowances
EHER IR E against overdue loans and advances
ERR B £
REBHEE RmE BHm  EFRmRRE P& ER3
Outstanding Current  Fr&EIHG EETG WEEE
amount of market Portion Portion not Stage 3
loans and value of covered by covered by impairment
2022%12H31H At 31 December 2022 advances collateral collateral collateral allowances

BmMEIR(EERFS  Overdue loans and

BB advances to customers 1,855,344 1,715,178 888,975 966,369 632,380
ERRER I am

NEEEER WhE Hifm  ERmARee FEER3

Outstanding Current  FTAIEER S AAEE SEE Y

amount of market Portion Portion not Stage 3

loans and value of  coveredby coveredby impairment

2021%12A31H At 31 December 2021 advances collateral collateral collateral  allowances

BEIREE®EFS  Overdue loans and

BRRER advances to customers 813,726 888,796 456,744 356,982 350,828
BAEZERREZAERER - 128 Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits,
W2 N B HR L At [E FE B EE DR o mortgages over properties and charges over other fixed

assets such as equipment.

(A) REAER(EHIKRERFEELLZA (¢) Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in
HER) overdue advances shown above
L4z 14258
Eladed AL
2022 % of total 2021 % of total
BREERKER Loans and advances to customers 339,249 0.25 350,761 0.24
PEER SR B Stage 3 impairment allowances 123,023 141,673
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMBEREE@®

32 FEARM®

327 BB E

20224 20214128318 » WEE AR B3(E
REVE SRR ©

3.2.8 WEIH#in
RERFEZWEERBAT

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.7 Trade bills

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, there were no
balance of trade bills that were overdue for more than 3 months.

3.2.8 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

2022 2021

AENHYE Nature of assets
IR ES Repossessed properties 125,262 208,090
Hh Others 5,560 1,090
130,822 209,180

WEHERRZATERAERKE - BURIERN
IEA B Z fERAREERT -

i 51 7] # 38 48 {8 4 59,356,000 7% JT (2021 4F
64,984,000/ 7T ) Z 1 B A Y B T H Ab ¥ 2 -
ThZ S BRI o B A b A B MM 2 R S T AT 18 A
PR M R B - SRR IR A2 WA 202 [ K
MEEIBTHREBLEEZEE - HEZERE
AR ERER -

118  K¥RITER AT 2022F F

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the borrowers
concerned.

Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a total estimated
realisable value of HK$59,356,000 (2021: HK$64,984,000), which had
been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to orders
issued by courts in the Mainland China, represent assets held by the
Group for resale and have been reported under “Other assets” in Note
29. The relevant loans had been derecognised.



3. HHEERREEm)
3.2 EERMR@m
329 EEERE

TRBRIZE BV BRE LR FEIRA LB ILMHER

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.2.9 Loss allowance

fra M ERR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s ECL

CEPERNBR - BFGREMYEER 2 FER allowances for loans and advances to customers, loan commitments
EEBEEBENEE and financial guarantees by stage under HKFRS 9.
Z2€ Retail
P& X1 P& ER2 P& ER3 &t
BHEE BEHEE BHEE HHEE
ER%ER ER%ERE EE%ERE ERER
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL ECL
allowance allowance allowance allowance
2022F1A1AH At 1 January 2022 365,825 36,230 219,180 621,235
@15 - Transfers:
BB Transfer to Stage 1 5,676 (5,676) = —
BR R Transfer to Stage 2 (4,498) 4,975 (477) -
HEERES Transfer to Stage 3 (20,511) (13,099) 33,610 -
mMEREY REESBMEL Y Effect of stage transfers and
%4 changes in allowance (845) 7,615 266,461 273,231
HIRERE « BEASHERR New financial assets originated,
ZEREE purchased or derecognised during
the period 36,837 7,516 (7,197) 37,156
EBHHAE /EHIBRE /4 Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward
RRAE AN BRI 2 looking assumptions (81,337) 5,403 31,178 (44,756)
RRIE( Model enhancements - = = =
RRIRBAER Unwind of discount 409 502 68 979
g4 Write-offs - - (309,891) (309,891)
HNE e H fth 2 Foreign exchange and other movements (163) - - (163)
2022%12A31H At 31 December 2022 301,393 43,466 232,932 577,791
20211 A1H At 1 January 2021 401,256 40,967 229,706 671,929
8% Transfers:
B ERER Transfer to Stage 1 8,357 (7,664) (693) -
BB ERE2 Transfer to Stage 2 (3,776) 3,776 - -
BB ERES Transfer to Stage 3 (17,919) (14,019) 31,938 -
B BREY LEEEBMEL L Effect of stage transfers and changes in
% allowance (2,482) 1,823 262,336 261,677
HRETRE - AR New financial assets originated,
JEREE purchased or derecognised during
the period 43,011 8,046 (964) 50,093
BRFAE BINBKRE /EH  Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward
FBRAE /B NERR 28 looking assumptions (71,549) 1,478 (15,510) (85,581)
RREL Model enhancements 8,406 1,437 (712) 9,131
FRRREER Unwind of discount 502 371 30 903
sy Write-offs - - (286,951) (286,951)
NE R E th Foreign exchange and other movements 19 15 - 34
20214 12A31H At 31 December 2021 365,825 36,230 219,180 621,235
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMERBREE@ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 EERRE@m) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
329 ERER @) 3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)
¥ Corporate
P B P ER2 PEFER3 a&t
BHEE HHEE HHEE HHEE
ERER EE%ERE BERES EEEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL ECL
allowance allowance allowance allowance
2022F1A1H At 1 January 2022 218,142 323,745 328,429 870,316
8% Transfers:
BB ERE Transfer to Stage 1 7,275 (6,111) (1,164) -
BB ERER? Transfer to Stage 2 (19,004) 19,004 - -
BB ERES Transfer to Stage 3 (1,795) (81,831) 83,626 -
RIERE LEEEMEL P2 Effect of stage transfers and
changes in allowance (3,481) 20,174 505,434 522,127
HRERE - A SRR New financial assets originated,
ZEREE purchased or derecognised during
the period 23,306 (16,342) (39,442) (32,478)
BUHAE /BIELE /E4EKR Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward
AIE /BRI RRER 2 & looking assumptions (28,716) 50,246 44,493 66,023
RREL Model enhancements - - = —
ARIRALR Unwind of discount 84 1,422 127 1,633
i34 Write-offs - - (267,340) (267,340)
HNE R Efth 2 Foreign exchange and other movements (1,265) (1,753) (42) (3,060)
2022%12A31H At 31 December 2022 194,546 308,554 654,121 1,157,221
202141518 At 1 January 2021 231,418 176,984 326,802 735,204
[P Transfers:
BB Transfer to Stage 1 12,518 (12,518) - -
BB R Transfer to Stage 2 (10,761) 10,761 - -
BEEIRERS Transfer to Stage 3 (384) (3,997) 4,381 -
AR EY RS HTEL 2 ¥ 2 Effect of stage transfers and
changes in allowance (7,637) 16,300 34,781 43,444
HRERE  BASHEERZ New financial assets originated,
PREE purchased or derecognised during the
period 71,228 (3,082) (35,501) 32,645
B RE /BH)IELE /EHER Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward
A /BRI MR 28 looking assumptions (41,787) 159,350 74,678 192,241
EREL Model enhancements (87,011) (22,085) - (59,096)
i) Unwind of discount 237 1,509 51 1,797
s Write-offs - - (77,503) (77,503)
ONGE J% o fth Foreign exchange and other movements 321 523 740 1,584
2021%12A31H At 31 December 2021 218,142 323,745 328,429 870,316
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HXERREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

329 EEEHE @) 3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

TREBHIRE B GRS ERIF o5 AR E IR & ER The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s gross exposure
ZREBBEEFPERIRRCEHERERE (in terms of the aggregate of carrying amount of loans and advances
ARV FREROEEDE) LR - to customers and notional amount of loan commitments and financial

guarantees) by stage under HKFRS 9.

=€ Retail
P ER1 P Er2 P ER3 &t
kB EkEsE R RAEE Rk EE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
exposure exposure exposure exposure

2022%1A1H At 1 January 2022 111,759,893 448,842 588,688 112,797,423
&% Transfers:
BB Transfer to Stage 1 76,020 (76,020) = =
BB ERER Transfer to Stage 2 (344,783) 349,174 (4,391) -
BB ERES Transfer to Stage 3 (347,038) (93,907) 440,945 -
MIARER -« AR LFER - E— 2 Origination, derecognition, further

BRRER lending and repayment (2,715,075) (78,721) (106,318)  (2,900,114)
HisH Write-offs - - (309,891) (309,891)
HNE R E 2 Foreign exchange and other movements (158,115) - (250) (158,365)
2022%12A31A At 31 December 2022 108,270,902 549,368 608,783 109,429,053
20211718 At 1 January 2021 108,823,021 460,323 614,711 109,898,055
&% Transfers:
BB ERE Transfer to Stage 1 77,250 (70,801) (6,449) -
BB ERER Transfer to Stage 2 (261,588) 261,588 - -
BEEIRERS Transfer to Stage 3 (328,740) (84,431) 413,171 -
TIeHER - RILER - E—F Origination, derecognition, further

ERRER lending and repayment 3,437,537 (117,918) (145,794) 3,173,825
HisH Write-offs - - (286,951) (286,951)
HhEE R E o & Foreign exchange and other movements 12,413 81 - 12,494
20214128314 At 31 December 2021 111,759,893 448,842 588,688 112,797,423
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HHEERREEm)
3.2 EERMR@m)
329 EEEE @)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

f1=E4 Corporate
P Ex1 P FR2 PEER3 &t
EB4EEE R AR B4R B4R
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
exposure exposure exposure exposure
2022F1A1H At 1 January 2022 93,331,598 13,457,362 856,375 107,645,335
B Transfers:
BB Transfer to Stage 1 1,289,871 (1,287,410) (2,461) -
BB Transfer to Stage 2 (4,974,097) 4,979,117 (5,020) -
B ERES Transfer to Stage 3 (827,604) (823,332) 1,650,936 -
TIRHER - RILHER  E—F Origination, derecognition, further
BEFRER lending and repayment (1,858,687)  (3,640,620) (287,024)  (5,786,331)
k| Write-offs - - (267,340) (267,340)
HNE R E Foreign exchange and other movements (167,061) (28,907) (5,112) (201,080)
2022%12A31H At 31 December 2022 86,794,020 12,656,210 1,940,354 101,390,584
20211718 At 1 January 2021 92,043,595 13,166,661 959,383 106,169,639
A Transfers:
B R Transfer to Stage 1 1,619,588 (1,619,588) -
BB Transfer to Stage 2 (4,317,741) 4,319,007 (1,266) -~
BY SRS Transfer to Stage 3 (176,151) (50,799) 226,950 -
TR « R ILHER - E— 5 Origination, derecognition, further
ERRER lending and repayment 4,080,324 (2,369,406) (253,623) 1,457,295
iz Write-offs - - (77,503) (77,503)
HNE R E A Foreign exchange and other movements 81,983 11,487 2,434 95,904
2021412A31H At 31 December 2021 93,331,598 13,457,362 856,375 107,645,335

MERSBRRE RAERITHES KA A
BEt AHME2EKE

FIRRBIA R

WEBIE - AFUA

b2 EREMER T

B1gEB=

R20214F - BEHEHESE

EREREE -

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,

FEEEES
NFEFFEAHESE
®{577,973,0007% JT F &
B E 18 E R R EL
JE 1722021 4512 A 31 B £972,00008 7T fn &= 7
2022412 A31 H#630,000/8 7T « Hith D EEFE
BN EHEERNFNERRER -

B

FX e

[EER2 - FEET1E

DREREBRIRREA

FEAE

with no stage transition during the year.

Treasury portfolio, which consists of cash and balances with banks
and debt instruments at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income. Of which, debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income with notional amount of HK$77,973,000
was transferred from Stage 1 to Stage 2 with an increase in ECL
allowance from HK$72,000 as at 31 December 2021 to HK$630,000 as
at 31 December 2022 due to stage transition. Others are classified in
Stage 1 without stage transition during the year.

In the year 2021, the whole Treasury portfolio was classified in Stage 1



fra M ERR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HXERREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.10 EHEH

TRIITRMN20224F 2021412 A31 BRI et

EE 2RI 2 BB S

3.2.10 Debt securities

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating

agency designation at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

DRAEE
STEREHEE
STAHRMRE
WENEREE LABR R BY 25
Financial 5l AR Y
assets at SRIEE
BHIEEE fair value Financial
ABEE through other assets at
Trading comprehensive amortised =
2022%12H31H At 31 December 2022 assets income cost Total
AAA AAA - 3,127,926 - 3,127,926
AA-EAA+ AA- to AA+ 562,161 10,208,949 6,440,778 17,211,888
A-EA+ A-to A+ - 15,630,609 15,806,959 31,437,568
BRIREERA- Rated but lower than A- - 8,975,053 7,449,315 16,424,368
REFH Unrated - - 3,288,444 3,288,444
A&t Total 562,161 37,942,537 32,985,496 71,490,194
AATE
STERHE
FFARMEE
W e /& E VABEERAK R
Financial 5 BRHY
assets at CREE
FEER fair value Financial
Ra&E through other assets at
Trading  comprehensive amortised A&t
2021912A31H At 31 December 2021 assets income cost Total
AAA AAA - 1,391,800 284,131 1,675,931
AA-ZEAA+ AA-to AA+ 4,425,384 11,184,459 3,619,580 19,229,423
A-ZEA+ A-to A+ - 17,985,700 12,256,623 30,242,323
BRTRBERA- Rated but lower than A- - 7,688,494 4,689,472 12,377,966
RAEFR Unrated - 3,093,701 3,711,496 6,805,197
A&t Total 4,425,384 41,344,154 24,561,302 70,330,840
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HXRREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 =ERR@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

N1 MFEEEEREZ2HEEZREET 3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit
EE risk exposure
() B (a) Geographical sectors
EFERERBFRzREDTHIRBEEZER Loans and advances to customers by geographical area are
fRiE%ie 2 BERAPMEM DI - — RS - classified according to the location of the borrowers after taking
EERNERFEREERATRZ R, into account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies
B - RS EER o when an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area

which is different from that of the borrower.

TRABFPERRBFEEIZRE ST o The following table analyses gross loans and advances to
customers by geographical area.

20224 20214
12A31H 124318
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

REER R ETE Gross loans and advances

to customers

— &% — Hong Kong 115,764,347 121,821,903
— - China 5,983,130 7,615,412
— BP9 — Macau 13,466,387 13,778,604
— A — Others 1,316,507 1,098,089
136,530,371 144,314,008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit
risk exposure (Continued)

(b) Industry sectors

Gross loans and advances to customers by industry sector

1 classified according to the usage of loans
2022 2021
EEBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THEE Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEEERE — Property development 5,194,440 5,467,229
—MERE — Property investment 21,406,840 19,253,002
— SR E — Financial concerns 2,564,573 4,661,129
—RELL — Stockbrokers 842,926 1,642,984
—HEETEE — Wholesale and retail trade 4,825,599 5,401,435
—BER — Manufacturing 1,954,317 1,987,035
—Ew RERRE — Transport and transport equipment 2,247,726 2,269,160
— 2 EE) — Recreational activities 79,708 59,895
—EFRH — Information technology 22,048 59,058
—HAth — Others 6,054,928 6,970,986
45,193,105 47,771,913
A Individuals

—BEIEEEHEEMS] -
[MAZEEEFS R
[MAEEHEFS BTEN

—BEHMEEMEER

—ERRER
—Hftb

EEBEANER
HHRE (1)
HEEBAIMERBER(GE(2))

— Loans for the purchase of flats in
Home Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector Participation
Scheme and Tenants

Purchase Scheme 484,470 529,218
— Loans for the purchase of other

residential properties 33,911,826 33,473,466
— Credit card advances 3,674,222 3,670,096
— Others 12,181,304 13,105,677

50,251,822 50,778,457

Loans for use in Hong Kong 95,444,927 98,550,370
Trade finance (Note (1)) 5,752,611 8,123,088
Loans for use outside Hong Kong

(Note (2)) 35,332,833 37,640,550

136,530,371 144,314,008
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HHEERREEm)
3.2 EERMRm@m)

W MEEEEREZSHEES REEER
BE @)

(2) 173

BB —RITRR BN HE 05 (#)

(1) LNRZBESBRERDEEESERE
HZ BRI Mo BATEED - HOM
BONBE URERESRESZER -

THREB2EIMEER(BIFEARET
ZEINRITHBRARBR T ZESHmME) &
16281,123,0007% 70 (2021 F 12 A31 8 :
485,128,000/ 7T ) 7 SBR[ £ BB LAIME
AMERIET -

(2 [EFBMIMEANERIBERTEER
FREFEAIMERZEK -

3.3 WmEER

MG R T e T 5 LR R RERAFE M3
HHEE BEMEEABRIMFEZERAR -

BERXHZMZRBREOBESE AREERE
REZEGRMERRERRZESRESEERT
ZRENMEZ S RARRBENIESINEE - &
MR ERIZAE S EEIA RS Em MR AR E IR
E o RERBGEESTRREDR  LARE -
RN RERTSRARBE(TSRREE] 2
EE-MBESRTSARNEERETEGHRK
MEARK - EEER 2 EREEREZR( R
R TE MBS RR 1) D — A L 2 [ IR R
B aELBERMEFIREE - ABZH - 5
B EELEEZERRNEZEARTHERR
FRWMBRHERZKFEAR - HATFARES
MEBERBEBREREFEABEREE-ME
LEFERBREZES  RREERGRZESGRE
FeEa NE -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit
risk exposure (Continued)

(b) Industry sectors (Continued)

Gross loans and advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans (Continued)

Note:

(1)  Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong
and merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant
guidelines issued by the HKMA.

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
finance extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of the Bank)
totalling HK$281,123,000 (31 December 2021: HK$485,128,000)
are classified under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

(2)  Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.

3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet positions arising from adverse movements in market rates and
prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, the
RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from the Board.
Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by products and
by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise a combination of
notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls. All
trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation. The Risk
Management and Control Department (“RMCD”) within the GRD, as an
independent risk management and control unit, identifies, measures,
monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved limits and
initiates specific actions to ensure positions are managed within an
acceptable level. Any exceptions have to be reviewed and sanctioned
by the appropriate level of management of TIRC, RMCC or the Board as
stipulated in the relevant policies and procedures.
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3. HHEERREEm)
3.3 ThiEEMR@m)

RRITZHBARRPIFERITRMNDAERAF
(MRFIEMZERTT RAFHRT(PE)BRQE
(TRFRIT(PE) DREBEE —EBERBMBUR
REARRITREZTHEREZERANTER
TZMERS - ARIT 2 AREE R EEIER
RERPIEERITRAMBIT(PEDMELEZ
IR - RS B RREE EER RS
[F 2710 B B IR — 5

AEBEREHEEERMRITRZTISRRER T
Az EiR BRI A2

331 FEEERZ TS EE

AEBEZEERA - EINE - BFES ol
ERMTETAZBEEFAPHFETSEAR -

(F) mEERTEE®

ERTERRER  AREEAZEXRY
BIRAZ A EMISER MIEHTH S AR
MREZARBEHEN - TERARFTER
EEMIS AR 2T EIARMNT

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of the Bank, run their
treasury functions locally under their own set of limits and policies and
within the market risk management framework set by the Bank. The
RMCD of the Bank oversees the market risk arising from the treasury
operations of BCM and DSB China to ensure that the risk controls put
in place are commensurate with their businesses and consistent with
the Group standards.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures
in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking books.

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.

(@) Market risk measurement technique

In the management of market risk, the Group measures market
risks using various techniques commonly used by the industry
and control market risk exposures within established risk limits.
The major measurement techniques used to measure and control
market risk are outlined below.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(a)

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i) Value at risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses as the maximum amount the Group might lose
given a certain level of confidence, which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the use of VaR does
not prevent losses outside the VaR limits in the event of
extreme market movements.

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period” (one
day in the case of the Group) until positions can be closed.
It is calculated based on the current mark-to-market value
of the positions, the historical correlation and volatilities
of the market risk factors over an observation period of
one calendar year using a method known as historical
simulation approach.

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are
reported to senior management.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and reviewed
by the Board and its delegated committees at least annually
for all trading positions and allocated to business units.
Actual exposures, including VaR, are monitored against
limits on a daily basis by RMCD. Average daily VaR for
the Group for all trading activities during the year was
HK$3,388,000 (2021: HK$1,379,000).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

() miERBTESE@) (a) Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i) BT A (i) Stress tests
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Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by RMCD include: risk factor stress testing,
where stress movements are applied to each risk category;
and scenario stress testing, which includes applying
possible stress events to specific positions or portfolios.
Besides, the expected shortfall of the trading portfolio
is measured to evaluate the expected size of extreme
trading loss beyond a specified confidence level and over a
longer holding period. In addition, reverse-stress tests are
performed as a useful tool to evaluate the maximum size of
market stress that the Group can endure before hitting the
prescribed tolerable levels.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
and its delegated committees regularly.

(2) mERBERE (b) VaR summary of trading portfolio
EZ2022F128318 L1284 B E2021F12A31 A 1L12{E A
12 months to 31 December 2022 12 months to 31 December 2021
£ BE RIE 15 53] =&
Average High Low  Average High Low
SINGE 2 fix Foreign exchange risk 1,660 3,113 262 966 3,362 273
SN Interest rate risk 2,393 5,844 511 834 4,124 211
-l All risks 3,388 6,132 653 1,379 4,317 413
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3. HKERERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 WHRR@ 3.3 Market risk (Continued)

332 FEMITARZ H5EE 3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book
REBZIRITERF  misRAREEREREH R In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated
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(a) Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board and its delegated committees, various limits,
guidelines and management action triggers are established to
control the exposures of the Group’s banking book activities
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. In
particular, position and sensitivity limits and price triggers are
in place to control the price risk of the investment securities. In
addition, sensitivity analysis and stress testing (including reverse-
stress testing) covering shocks and shifts in interest rates on the
Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions and credit spreads
on the Group’s investment securities are regularly performed
to gauge the market risk inherent in the Group’s banking
book portfolios and manage it against the established control
measures.

VaR methodology is not used to measure and control the market
risk of the banking book.

(b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions are
normally matched against other customer transactions or
transactions with the market. Foreign exchange exposure
of the non-trading portfolio in respect of MOP and RMB
arise mainly from the operation of overseas subsidiaries in
Macau and Mainland China. The net exposure positions
including the trading and non-trading portfolios, both by
individual currency and in aggregate, are managed by the
Treasury and Global Markets Division of the Group on a
daily basis within established foreign exchange limits.
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)
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Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice versa, is
normally matched using foreign exchange forward contracts
to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2022, if HK$ had weakened by 100 basis
points against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$27 million higher (2021: HK$39 million higher), mainly
as a result that the foreign exchange gain on translation of
RMB denominated financial assets outweighed the foreign
exchange losses on translation of RMB denominated
financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 100 basis points
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$27 million lower (2021: HK$39 million lower).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with the guidelines set out by the HKMA in
its Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) on Interest Rate
Risk in the Banking Book (“IRRBB”). From an earnings
perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the net income
arising from future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
From an economic value perspective, interest rate risk is
the risk that the economic value of a financial instrument
will undergo adverse impact because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on interest rate risk from
both perspectives in the banking book. As such, the
interest margins or net interest income and the economic
value of the capital may increase or decrease as a result of
such changes or in the event that unexpected movements
arise. The Board and the Asset and Liability Management
Committee (“ALCO”) set limits on the level of mismatch of
interest rate repricing that may be undertaken and monitor
the interest rate impacts through scenario analysis and
stress testing regularly.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(2) FBFEEERRESZHBED @) (b) Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(i)  FEEE &)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
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At 31 December 2022, if HK$ and US$ market interest
rates had experienced a 200 basis points parallel up shock
under the HKMA'’s standard parallel up scenario, with other
variables held constant, the impact on earnings over the
next 12 months and the impact on economic value of equity
would have been HK$335 million higher and HK$670
million lower respectively (2021: HK$78 million higher and
HK$727 million lower respectively).

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity
analysis on foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are
broadly on the same basis for both 2021 and 2022.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the Group’s
investments in debt securities and equity securities are also exposed
to risks arising from other factors. Consequently, the value of such
investments could change significantly depending on a variety of factors
including liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events that might
affect individual or portfolios of exposures.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.3 Currency risk

The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities as well as off-balance sheet net notional positions and credit
commitments translated into equivalent HK$ amounts, categorised by

134

currency.
B E bk AR Het &t
20221278318 At 31 December 2022 HKD UsD MOP RMB Others Total
EE Assets
B QAN ER Cash and balances with banks 9,396,640 401,962 521,291 2,294,409 5,186,578 17,800,880
EFMER2EANTIH Placements with banks maturing between
0N one and twelve months 5,839,272 - - 2,277,134 500,159 8,616,565
BEEERBNES Trading securities 562,161 - - - - 562,161
WRT{EE A AR Financial assets at fair value through
SABRKEREE profit or loss - - - 9,303 - 9,303
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 153,112 3,568,584 - 2,716 176,824 3,901,236
RBEHREMEE Advances and other accounts 110,168,456 13,449,728 7,846,916 8,453,351 2,796,348 142,714,799
WATEE BEZEEHA Financial assets at fair value through
H2ENENEREE other comprehensive income 9,061,417 28,956,363 324,521 131,374 144,176 38,617,851
NERK RTINS REE Financial assets at amortised cost 4,154,888 25,098,193 1,141,293 2,355,588 176,128 32,926,090
SREERS Total financial assets 139,335,946 71,474,830 9,834,021 15,523,875 8,980,213 245,148,885
a8 Liabilities
RIER Deposits from banks 422,926 3,689,567 - - - 4,112,493
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 59,048 828,542 - 11,551 98,496 997,637
BEEBRAMEE Trading liabilities 730,491 - - - - 730,491
XPEA Deposits from customers 129,107,899 39,154,310 9,257,422 13,042,834 9,240,130 199,802,595
BEINESE Certificates of deposit issued - 4,228,983 - - - 4,228,983
BEES Subordinated notes - 3,801,495 - - - 3,801,495
HipfRE LR Other accounts and accruals 3,039,134 4,317,747 192,617 316,402 49,129 7,915,029
SRERAH Total financial liabilities 133,359,498 56,020,644 9,450,039 13,370,787 9,387,755 221,588,723
BEBERABRTE Net on-balance sheet positions 5,976,448 15,454,186 383,982 2,153,088 (407,542) 23,560,162
EERRRIMEREERE Off-balance sheet net notional
positions* 16,463,860  (15,923,280) - (1,099,191) 647,607 88,996
EERE Credit commitments 59,473,558 7,503,748 2,160,921 5,092,322 376,541 74,607,090

* BEBBRIMGAEAZFEEIZANREARE
EISNERB R INESRIDTE T AR EERFHE

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,

*

Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional

amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which are

principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)
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BT e RFTE AR HAh A3

20214124318 At 31 December 2021 HKD usb MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
B RESRTOER Cash and balances with banks 5,628,784 1,254,288 633213 2395923 2095545 12,007,753
EFMEL2EANTIH Placements with banks maturing

NER between one and twelve months 2,875,840 233,899 2117 888,863 531,144 4,531,863
FIEEERENES Trading securities 4,425,384 - - - - 4425384
WATEEAAEY Financial assets at fair value through

SABRNEREE profit or loss - - - 14,119 - 14,119
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 50,869 474,485 - 11,457 84,245 621,056
ZEERREMES Advances and other accounts 111991639 19419500 8268922 10,976,296 1804,147 152,460,504
WATESr=BAZEHA Financial assets at fair value through

L2 ERRNEBEE other comprehensive income 9,166,063 31,560,955 36,986 140,751 528981 41433736
INBSRATENEREE Financial assets at amortised cost 2149266 19,494,130 970,094 1,729,294 188402 24,531,186
SREEA Total financial assets 136,287,845 72437257 9911332 16156703 5232464 240,025,601
A& Liabilities
RIER Deposits from banks 64,147 1,377,614 - 259,937 1,499 1,703,197
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 50,424 1,298,004 - 6,628 70,309 1,425,365
BIEEERENEAR Trading liabilities 1,511,927 - - - - 1,511,927
EPER Deposits from customers 126,669,518 38,997,385 9,550,077 14,048,506 7,756,955 197,022,441
BEIHEHE Certificates of deposit issued 200,057 6,389,660 - - - 6,589,717
BEER Subordinated notes - 4,128,446 - - - 4,128,446
HipfRE LR Other accounts and accruals 4,497 371 1,344 551 142,879 508,395 43,390 6,536,586
LREREA: Total financial liabilities 132993444 53535660 9,692,956 14823466 7,872,153 218,917,679
EERRRNERTE Net on-balance sheet posttions 3,204,401 18901507 218376 1333237 (2,639,680) 21,107,922
BEBERIMEEREFE Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 17,201,973 (19,767,365) - (240,501) 2,630,250 (175,649)
EERE Credit commitments 62,398,672 7,579,705 2,294,001 3,749,471 106,901 76,128,750
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate risks.
Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at
carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or

maturity dates.

3EAKE
38R 2E 10 E
FUT Over 256 5EN L Tita
3 months 3months  Over 1 year Over  Non-interest &i
2022%F12431A At 31 December 2022 or less to 1 year to 5 years 5years Bearing Total
EE Assets
B¢ RERTHAR Cash and balances with banks 16,088,163 - - - 1,712,717 17,800,880
ERME120HRREH Placements with banks maturing
NER between one and twelve months 5,856,264 2,760,301 - - = 8,616,565
? (FEERGMES Trading securities 545,165 6,438 10,558 - - 562,161
ARTEFEEHEY Financial assets at fair value through
qu/\T,E\ﬁﬁE’Jﬁmﬁéﬁ profit or loss - - - - 9,303 9,303
fTEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 3,901,236 3,901,236
Xlﬁ% FREMERE Advances and other accounts 122,130,082 4,962,885 8,510,503 2,910,738 4,200591 142,714,799
UATEFEEEEHHA Financial assets at fair value through
H2ENENEREE other comprehensive income 6,690,905 6,158,337 20,117,460 4,975,835 675,314 38,617,851
Lkﬁﬁﬁﬁkzkﬁ‘ﬁmimﬂﬁ? Financial assets at amortised cost 2,969,264 3,210,135 19,153,704 7,590,998 1,989 32,926,090
SREEA Total financial assets 154,279,843 17,098,096 47,792,225 15,477,571 10,501,150 245,148,885
af Liabilities
BT Deposits from banks 3,411,424 - - - 701,069 4,112,493
fESBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 997,637 997,637
BEEBEREMEE Trading liabilities 730,491 - - - - 730,491
KPR Deposits from customers 132,723,417 48,958,085 2,406,598 - 15,714,495 199,802,595
BEINGNE Certificates of deposit issued 814,917 3,049,142 364,924 - - 4,228,983
BEER Subordinated notes - - 3,801,495 - = 3,801,495
HifR A kTR Other accounts and accruals 738,548 101,529 295,877 101,148 6,677,927 7,915,029
SREEA Total financial liabilities 138,418,797 52,108,756 6,868,894 101,148 24,091,128 221,588,723
FEHBERSH (REHE) Total interest sensitivity gap
(unadjusted)* 15,861,046  (35,010,660) 40,923,331 15,376,423
ARTETEGHzEE Effect of interest rate derivative
contracts 29,990,577 689,839  (16,153692)  (14,526,724)
FEHRERSH (KRR) Total interest sensitivity gap
(adjusted)* 45851623 (34,320821) 24,769,639 849,699
* AERENEBREERDREERBRAREM . Unadijusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of on-
BENFRESET - KFABNEBBEEEA balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap takes
SRS R R L TR M R OTE T EA KM into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered into to
Ro mitigate interest rate risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk (continued)

3fEAMNE
3faA E 1E L
AT Over 5% 5L F T&E
3 months 3months  Over 1 year Over  Non-interest A3

2021512318 At 31 December 2021 orless to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
RERERONES Cash and balances with banks 9,375,410 630,420 - - 2,001,923 12,007,753
ERMZ12[E AR Placements with banks maturing

MR between one and twelve months 1,768,274 2,763,589 - - - 4,531,863
FIEEERENES Trading securities 2248385 2,164,714 12,285 - - 4425384
YN HEEE ) Financial assets at fair value through

SABGRNERAE profit or loss - - - - 14,119 14,119
TESRTIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 621,056 621,056
RBEHREMER Advances and other accounts 131,333,139 10,130,982 5,365,482 207,537 5403364 152,460,504
IATEEAEZH A Financial assets at fair value through

PEYENEHEE other comprehensive income 8,376,715 7191496 17,578,647 8,197,295 89,583 41,433,736
NBBRATIRNERHEE Financial assets at amortised cost 4,682,704 2067487 11,277,809 6,498,456 4730 24,531,186
CREERH Total financial assets 157,784,627 24948688  34,234223 14923288 8,134,775 240,025,601
B Liabilities
ROTER Deposits from banks 1,695,507 - - - 7,690 1,703,197
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,425,365 1,425,365
BEEERRNAR Trading liabilities 1,511,927 - - - - 1,511,927
XPER Deposits from customers 169,436,436 9,825,161 1,081,214 - 16,679,630 197,022,441
BEANGERE Certificates of deposit issued 1,737,343 4,468,052 384,322 - - 6,589,717
BEREY Subordinated notes - - 4,128,446 - - 4,128,446
HiolE A KER Other accounts and accruals 346,460 96,554 323,061 158,491 5,612,020 6,536,586
¢EBEAS Total financial liabilities 174,727,673 14,389,767 5,917,043 158,491 23724705 218,917,679
MESEEEAS(RERE)  Totalinterest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)*  (16,943,046) 10558921  28317,180 14,764,797
MEFTETARHZ VE Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 28,679,285 216,443 (14,790621)  (14,105,107)
MEBEEEA(EHAR) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 11,736,239 10775364 13,526,559 659,690

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022 137



iR A M ERR M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HHEERREEm)
3.3 ThiEERm@m)
335 FIEEENE

RITRENE IR E M (TRITRE R ZEFERE]) B
B R AR AR L B R SR R SR 1T ] [B) R A AR )
HEEBRE - RESRTARE REMK12023
F6 308 &1F L MEAEEARMRBIERITER
ERENERERERARE - RROBEFEAE
B2 RBMITETARMEHRNEER AR

REB ORI B PIAER R IE B TIRA AR —
FIMRGHRTT - U AEEEREBERRE
EHBNRERENEZBE - THRRREER
‘REERAMSERBE(TSRAREE]) RFX
EBREBEDNARTAEREAENRRER - A%
BEENEBRGRRIZEE - UEBRITBRR
TR RIRAHE R R 2 2 -

138  KER1TER AR 2022F F

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.5 Interest rate benchmark reform

Inter-bank Offered Rate (“IBOR”) transition is the process of
preparation for the replacement of the IBOR by alternative risk-free
rates. UK Financial Conduct Authority announced that all London Inter-
bank Offered Rate settings will either cease to be provided by any
administrator or no longer be representative after 30 June 2023. This
transition impacts the Group’s outstanding financial derivatives and
interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities.

A bankwide project workgroup has been established to push a series
of system enhancements in order to accommodate the Group with
the IBOR transition, including risk management perspective. Market
risk limits such as value-at-risk and interest rate sensitivities are still
effective and valid for risk management. The Group aims to put system
and process changes in place to help achieving the IBOR transition.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.5 Interest rate benchmark reform (continued)

The following table contains details of all of the financial instruments
that the Group holds at 31 December 2022 and 2021 which reference
LIBOR and have not yet transitioned to certain other Interbank Offered

Rates (IBORs) or an alternative interest rate benchmark. Notional

amount of derivatives and gross carrying value of financial assets are

presented below.

R2022%
12A31H2Z
EREE
EREH
Carrying
Value/Notional
Amount

as at

31 December

Hep:
R20225F
12A31H

gR2ER=
Of Which:
Have yet to
transition to
an alternative
benchmark
interest rate
as at

31 December

2022 2022
RBBTERERERNEZRBNWIEITESLBEE Non-derivative assets exposed
to LIBOR
DU e AT E Measured at amortised cost
ZEEREEMIER Advances and other accounts 6,492,264 2,897,907
DA SR AT BRI S BUE B Financial assets at amortised
cost 888,887 460,038
DATEFEEEEHT AHMEERENE Measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income
A EZEBEEEH AEM2EmKEr Financial assets at fair value
TREE through other comprehensive
income 572,356 489,451
FTEEMEENBIREE Total carrying value of non-
derivative assets 7,953,507 3,847,396
TTETHE-RIREH Derivatives — Interest rate
swap 46,976,685 37,060,431
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.5 Interest rate benchmark reform (continued)

720214
12A318 2
fREES
BELHE
Carrying
Value/Notional
Amount

as at

31 December

He
720214
12H31H

BHRBZR%
Of Which:
Have yet to
transition to
an alternative
benchmark
interest rate
as at

31 December

2021 2021

fmBIRITEREFENERARIFEITESFEE  Non-derivative assets exposed to

LIBOR
LA SR ANGT & Measured at amortised cost
BEESREEMEEE Advances and other accounts 8,987,411 8,987,411
LA AR AT BRI S R B B Financial assets at amortised

cost 577,374 460,424
NAHER 2 BEEZB I A2 EIEE Measured at fair value through

other comprehensive income
AT EE B EEEH:T AL M2 EmRER Financial assets at fair value

TRMEE through other comprehensive

income 844,228 837,587
EOTHE G RVEEMARHEE Total carrying value of non-

derivative assets 10,409,013 10,285,422
PTHET A —FIXISH Derivatives — Interest rate

swap 48,580,973 48,573,176
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable loss.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the objective
to comply with the statutory standards and to ensure that there is
an adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet normal business
operations and to withstand severe liquidity stresses. The Group has
adopted the Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (“LMR”) and the Core Funding
Ratio (“CFR”) as the regulatory standards specified by the HKMA for
reporting on the Group’s liquidity position. During the period, the Group
had maintained sufficiently high LMR and CFR well above the statutory
minimum of 25% and 75% respectively.

Moreover, the Group has maintained a sound liquidity risk management
framework in accordance with the HKMA'’s requirements set forth in the
SPM LM-1 on “Regulatory Framework for Supervision of Liquidity Risk”
and the SPM LM-2 on “Sound Systems and Controls for Liquidity Risk
Management”. The SPM LM-1 is to provide the approach adopted by
the HKMA for supervising and assessing the liquidity risk of banks while
the SPM LM-2 is developed to implement the liquidity sound principles
formulated by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (“Basel
Committee”) to strengthen the liquidity risk management standards of
banks.

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and framework
approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s ALCO to
oversee liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly reviews the
Group’s loan and deposit mix and changes, funding requirements and
projections, and monitors a set of liquidity risk metrics, including the
LMR, CFR and maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. In addition,
material changes in the liquidity risk metrics together with any
corresponding proposed mitigation actions will be reviewed by ALCO.
Appropriate limits or triggers on these risk metrics are set and sufficient
liquid assets are held to ensure that the Group can maintain a sufficient
level of stable funding to support its asset growth. The Treasury and
Global Markets Division is responsible for the day-to-day management
of funding and liquidity position while the GRD is responsible for the
measurement and monitoring of liquidity risk exposures on a daily and
monthly basis, and also conducting liquidity analysis and stress testing.
The Financial Control Division handles regulatory reporting in relation to
liquidity risk, and coordinates the regular forecast of loans and deposits,
and LMR, CFR, budget and analysis relating to liquidity and funding
management.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group places considerable importance to establish a diversified
and stable funding. While customer deposits form the primary portion of
the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit and medium term notes are
issued at opportune times in order to lengthen the funding maturity and
optimise asset and liability maturities. Short-term interbank deposits are
taken on a limited basis with the aim of maintaining the presence in the
market and the Group is a net lender to the interbank market.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow measurements
and projections for different time horizons, including the next day,
week and month, which are key periods for liquidity management. The
starting point for those projections is an analysis of the contractual
maturity of the financial assets and liabilities as well as the expected
maturity of these assets and liabilities based on historical observations.
The cash flow projections also take into account the historical behaviour
of off-balance sheet items, including undrawn lending commitments and
contingent liabilities such as standby letters of credit and guarantees.
The Group always maintains an adequate liquidity cushion, which is
composed of high quality marketable securities with sufficient market
depth to meet its liquidity needs at all times, even under adverse market
conditions. Eligible securities in the cushion mainly have low risk and
simple structure and can be readily sold or used as collateral to obtain
funds within a short period of time. Debt securities held are marked to
the market on daily basis to ensure their market liquidity.
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3. HHEERREEm) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 REBELE @ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

341 REELEBREZERSF @)

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

BEET In HK$ million
2022 20214F
12A31H 12A31H
A As at As at
Internal HARZER| 31 December 31 December
categorisation Basic Criteria 2022 2021
F1R IRIE DR EIFEENBAT - ZBERIRIT - HEBRARE R 11,331 13,696
EEBEMBETRERZEAREER%NE EES
Tier 1 Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, relevant international
organisations and public sector entities with a 0% risk weight
under the Basel Il Standardised Approach
F2A% BEDERBEINREENEN - ZERERRT  REBLLIESR 7,859 7,923
EFITHERZ AREER20%M G ERE S
Tier 2A Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, public sector entities and
non-financial corporate entities with a 20% risk weight under
the Basel Il Standardised Approach
F2BAR ZLEBREEMLFIBENREDEEAFL TP AIREEE 46,384 40,725
MEEN S RMERITHER EMBEE S
Tier 2B Other marketable securities issued or guaranteed by corporate or

financial institutions with at least an investment grade and those
securities that may be included in “liquefiable assets” under the
liquidity maintenance ratio.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group performs stress testing regularly, which includes an
institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market crisis scenario and
a combination of these crisis scenarios in order to assess the potential
impact on its liquidity position under stressed market conditions. The
Group maintains a set of early warning indicators, including qualitative
and quantitative factors and involving both internal and market
indicators that help identify any emerging risk at an early stage. The
Group maintains a contingency plan that sets out its strategies for
dealing with liquidity stresses and the procedures for making up cash
flow deficits (e.g. conducting repo transactions or liquidation of assets
held for liquidity risk management purpose) in emergency situations.
An annual drill test is conducted and the contingency plan is reviewed
at least annually to ensure it remains sound and effective. Intragroup
transactions are conducted on arm’s length basis and are treated the
same way as other third party transactions for the purpose of cash
flow projection under normal scenario. Subsidiaries of the Group are
required to manage their liquidity positions to meet their needs under
both normal and stressed conditions. Most of the Group’s derivative
transactions are exchange rate contracts and interest rate contracts.
Under the terms of our collateral arrangements with derivative
counterparties, collateral movements are not linked with the credit
ratings of the Group.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the

SRR Y R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

afEo reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where applicable,
the earliest callable date.
AN E
B3f8A
FUT  EAME
187 3months k3 10E
WaEE HUT or less Over B5E SENE
Repayable Upto  butover  3months Over1year Over  SFEAAMH fit
2022F12A31A At 31 December 2022 on demand 1 month 1 month tolyear  to5years 5years  Indefinite Total
13 Assets
Re RERTNER Cash and balances with banks 3,329,660 14,471,220 - - - - - 17,800,880
ERTIE12[EAN Placements with banks maturing

HEOER between one and twelve months - - 5856262 2,760,303 - - - 8,616,565
BEEERRNES Trading securities - - 545,165 6,438 10,558 - - 562,161
WATEFEAEES Financial assets at fair value

FABRHERAE through profit or loss - - - - - - 9,303 9,303
ITESRTA Derivative financial instruments - 297,916 169,477 233,950 1,390,438 1,809,446 - 390123
ZEEFRENERE Advances and other accounts 7,312,644 19,328,145 9,450,994 15,939,687 45195717 43,779,598 1,708,014 142,714,799
WATEHEAEES Financial assets at fair value

SARMRENRR through other comprehensive

EREE income - 1,495,726 4,732,868 6,228,075 20,510,033 4,975,835 675,314 38,617,851
DESRATEN SR Financial assets at amortised cost

EE - 1,399,416 507,964 3,210,134 20,215,587 7,591,000 1,989 32,926,090
BeNARE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 2159290 2,159,290
RAEEHERRE Investments in jointly controlled

entities - - - - - - 123,072 123,072
B8 Goodwill - - - - - - 713,451 713,451
BYVEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 61,005 61,005
NERENETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 3645703 3,645,703
LS Investment properties - - - - - - 802,693 802,693
ERREEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 262,273 - - 262,273
BEAT Total assets 10,642,304 36,992,423 21,262,730 28,378,596 87,584,606 58,155,879 9,899,834 252,916,372
af Liabilities
FOER Deposits from banks 517,595 2,574,810 1,020,088 - - - - 4,112,493
ITEERIA Derivative financial instruments - 249,956 184,586 161,327 401,768 - - 997,637
RBEEERENEE Trading liabilities - 499,725 230,766 - - - - 730,491
XEEH Deposits from customers 71878233 21,539,766 55,020,079 48,958,156 2,406,361 - - 199,802,595
BREINERE Certficates of deposit issued - - 814,916 3,049,143 364,924 - - 4208983
hERER Subordinated notes - - - - 3,801,495 - - 3,801,495
EERE Lease liabilities - 11,992 23,833 101,529 295,876 101,148 - 534,378
EMRE R Other accounts and accruals,

TefEREER excluding lease liabilities 339,191 4,269,640 998,825 4,261 712,562 744,205 311,967 7,380,651
AERERE Current income tax liabilities - - - 284,453 - - - 284,453
ERHEEE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 36,267 - - 36,267
aEAH Total liabilities 72,735019 29,145,889 58,293,093 52,558,869 8,019,253 845,353 311,967 221,909,443
FREEE Net liquidity gap (62,092,715) 7,846,534  (37,030,363) (24,180,273) 79,565,353 57,310,526 9,587,867 31,006,929
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

MEARE
38R
AT SEAME
188 3months E3fes 18 £
AIHEE FLHT or less Over 5E 5EN F
Repayable Upto butover ~ 3months  Over 1 year Over  HEARE B
2021512A31A At 31 December 2021 on demand 1 month 1 month tofyear  tobyears 5years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
BeRERONES Cash and balances with banks 4024247 7983506 - - - - - 12,007,753
ERMERERR Placements with banks maturing

HENER between one and twelve months - - 1768275 2,763,588 - - - 4531863
FHEEERRNES Trading securities - 257,399 1990986 2,164,714 12,285 - - 4405384
WATEFEALEES Financial assets at fair value

SABRNEREE through profit or loss - - - - - - 14,119 14,119
ITEERTIA Derivative financial instruments - 142,748 82,257 106,992 139,412 149,647 - 621,056
BEERRAMEE Advances and other accounts 7660952 25695748 9,391,075 20,140,063 45171211 42814941 1586514 152,460,504
DATEHEAER Financial assets at fair value

AR RN through other comprehensive

MeRiE income - 2,391,285 4,635,956 7,745813 18,373,805 8,197,295 89,582 41,433,736
DB AR A Financial assets at amortised cost

TRHAE - 1,520,903 1,767,865 2,577,364 12,041,290 6,619,034 4730 24,531,186
BENTRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 4230951 4,230,951
AR EERE Investments in jointly controlled

entities - - - - - - 114,373 114,373
e Goodwil - - - - - - 713,451 713,451
BWEE Intangiole assets - - - - - - 58,252 58252
NERANETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 3802228 3802228
hEME Investment properties - - - - - - 756,353 756,353
EREREEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 120418 - - 120418
BEA Total assets 11,685,199 37,991,589 19636414 35498534 75858421 57,780,917 11,370,553 249,821,627
af Liabilties
/TR Deposits from banks 57,311 721,683 924,208 - - - - 1,703,197
ITEERTA Derivative financial instruments - 128,735 60,438 155,569 514,338 566,285 - 1,425,365
BEEERENEE Trading liabilities - 500,001 1,011,926 - - - - 1,511,927
REHR Deposits from customers 91,598,396 30,853,014 62,974,603 10,285,338 1,311,090 - - 197,022,441
BREINERE Certficates of deposit issued - 100057 1637286 4,468,052 384,322 - - 6589717
& B Subordinated notes - - - - 4128446 - - 4128448
fEaE Lease liabilities - 12,535 24,298 96,554 323,062 158,491 - 614,940
EIRE kAR Other accounts and accruals,

TREREaE excluding lease liabilities 323,864 1,665,184 475,593 1,361,644 696,974 910,750 487,637 5,921,646
HEREEE Current income tax liabilities - - - 160,235 - - - 160,235
EREHAEE Deferred income tax liabiliies - - - - 14,977 - - 14,977
BEAH Total liabilities 91979571 33,981,209 67,108,347 16,527,392 7,373,209 1,635,526 487,637 219,092,891
FREYMEE Net liquidity gap (80,294,372) 4,010,380  (47,471,933) 18971,142 68485212 56145391 10,882,916 30,728,736
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose
and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,
the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to
contractual maturity is shown as follows:

1R
Bk
18385 38R
HUT WE
1A 3months g 1E0E
DE&E EDA orless Over 5 BENE 5

Repayable Upto  butover ~ 3months Over1 year Over AE aif
ondemand  1month imonth  tolyear to5years 5years  Indefinite Total
2025128318 At 31 December 2022
FEaan: Certiicates of deposit held included in:
PYNEEREERS- SN Financial assets at fair value through
EhzibatepiE other comprehensive income - - - - 23449 - - 23449
DESR AT ENEREE Financial assets at amortised cost - 547529 167475 2077486 327,688 - - 3,120,178
2021%12A310 At 31 December 2021
FEaan: Certiicates of deposit held included in:
NATEHSAABHHA Financial assets at fair value through
Atz AkaneHEE other comprehensive income - 150015 93,789 - 25970 - - 480774
NEBUATIENEREE Financial assets at amortised cost - 44904 24403 720872 327592 - - 1537364

BERABERRMARARMZZOHELE S
BEEE+TIER - HRNETHNEBRZEESR
TEENHRETRER - HiRTME - =248
FEMBERIE N ERE - TMEEMIJERARESAR
Mg - Bt Ig e ERR -

BEBEENINERUABORASREIN
BB R - RETEEERBES REEF
*REFSDHFERRNESHE -

AEE-—RIEME=TEREFRBDZEZED
RES  ENERNERERERTHABRIEDN
MBESFREINAENSHE - HRRZEE
AERFHSRRIEABESRES - FHARE
HEEZEEAENRENGOESBERVER
BREIREFH -

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management of the
Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as businesses
transacted are often of uncertain term and of different types. An
unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but also increases
the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an
acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are important
factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to
changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of
the commitment because the Group does not generally expect the
third parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total
outstanding contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does
not necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these
commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that will
be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

. Foreign exchange derivatives: OTC currency options, currency
futures, exchange-traded currency options;

o Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures and
other interest rate contracts; and

o Equity derivatives: equity options.

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:

o Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency swaps
and cross currency interest rate swaps;

o Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps; and

. Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)
1{BANLE MBAKE
3EAFUT E1E 1550E
AT 3 months or Over B55
Upto less butover 3months  Over 1 year 5F L CH
20225128318 At 31 December 2022 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Overb5 years Total
FTETIARER Non-derivative cash flow
g8 Liabilities
BITER Deposits from banks 3,148,402 1,382,987 - - - 4,531,389
LYSJEE Deposits from customers 95,905,885 55,619,737 50,045,801 2,472,269 - 204,043,692
KIEEEREMERE Trading liabilities 500,000 232,000 - - - 732,000
BEINGHRE Certificates of deposit issued - 831,134 3,186,512 392,760 - 4,410,406
BEEK Subordinated notes 44,103 - 113,547 4,505,592 - 4,663,242
MEERE Lease liabilities 12,568 24,940 105,902 307,274 102,485 553,169
Hth Ak Other liabilities 1,921,334 505,658 360,392 - 271,746 3,059,130
BELE Total liabilities
(R%3I5H) (contractual maturity dates) 101,532,292 58,596,456 53,812,154 7,677,895 374,231 221,993,028
FTETRRER Derivative cash flow
RFEHEZ Derivative financial instruments
TEeRTA settled on net basis (127,172) (39,229) (96,951) (47,124) (1,520) (311,996)
REEEEY Derivative financial instruments
fTEERIA settled on a gross basis
mEE Total outflow 65,920,646 19,021,182 19,090,989 16,823,690 6,407,382 127,263,889
MALBE Total inflow (64,878,213) | | (18,802,935) | | (21,225,892) | | (19,005,166) (7,135,611) | ((131,047,817)
1,042,433 218247 (2,134,003 (2,181,476 (728229)  (3,783,928)
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3. HBEREREEm 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 REBESE @
343 BEANFH A A BELT (&)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.3 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)

1EAR R SEAME
SEAFMUT 2165 1ERE
1BAZAT 3 months or Over Z5F
Upto less but over 3months  Over 1 year 5T £ B

20214 12A31H At 31 December 2021 1 month 1 month to 1 year to5years  Over5 years Total
FTETARSR Non-derivative cash flow
8 Liabilities
RITEN Deposits from banks 779,026 924,913 - - - 1,703,939
BPER Deposits from customers 123,044,927 63,581,037 10,399,697 1,342,110 - 198,367,771
HEEERBMERE Trading liabilities 500,000 1,012,008 - - - 1,512,008
BEITHEHE Certificates of deposit issued 102,543 1,644,480 4,491,532 395,611 - 6,634,166
&EER Subordinated notes 44,343 - 113,539 4,505,489 - 4,663,371
HEBE Lease liabilities 13,192 25,558 101,635 337,265 161,278 638,928
Hiwgfz Other liabilities 1,838,822 523,630 344,008 - 350,178 3,056,638
BERE Total liabilities

(BHEIHA) (contractual maturity dates) 126,322,853 67,711,626 15,450,411 6,580,475 511,456 216,576,821
PTHETEBR SR Derivative cash flow
BEBLEE Derivative financial instruments

TESRIA settled on net basis (1,124) 1,318 2,055 (14,253) 2,296 (9,708)
REBEE Y Derivative financial instruments

fTHESRBIEA settled on a gross basis
Ptk Total outflow 48,789,682 | | 16,750,300 | | 17,297,065 3,749,175 1,067,931 | | 87,654,153
MAEE Total inflow (48,726,928) | | (16,732,620) | | (16,781,821) | | (2,053,710) (497,691) | | (84,792,770)

62,754 17,680 515,244 1,695,465 570,240 2,861,383
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items

Included in the table below are the following items:

. Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual

amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

. Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the
reporting date as to what contractual payments are required,;

. The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments

where a Group company is the lessee; and

o Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and

equipment.
1R 10 E 5F N E
No later ZE55 Over &5t
2022512H31H At 31 December 2022 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BaoRyE Loan commitments 68,441,125 2,301,536 668,036 71,410,697
R - AH R Guarantees, acceptances and
HAh @RS other financial facilities
—ERERERERR — Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 2,613,307 17,352 - 2,630,659
—IREBREEEAH — Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 247,910 - - 247,910
RAIBEITR Forward forward deposits placed 317,824 - - 317,824
TR A EYE Operating lease commitments 6,299 10,297 - 16,596
BN E Capital commitments 71,857 - - 71,857
a5t Total 71,698,322 2,329,185 668,036 74,695,543
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HXRREE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
34 REBESRM @ 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
344 BEBMEXKIEE ) 3.4.4 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)
1F AR 160 F 5% E
No later 54 Over BF
2021F12A31H At 31 December 2021 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRURIE Loan commitments 70,691,292 2,790,191 64,236 73,545,719
BR - EH K Guarantees, acceptances and
E A BAR other financial facilities
—EREERERE — Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 1,840,864 38,570 - 1,879,434
—IREREEEAE — Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 703,597 — - 703,597
TR AR Operating lease commitments 6,985 21,997 - 28,982
B ARIE Capital commitments 17,310 85,279 - 102,589
A5t Total 73,260,048 2,936,037 64,236 76,260,321
35 tREEREEZATE 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
(F) X FEZEE (a) Determination of fair value
NEEXRNEREEEEE ﬁﬁ{%zﬁ‘ilﬁ Fair values are subject to a control framework that the Board is
BE R EE R RIS 2 EHIESR held responsible for ensuring proper valuation governance and
EERENE RKRERR i%ﬁﬁkéﬁmﬂl control processes of the Group. It delegates the responsibility for
B2 HERF o (hEHEREIE & EEE overseeing the valuation process for financial instruments to the
BN HEASKRGAEM(MER) B i TIRC. Valuation is performed independently by RMCD and where
17 MEEERTERRE - RAFERT appropriate, by independent and professionally qualified valuers
SRBEZTEMN - and the valuation results are periodically verified to ensure the

integrity of the fair value measurement process.

ERMIAZAHEDEBRIMSER NS The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be
SHERFTERRTZEFRGFHEEE received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
Frii sk % B BT 2 (B1& - TRZE transaction between market participants at the measurement date
B REE B A ER A - under current market conditions regardless of whether that price is

directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(a) Determination of fair value (Continued)

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active market provides
the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used
whenever available. If a financial asset or a financial liability has a
bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread that
is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is used
by the Group.

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments is
not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value of such
financial instruments by using appropriate valuation techniques
that are widely recognised including present value techniques and
standard option pricing models. In applying valuation techniques
for these financial instruments, the Group maximises the use of
relevant observable inputs (for examples, interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, volatilities, credit spreads) and minimises the use
of unobservable inputs. For example, the fair value of interest-rate
swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future
cash flows, the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts
is generally based on current forward rates and the fair value of
option contracts is derived using appropriate pricing models, such
as Black-Scholes model.

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit spreads
in determining the current value of its financial liabilities and other
liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option. When the
Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises a gain on
these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has decreased.
When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group recognises
a loss on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process

are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b) Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures fair values using the following hierarchy

that reflects the significance of the observable and unobservable

inputs used in the fair value measurement:

Level

Descriptions

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. This level includes equity
securities and derivatives that are listed on exchanges.

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices). This level includes the majority of the OTC
derivative contracts. These are financial instruments with
quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets
or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in
inactive markets and financial instruments valued using
models where all significant inputs are observable.

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
level includes equity and debt securities with significant
unobservable components.



fra M ERR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

B AR SR ®) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
TREEREBZATFE® 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(Z) RFEZH = (b) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
EAVEECEERAE Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:
REMNTEFE Recurring fair value measurements

E1R F24R% 3R a5
2022F12H31H At 31 December 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions

HIEEEMBMESL  Trading securities and financial
LAAFEFEBHES  assets at fair value through
FTABEGNEREE profit or loss

B E 5 Debt securities - 562,161 - 562,161

REES Investment funds 9,303 - - 9,303
TEERmIA Derivative financial instruments

REEEAS Held for trading - 746,544 - 746,544

5 e Held for hedging - 3,154,692 - 3,154,692
WAFEFTEAHES Financial assets at fair value

T AE MU through other comprehensive

SHmEE income

BRES Debt securities - 37,942,537 - 37,942,537

EEEES Equity securities 337 - 674,977 675,314

BAEFTEZEEARET Total assets measured

at fair value 9,640 42,405,934 674,977 43,090,551

AT EFEEHEE Financial liabilities at fair value

SFABEMESREE—  through profit or loss —

FEEERR held for trading

BEFES Debt securities - 730,491 - 730,491
PTESBMTA Derivative financial instruments

FHEFEEMAR Held for trading - 640,447 - 640,447

B RIEEH Held for hedging - 357,190 - 357,190

BRAFETEZABESRET Total liabilities measured

oIk
ik

at fair value

1,728,128 - 1,728,128
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(b) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)

Financial assets classified as Level 3 assets represent
investments in shares issued by unlisted entities. These
investments were acquired some years ago when the Group
applied to join the platforms or cooperative arrangements
operated by the relevant entities in areas such as international
financial messaging, cross-border payments, credit cards
issuance, etc. which are essential to the provision of banking
services by the Group.

The unlisted equity investments are measured using valuation
techniques of market comparable companies, dividend discount
model and discounted cash flow model. The significant
unobservable inputs are the average price-to-book ratio (“PB
ratio”) of the comparable listed companies, the dividend growth
rate and cost of equity used in the dividend discount model, and
the discount rate and dividend yield used in the discounted cash
flow model. If all of the significant unobservable inputs favourably
changed and unfavourably changed by 5%, the Group’s other
comprehensive income would have increased by HK$50 million
and decreased by HK$45 million respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,
there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or
out of the Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The
changes in carrying value represent the revaluation gains/losses
during the year. There was no addition and disposal during the
year.
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

35 SREEREBEZAFE®E® 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(Z) X FEFRE

(b) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

EAVEFECEERBE - (8) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)
BEMEATFETE@E Recurring fair value measurements (Continued)
ESRF FE2M E3MH a5

2021412 A31H At 31 December 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
HIEEERBMESL  Trading securities and financial

LAAFEFEBHESH  assets at fair value through

FTABEGNEREE profit or loss

B 5 Debt securities -  4,425384 - 4,425384

KREES Investment funds 14,119 - - 14,119
TEemIA Derivative financial instruments

HIEEEMR% Held for trading - 360,405 - 360,405

A RIEEH Held for hedging - 260,651 - 260,651
AT ETEREE Financial assets at fair value

FFAEM K= through other comprehensive

SREE income

BIEEH Debt securities — 41,344,154 - 41,344,154

EmMES Equity securities 481 6,315 82,786 89,582
BANFEFECEESRF Total assets measured

at fair value 14,600 46,396,909 82,786 46,494,295

WA EEAEE Financial liabilities at fair value

SFABEHSREE—  through profit or loss —

FEEERR held for trading

BEBESH Debt securities - 1,511,927 - 1,511,927
TESmIE Derivative financial instruments

FEEERZ Held for trading - 315,959 - 315,959

BB BIEL Held for hedging - 1,109,406 - 1,109,406
BAFEFEZBEARET Total liabilities measured

at fair value - 2,937,292 — 2,937,292
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The following methods and significant assumptions have been
applied in determining the fair values of financial instruments
presented below:

(i) Placements with banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates for
debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.

(ii) Loans and advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated future
cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows
are discounted at current market rates to determine fair
value.

(iii) Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the amortised cost category. Fair value of
amortised cost assets is based on market prices or broker/
dealer price quotations. Where this information is not
available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

(iv) Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and
other borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity,
which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand. The estimated fair value of fixed
interest-bearing deposits and other borrowings not quoted
in an active market is based on discounted cash flows using
interest rates for new debts with similar remaining maturity.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(c) Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(Continued)

(v) Debt securities in issue including subordinated
notes issued

For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, the present value technique is used based on
current yield curve and/or credit spread appropriate for the
remaining term to maturity to estimate fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 except as follows:

IREE
Carrying B B2k B3 AFE
2022 12A31H At 31 December 2022 value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
CREE Financial assets
DA EARCATIBRA)  Financial assets at
TREE amortised cost 32,926,090 - 32,562,989 2,000 32,564,989
cRBE Financial liabilities
BEITHFRE Certificates of deposit
issued 4,228,983 - 4,233,857 - 4,233,857
BIEES Subordinated notes 3,801,495 - 3,797,662 - 3,797,662
REE
Carrying R 21 £33 RIHE
2021%F12A31H At 31 December 2021 value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
CRIEE Financial assets
AR ATIBRS)  Financial assets at
SREE amortised cost 24,531,186 - 24,464,629 4,730 24,469,359
SRAE Financial liabilities
BEITHFHE Certificates of deposit
issued 6,589,717 - 6,589,883 - 6,589,883
BEES Subordinated notes 4,128,446 - 4,193,099 - 4,193,099
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

. To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

o To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

. To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits to
other stakeholders; and

. To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital are monitored
regularly by the Group’s management, employing techniques based on
the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by
the HKMA, for supervisory purposes. The required information is filed
with the HKMA on a quarterly basis.

Under the regulatory framework in Hong Kong, the Bank is required to
meet three capital ratios, namely, the Common Equity Tier 1 capital,
Tier 1 capital and Total capital respectively against risk-weighted assets.
The internationally agreed minimum of these three ratios are set at
4.5%, 6.0% and 8.0% respectively and are adopted by the HKMA. In
order to comply with HKMA'’s requirements as stated in the SPM CA-G-
5 on “Supervisory Review Process”, the Bank is required to set further
buffers, to reflect material risks not included in the minimum regulatory
capital calculation, arising from regulator’s requirements, internal
assessment of risks and the results of stress tests under the Pillar Il
capital requirement. In addition, the Bank is required to fulfil the capital
conservation buffer and countercyclical capital buffer requirements
set by the HKMA. Likewise, the Leverage Ratio forms part of Basel llI
implementation and the required information is submitted by the Bank
to the HKMA on quarterly basis. In line with the international standards,
the minimum Leverage Ratio is set at 3% by the HKMA.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.6 Capital management (Continued)

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts for
credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-balance
sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet exposures
are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each exposure
and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating assigned by
an external credit assessment institution recognised by the HKMA or
other rules as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules, taking into account
the capital effects of credit risk mitigation. Off-balance sheet exposures
are converted into credit-equivalent amounts by applying relevant credit
conversion factors to each exposure, before being classified and risk-
weighted as if they were on-balance sheet exposures.

The principal forms of capital included in the balances on the
consolidated balance sheet are share capital, retained profits, other
equity instruments and other reserves. Capital also includes collective
provisions and regulatory reserve for general banking risks as allowed
under the Banking (Capital) Rules.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in China, DSB
China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management, employing
techniques based on the guidelines provided by the Autoridade
Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) and the China Banking and Insurance
Regulatory Commission (“CBIRC”) respectively for supervisory
purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by DSB
China with the CBIRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires BCM
and the CBIRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own funds or
capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the capital adequacy
ratio) not lower than the required statutory minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities, such as
the Securities and Futures Commission.

3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and advisory
services to third parties, which involve the Group making allocation
and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety of financial
instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary capacity are
not included in the consolidated financial statements. These services
could give rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of mal-
administration.
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Changes
in estimates and assumptions may have a significant impact on the
results of the Group in the periods when changes are made. The
application and selection of different estimates and assumptions, and
their subsequent changes, could affect the Group’s profit and net asset
value in the future. The Group, based on its high-level assessment
of the sensitivity impacts on the reported assets and liabilities of the
Group arising from the changes in critical accounting estimates and
assumptions, believes that the estimates and assumptions adopted
are appropriate and reasonable, and the financial results and positions
presented in the consolidated financial statements are fair and
reasonable in all material respects.

(a) Measurement of the ECL allowance

The measurement of the ECL allowance for financial assets measured
at amortised cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of
complex models and significant assumptions about future economic
conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customers
defaulting and the resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs,
assumptions and estimation techniques used in measuring ECL is
further detailed in Note 3.2.2, which also sets out key sensitivities of the
ECL to changes in these elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the
accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

. Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

o Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the
measurement of ECL;

. Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-
looking scenarios for each type of product/market and the
associated ECL; and

. Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of
measuring ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made by the
Group in the above areas is set out in Note 3.2.2.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried at fair
value are valued based on observable market quotations. The Group
applies judgement in selecting the most appropriate quotation for
valuation purposes based on its assessment of the range of observable
quotations, recent observable transactions, the reliability and quality of
the pricing source, and the value of securities of a similar nature. For
unlisted equity investments, management judgement and estimates
are required for the selection of appropriate valuation parameters,
assumptions and modelling techniques.

The carrying amounts of the financial instruments measured at fair
value at reporting date are shown in Note 18, 19 and 21.

(c) Impairment of goodwill and intangible asset

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition of goodwill
and intangible assets, any major change in the assumptions in relation
to future benefits to be generated from the intangible assets, including
future cash flow of benefits to be generated from the acquired entities,
or discount rates which could be caused by major changes in market
conditions and outlook, could result in adjustments to the carrying
values of such assets. In the event that the expected recoverable
amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are significantly lower than
their carrying values, impairment of such assets would have to be
recognised.

The carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible asset at reporting date
are shown in Note 25.

(d) Impairment assessment of the investment in an
associate, Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”)

The Group carries out periodic impairment assessments on its
investment in BOCQ in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”.

This assessment compares the carrying value of the investment against
the higher of management’s estimate of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal. Management’s estimate of the value in use is based
on a discounted cash flow projection which contains certain assumptions
derived from management and observable market information. This
estimate is subject to application of management judgement and is
sensitive to assumptions on the discount rate and the cash flows arising
from the holding of this investment and from its ultimate disposal.
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Impairment assessment of the investment in an
associate, Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”) (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, management’s estimate of the value in use is
lower than the carrying value of its investment in BOCQ. As a result, in
the year ended 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment in BOCQ has been written down by HK$1,683 million (2021:
HK$726 million).

(e) Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in the
lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated).

For leases of properties, the following factors are normally the most
relevant:

o If there are significant penalties to terminate (or not extend), the
Group is typically reasonably certain to extend (or not terminate).

. If any leasehold improvements are expected to have a significant
remaining value, the Group is typically reasonably certain to
extend (or not terminate).

. Otherwise, the Group considers other factors including historical
lease durations and the costs and business disruption required to
replace the leased asset.

Most extension options in property leases have not been included in
the lease liability, because the Group could replace the assets without
significant cost or business disruption.

The lease term is reassessed if an option is actually exercised (or not
exercised) or the Group becomes obliged to exercise (or not exercise)
it. The assessment of reasonable certainty is only revised if a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances occurs, which affects
this assessment, and that is within the control of the lessee. During the
current financial year, the Group has not exercised any extension or
termination options.

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets at reporting date are shown
in Note 27.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Recognition of income upon termination of the Hong
Kong Distribution Agreement

On 8 July 2022, the Group announced that it had terminated the Hong
Kong Distribution Agreement (“HKDA”) entered into amongst DSB,
Tahoe Life Insurance Company Limited (“Tahoe Life”) and Tahoe
Services Limited on 19 June 2017.

Under the HKDA, DSB was appointed by Tahoe Life as its non-
exclusive insurance agent for distribution of life insurance products in
Hong Kong; and Tahoe Life became DSB’s exclusive supplier of life
insurance products in Hong Kong for its retail customers each for a
period of 15 years. In consideration, DSB was paid an upfront payment
in the amount of HK$1,972,000,000 and Tahoe Life agreed to pay ten
equal annual deferred payments in the amount of HK$52,800,000 each
to DSB.

Prior to the termination of the HKDA, the accounting treatment for
the upfront payment and the paid and unpaid deferred payments
was to record them as deferred income for amortisation to income
over the contract term. Upon termination of the HKDA, the remaining
unamortised part of this amount ceased to be amortised.

In the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022, the Group has recognised the unamortised upfront payment
and deferred payments upon termination of the HKDA totalling
HK$1,394,149,000 as income. In the assessment for adopting this
accounting treatment, management has made reference to, amongst
others, legal advice relating to the termination of the HKDA and other
subsequent development.

(g) Tax position relating to the unamortised upfront
payment and deferred payments recognised as
income

As announced by the Group when the HKDA was entered into on
19 June 2017, the HKDA was intended to be an exclusive, long-
term bancassurance cooperation between DSB and Tahoe Life.
Management assessed that the upfront fee and deferred payments
received and receivable by DSB under the HKDA can be treated
substantially as capital in nature for tax purpose. Management has
taken this consideration into account in the preparation of the 2022
annual financial statements.
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. ZFBITHHERRRRFEEES 5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK
AR 1T B AR R 3R Statement of Financial Position of the Bank
12A31H
As at 31 December
2022 2021
BE ASSETS
& RIERITHAE Cash and balances with banks 16,089,680 9,947,158
FERIT1Z 1218 A REI BRI 73K Placements with banks maturing between
one and twelve months 8,288,099 4,470,630
FEEERZMNES Trading securities 562,161 4,425 384
ARTERE B HE8A Financial assets at fair value through
BaNEmEE profit or loss 9,303 14,119
TEERmIA Derivative financial instruments 3,862,552 613,457
FHEHR R AR Advances and other accounts 121,884,694 129,788,677
AR TER 2 B EZEHEA Financial assets at fair value through
2 EWR R R BEE other comprehensive income 38,284,541 41,389,954
AR ATIBR M SR E Financial assets at amortised cost 27,547,435 20,891,157
BENRIRE Investment in an associate 1,213,057 1,213,057
HEEGERRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 20,000 20,000
MBRRIERERER Investments in and loans to subsidiaries 4,150,476 3,829,399
BVAE Intangible assets 2,753 -
NENEBETEE Premises and other fixed assets 3,074,630 3,275,361
REMHE Investment properties 752,315 702,053
B BEEE Deferred income tax assets 189,690 41,001
BESG Total assets 225,931,386 220,621,407
=1 LIABILITIES
RITER Deposits from banks 7,733,611 5,487,586
THEEmIA Derivative financial instruments 964,415 1,418,967
HEEERENEAE Trading liabilities 730,491 1,511,927
BEER Deposits from customers 172,702,945 169,546,555
BEBEITNTHE Certificates of deposit issued 4,228,983 6,489,717
BIEED Subordinated notes 3,801,495 4,128,446
HidlR B ki8R Other accounts and accruals 7,315,277 5,890,578
BRI A G Current income tax liabilities 251,404 124,039
=l by Total liabilities 197,728,621 194,597,815
R EQUITY
[N Share capital 6,200,000 6,200,000
(&1 Other reserves (including
(BIEREEM) () retained earnings) Note (a) 20,834,955 18,925,005
BRES Shareholders’ funds 27,034,955 25,125,005
FEIMEZMTER Additional equity instruments 1,167,810 898,587
BERA Total equity 28,202,765 26,023,592
ERRAESH Total equity and liabilities 225,931,386 220,621,407

EE2202023F3A31 Bt M IRES A - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31

March 2023.
=HEHE FHE Hon-Hing Wong Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
EE b Director Managing Director

166  KErR{1TER QR 2022F F i



fre MR T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. ZABRITUBMRRREFEED @

i

G T

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

Note:

(a) Reserve movement of the Bank

MR RER REEF
TEEfRE REEMRRE iz e (&)
Premises  Investment —fRf#E  Share-based Retained
Revaluation  Revaluation General Compensation Earnings Bt
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve (Note) Total
2022%1818 At 1 January 2022 233,100 302,690 693,304 14,701 17,681,210 18,925,005
NATEGEEAZHHA Net change in fair value of debt
Htt2AKENEFIAL instruments at fair value through other
ATELETE comprehensive income - (834,317) - - - (834,317)
NATEEEAS Net change in fair value of equity
A2 ARG EFEE T instruments at fair value through other
ATELETE comprehensive income - 296,220 - - - 296,220
RAEMHGERED  EERE Deferred income tax on movements in
investment revaluation reserve - 132,583 - - - 132,583
NATEGEEAZEHA Net change in allowance for expected
Hip2ERENEBIEL credit losses of debt instruments at fair
EHEEFREZYTE value through other comprehensive
income - 7,100 - - - 7,100
BMER I TH 2 RETE Distribution payment of additional equity
instruments - - - - (41,652) (41,652)
IABRIES? ARG R 1 LR Provision for equity-settled share-based
e B compensation - - - 239 - 239
FRE Profit for the year - - - - 2,799,277 2,799,277
021 EXERE 2021 final dividend = = = = (310,000) (310,000)
20225 R HRE 2022 interim dividend - - - - (139,500) (139,500)
20221283180 At 31 December 2022 233,100 (95,724) 693,304 14,940 19,989,335 20,834,955
E Note:

RRITANEERBEAERRBE B RELER A

AN BAEIRE R - Mtz B e R (R aT BORPIRE

EIRITRAIRIT(PED)) TR & EBRITRIEHI RIA
EEHEELSANZAMEERT - ZEERBRR TR
BTRRZFEBSSE EERBIEHAETELER
EITHER - WERREERENFE -

72022912 531 H » ARiR1TE 45 7 438,466,000/%5 7T
(20214F : 432,194,000 7T ) 2 £ FEIE REE R E T
SHEMRE —REE  SEBRARTZEEREATH

$ETE ©

The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of
those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory
reserve, which also covers BCM and DSB China, is maintained to satisfy
the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and local regulatory
requirements for prudential supervision purposes. The regulatory reserve
restricts the amount of reserves which can be distributed to shareholders.
Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly through equity reserve
and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2022, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$438,466,000 (2021: HK$432,194,000) first against the consolidated general
reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against the
consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.
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5. ZFBITHBERRRRBEES @)

i ()

(F) ARITFEZSH(H)

5. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

Note: (Continued)

(a)  Reserve movement of the Bank (Continued)

AR (R AR REBEF
TEEMRE RAEERE bl ()
Premises Investment —MH#E  Share-based Retained
Revaluation Revaluation General  Compensation Eamings Bt
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve (Note) Total
2021F1A18 At 1 January 2021 233,100 214,632 693,304 14,221 16,367,701 17,522,958
ATEYRRE I HERE HER Fair value gain realised and transferred
UATEFEBEEDHA to consolidated income statement upon
Hip2ERaEMNEEIER disposal of debt instruments at fair
ERREBENER value through other comprehensive
income upon derecognition - (4,993) - - - (4,993)
R IR - ERHBIATE Reclassification of net change in fair
HERESEHARMEE value of equity instruments at fair value
Watgat TAZ ATE through other comprehensive income
2938 upon derecognition - 33,619 - - (33,619) -
MATEEBEZHHA Net change in fair value of debt
Hin2ENENERIAZ instruments at fair value through other
ATELETE comprehensive income - 69,682 - - - 69,682
REEREEEDHZETHE Deferred income tax on movements in
investment revaluation reserve - (17,638) - - - (17,638)
MATEHEBEEHHA Net change in allowance for expected
Hir2ENENERIAZ credit losses of debt instruments at fair
BHEEBEREY IR value through other comprehensive
income - 7,388 - - - 7,388
BIMERIE TR ZIRETA Distribution payment of additional equity
instruments - - - - (41,325) (41,325)
DARRIES? T ARR D fE AR Provision for equity-settled share-based
kil 4 compensation - - - 480 - 480
FRER Profit for the year - - - - 1,819,353 1,819,353
2020FERERE 2020 final dividend - - - - (291,400) (291,400)
N215RERE 2021 interim dividend - - - - (139500)  (139,500)
20214124318 At 31 December 2021 233,100 302,690 693,304 14,701 17,681,210 18,925,005

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,
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6. EXSEHE
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting by the Group is prepared in accordance with HKFRS
8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief operating
decision maker, including the Chief Executive and other EC members,
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
is determined on the basis of personal banking, corporate banking,
treasury and global markets and overseas banking business. Operating
performances are analysed by business activities for local banking
business, and on business entity basis for overseas banking business.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following reportable
segments:

. Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft, vehicle financing
and credit card services, and the provision of insurance sales and
investment services.

. Corporate banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from and the advance of loans and working capital finance
to commercial, industrial and institutional customers, and the
provision of trade financing.

o Treasury and global markets activities are mainly the provision
of foreign exchange services and centralised cash management
for deposit taking and lending, interest rate risk management,
management of investment in securities and the overall funding
of the Group.

. Overseas banking businesses include personal banking,
corporate banking business activities provided by overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and China, and the Group’s interest in a
commercial bank in China.

. Others include results of operations not directly identified under

other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt
funding (including subordinated notes).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. =EE/ERFZ®@®

IRENDEREM S - HUERRAREER D
BZREEP  ERLRBEA - HEEZHN
BERNE : MoBEZENESERRESERMA
EENRAMESKA  H2RMHSNE 28R
EREFDEESDE - DERZR S IKER
TEZFREF=FERXFHZFRBGFERE - DA
A2 WA M ER & BRI -

FIBTRNEZ EEAXSREERBENDED
1B o R A S R SR ARPI RIS IOk IB RIS G
BEMzBRARIESMOELERA - DEE
NEDIENER - MEAEMOREEZHIEA
Embk &Pz E2EBMY - AERERX
ZHRMEM AT -
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from customers,
products and services directly identifiable with individual segments
are reported directly under respective segments, while revenue
and funding cost arising from inter-segment funding operation and
funding resources are allocated to segments by way of transfer pricing
mechanism with reference to market interest rates. Transactions within
segments are priced based on similar terms offered to or transacted
with external parties. Inter-segment income or expenses are eliminated
on consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions are
grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.
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6. EEXSEHMEm 6.

B E2022F12A31 B LFE

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BERER
TEER
THARIT S¥RT  Treasury WOMRT EI5H
Personal  Corporate  and Global  Overseas it Inter- st
Banking Banking Markets Banking Others segment Total
FHEMA/ (i) Net interest income/(expenses) 1,890,619 1,183,415 918,047 485,207 (105,696) 35 4,371,627
SRS/ (i) Non-interest income/(expenses) 2,102,346 188,591 33,839 114,999 10,320 (5726) 2,444,369
BEWA/(FH) Total operating income/(expenses) 3,992,965 1,372,006 951,886 600,206 (95,376) (5,691) 6,815,996
EEXH Operating expenses (1,747,004)  (485425)  (199,218)  (543,714) (56,382) 5601  (3,026,052)
NGEERESE) /E%  Operating profit/(loss) before credit
I RERF/ (BB) impairment (losses)/written back 2,245,961 886,581 752,668 56,492 (151,758) - 3,789,944
EERE(BE) /B Credit impairment (losses)/written
back (192,606) (468,865) (36,388) (107,358) 2,117 - (803,100)
NHEEREEE / E§ Operating profit/(loss) after credit
B2 eBRF /(B impairment (losses)/written back 2,053,355 417,716 716,280 (50,866)  (149,641) - 2,986,844
HERENE KA Net loss on disposal and fair value
BE2ERHELTE adjustment of investment properties
BELEER and other fixed assets (2,337) (60) - (29) (38,336) - (40,762)
HEESR SIS ER  Net gain on disposal of financial
BEZ RS assets at amortised cost - - 2 - - - 24
NG Share of results of an associate - - - 656,691 - - 656,691
H@‘ SNAREZAESE  Impaiment loss on the investment in
an associate - - - (1,683,000 - - (1,683,000)
RRLEHENTRE Loss on deemed disposal of
BB investment in an associate - - - (10) - - (10)
[E(EEFIRFIBEEZEE  Share of results of jointly controlled
entities - - - - 29,879 - 29,879
BEAET/ (B8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 2,051,018 417,656 716304  (1,077,214)  (158,098) - 1,949,666
BOA(x) /B Taxation (expenses)/credit (338,200) (68,936)  (118,357) (14879) 179,205 - (361,167)
FRERH/(BE) Profit/(loss) for the year 1,712,818 348,720 597,947 (1,092,093) 21,107 - 1,588,499
HZ20225 12318 For the year ended
IHEE 31 December 2022
WEREHEER Depreciation and amortisation 74,355 15,862 8,150 58,725 234,643 - 391,735
14202212 A31A At 31 December 2022
NEEE Segment assets 56,274,744 63,748,997 93,451,822 35,908,242 8,252,664  (4,720,097) 252,916,372
HEAE Segment liabilities 117,229,213 48,743,485 14,526,149 29,279,831 16,850,862  (4,720,097) 221,909,443
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. EESEREW@ 6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
HZE2021F12A31BIFE For the year ended 31 December 2021
HERER
mEES
N < Treasury BINRIT BIEE
Personal  Corporate  andGlobal ~ Overseas Hif Inter- fazt
Banking Banking Markets Banking Others segment Total
FRBUMA/ () Net interest income/(expenses) 1,637,016 1,194,462 747,645 494,999 (133,730) - 3,940,392
SHBMA/ (i) Non-interest income(expenses) 991658 208,776 60980 133646 34,316 (2506) 1435870
BEWA/(FH) Total operating income/(expenses) 2628674 1403238 817,625 628,645 (99,414) (2,506) 5,376,262
BETH Operating expenses (1724721)  (520859) (206615  (537.204) (44,591 2506  (3031484)
NREEREBEN Operating profit/(loss) before credit
EEET/(B5R) impairment losses 903,953 882,379 611,010 91,44 (144,005) - 2344778
FERERE Credit impairment losses (178,654)  (126,488) (15,475) (51,283) (1,443) - (373,343)
NBEERESER Operating profit/(loss) after credit
BERH/(B8) impairment losses 725,299 755,891 595,535 40,158 (145,448) - 1,971,435
LERENE R Net (loss)/gain on disposal and fair
BEEERHEATE value adjustment of investment
ERE(BR) Y properties and other fixed assets (2,326) (1,034) (16) (29) 629 - (2,776)
HEURTEFEEEEE)  Net gain on disposal of financial
AR ENEN assets at fair value through other
SREAE FhE comprehensive income - - 4,993 - - - 4,993
BEZRERE Share of results of an associate - - - 697,954 - - 697,954
NI Impairment loss on the investment in an
associate - - - (726,000) - - (726,000)
BENAREZRESE  Losson deemed disposal of investment
in an associate - - - (31,202) - - (31,202)
[E(EERIHIBEEZEE  Share of results of jointly controlled
entities - - - - 33,060 - 33,060
BEAET/(B8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 722,973 754,857 600,512 (19,119  (111,759) - 1947464
BB/ Taxation (expenses)/credit (119,336)  (124,561) (98,914) (34,927) 68,699 - (309,039)
FERH/(B8) Profit/(loss) for the year 603,637 630,296 501,598 (54,046) (43,060 - 1,638,425
EZ2021512A31A For the year ended
IR 31 December 2021
FEREHER Depreciation and amortisation 76,645 15,500 8,070 59,364 246,513 - 406,092
20215124318 At 31 December 2021
PEEE Segment assets 56,651,282 70,473,506 80,791,990 38,977,756 8,278,471 (5,351,378) 249,821,627
PERE Segment liabilities 114,634275 49,555,753 12,777,503 30,182,181 17,294,557  (5,351,378) 219,092,891

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Geographical information

Geographical segment information is based on the domicile of the legal
entities within the Group with business dealing and relationship with,
and services to external customers. For the period ended 31 December
2022 and 2021, no single country or geographical segment other than
Hong Kong contributed 10% or more of the Group’s assets, liabilities,

operating income, or profit before taxation.

7. NETINTEREST INCOME

2022 2021
FIEWA Interest income
R& RERITHEEH Cash and balances with banks 327,255 148,094
BHIE Investments in securities 1,882,200 1,000,982
FSHEHEREEMRE Advances and other accounts 4,755,158 4,021,208
6,964,613 5,170,284
FEXZH Interest expense
RTINS BEPER Deposits from banks/Deposits from
customers 2,278,236 1,070,336
BEITRTF R Certificates of deposit issued 104,812 43,284
BIEER Subordinated notes 164,346 103,308
HEAaGEHTF27(2)) Lease liabilities (Note 27(b)) 8,201 9,654
Hth Others 37,391 3,310
2,592,986 1,229,892
FMEWABE Included within interest income
—FEEERAENBELK — Trading securities and financial
AT EEBEEES A assets at fair value through
BalemEE profit or loss 6,258 2,508
—AAFEFEBEESA — Financial assets at fair value through
Hib 2K mMEmEE other comprehensive income 1,052,753 465,524
— AR AP BR M S B E B — Financial assets at amortised cost 5,905,602 4,702,252
6,964,613 5,170,284
MEXHEE Included within interest expense
—RUAAFEFEEHEEHTA — Financial liabilities not at fair value
BEaera s through profit or loss 2,585,900 1,228,916

REZE2022F F2021F12 A31 B ILFE - WiERE
REBEEEZFBMA -

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there was no interest

income recognised on impaired assets.
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. FHREBERMAEWA 8. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
2022 2021
REERASEA Fee and commission income
KANFEFZ2AESBA Fee and commission income from
BanemEEREEY financial assets and liabilities not at
AR5 2 KW fair value through profit or loss
—EEAEEZRBERAS — Credit related fees and commissions 156,941 170,138
—E5mE — Trade finance 57,761 80,739
—ERAFR — Credit card 250,016 276,816
H RIS E RAE WA Other fee and commission income
—BHKL A — Securities brokerage 144,653 215,359
— R HE R EMGE(F)) — Insurance distribution and others
(Note (a)) 1,518,633 218,564
—ZERENIEEIERSE — Retail investment and wealth
management services 157,757 303,980
—RITIRBEBERFEE — Bank services and handling fees 70,096 70,770
—H RS & — Other fees 76,890 70,456

2,432,747 1,406,822

REERASXH Fee and commission expense
FUAFEFEEEES A Fee and commission expense from
BEameREERBEZ financial assets and liabilities not at
RSB RMe = H fair value through profit or loss
—FEERAE — Handling fees and commission 176,750 201,717
—BfNEMER — Other fees paid 6,902 7,682
183,652 209,399

EE Note:

() M2022%EE 27 BB EHRAN202257 A8 (a) The amount reported for 2022 includes recognition of the unamortised
AREBSMHEIIEBAZSRE D EHE RS upfront payment and deferred payments totalling HK$1,394,149,000 upon
TR R IR S N £ 584 $£1,394,149,000/8 termination of the HKDA announced by the Group on 8 July 2022.

o

() AEBREZFRETE 5T CETERK (b)  The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and
BEERE BESHERENEERUZEAS investment management services to third parties. The assets subject to
DAY TR EENSESMEREN - these services are held in a fiduciary capacity and are not included in

these consolidated financial statements.
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. FEEBEWA 9. NET TRADING INCOME
2022 2021
IVEE =5 Net gain arising from dealing in foreign
currencies 144,193 182,048
REEERBNES 2 FEE Net loss on trading securities (452) (23)
FEEERSENITETRE 2 F e Net gain from derivatives entered into
for trading purpose 8,035 4,241
BAFEHHHEEeRIAZ Net loss arising from financial
FIETE instruments subject to fair value
hedge (3,785) (7,310)
LAATERT 2 B HEBF ABRN Net loss on financial instruments at fair
TRTAZHEE value through profit or loss (3,980) (8,975)
144,011 174,981
10. Hfb&EWA 10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2022 2021
RERDFE ZAAFERFER Dividend income from investments
HEBi ARt ERED in equity instruments at fair value
T RERE 2R BWA through other comprehensive income,
held at the end of the year
— LETRE — Listed investments 716 1,323
—JEEMIRE — Unlisted investments 3,410 13,920
WEME S WAL Gross rental income from investment
properties 18,310 17,831
EmiAL WA Other rental income 16,763 16,470
Hith Others 12,064 13,922
51,263 63,466
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

11, &EXH 11. OPERATING EXPENSES
2022 2021
1B B H e F sz i (FsE12) Employee compensation and benefit
expenses (Note 12) 2,043,778 1,971,746
TEREMETEESH - Premises and other fixed assets
TBENE expenses, excluding depreciation
—TEMESZH(MF27(2)) — Rental of premises (Note 27(b)) 3,952 4,800
—H A — Others 249,018 229,980
e Depreciation
— 17 SR E A E E B E (M Fr27 () — Premises and other fixed assets
(Note 27(a)) 243,591 213,726
—BEREZWENF27(2)) — Right-of-use properties (Note 27(b)) 148,144 192,366
EEMEEESS T Advertising and promotion costs 89,824 75,791
ENR ~ X EREE Printing, stationery and postage 41,295 45,545
ZERI B2 Auditors’ remuneration 11,244 10,867
Hit Others 195,206 286,663
3,026,052 3,031,484

12. EEFMRENZH

12. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT

EXPENSES
2022 2021
HMREMASEER Salaries and other staff costs 1,939,689 1,873,517
BT B — [MRBEZE ETEIGE(R)) Government grant — Employment Support
Scheme (Note (a)) (3,704) -
VARG AD BB RN 2 Provision for share-based compensation
B RE (M7E43) charged (Note 43) 239 480
RARETH - REHKEE Pension costs — defined contribution
plans 107,554 97,749
2,043,778 1,971,746
E Note:

() 120224 - AEBEFRFETHEEBRARLANR
TRESHEROMRIE FHEI(TTRHEIFE D)
2EL - ZEESL AR RLERMIECHE - U
REFRSWEHWET - BRIEMRFAE G
B REBTESNEZRSHUEHBRE X
BEHHMARINEREETE -

176 KER1TER QR 2022F F5

(a) In 2022, the Group applied for funding support from the Employment
Support Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the
Hong Kong Government. The purpose of the funding is to provide financial
support to enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise be
made redundant. Under the terms of the ESS, the Group is restricted from
making redundancies during the period covered by the cash subsidy and
to spend all the funding on paying wages to its employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

13. CREDIT IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

2022 2021
T EE (BB R 2 ) New allowances net of allowance
releases 868,342 461,635
W El@ B s 2 RIA Recoveries of amounts previously
written off (65,242) (88,292)
803,100 373,343
DB : Attributable to:
—REERRBH — Loans and advances to customers 784,312 394,119
—HEmemEE — Other financial assets 40,419 14,590
— BERURIE R BER — Loan commitments and
financial guarantees (21,631) (35,366)
803,100 373,343
14. H1\ 14. TAXATION

B FE BT IR R N5 5T FE SR AR B bAR
16.5% (2021 : 16.5% ) IR B4l  JGINHRTD
RENBIMESHERTUR MK AR E B S X5
&2 BITRIRAH -

EEHBERRAAEEINERER  KRABZSE
MIARER BN EEN THRRMERZH
KR BIHER -

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2021:

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on

overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit

for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which

the Group operates.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under

the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the

year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.

2022 2021

REERIA Current income tax:

—HBNEH — Hong Kong profits tax 352,450 282,406

—/BINEIE — Overseas taxation 37,687 41,482

—RIBTFEBRE B — Over-provision in prior years - (10,002)
RAERIE (FI5E34) - Deferred income tax (Note 34):

— AR ERE RN ESE RED — Origination and reversal of timing

differences (28,970) (4,847)

IR Taxation 361,167 309,039
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

14. FHEw@)

AREBRBADGEN 2 HIRB IR EGA SRR INE
FHREAE ZIEREEMOT

14. TAXATION (Continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical

amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable

to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

2022 2021
Rt B A Profit before taxation 1,949,666 1,947,464
BB BFERE16.5%T 8 2 HIHE Tax calculated at Hong Kong profits tax
rate of 16.5% 321,695 321,332
FIEREIRR - Tax effects of:
HABEKRz TRRE Different taxation rates in other
countries 17,208 26,789
EEZ WA Income not subject to taxation (130,931) (30,075)
TEEHRBIZ Expenses not deductible 273,352 133,978
AT B BT 2 3 2 B A A Results of associates and jointly
MRS B S 2 %45 controlled entities reported
net of tax (113,284) (120,617)
REMEEWEPRRZIER Items recorded in other
comprehensive income (6,873) (12,366)
BT F E R 2 B Over-provision in prior years - (10,002)
TiIE Taxation 361,167 309,039
15. EEM< 15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
2022 2021
BE8E Directors’ fee 3,685 4,039
e A BE - BUN&: Salaries, bonuses, housing, benefits in
K At ARG kind and other allowances 112,196 114,287
LARR A7 7 BB R BN A =2 4<F Share-based compensation payment - -
RINEFEEL 2 EEHK Employer’s contribution to retirement
benefit schemes 2,423 2,384
118,304 120,710
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15. EEMew

AR D 7R 2 3B 2 S B4R {0 52 B =t &1
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RELAR & ST Z AR B R ERE 2 ST » AR
REETE 2B - ERRBHBRONE L B
M o LARRHE ST 2 AR E R B N 2 3
B ERERAEE SRR TR BRI
S e MAR S A Z AR ERER AT 2 3]
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

15. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Share-based compensation payment includes share awards, equity-
settled and cash-settled share based payment on the share options
exercised or cancelled during the year. Share-settled portion generated
from Incentive Bonuses accrued in respect of services rendered in the
year is excluded. For share awards, it represents the cost of the vested
shares based on the closing price of the vesting date. For equity-settled
share based compensations, it represents the cost borne by the Group
recognised on the exercise of the share options while for cash-settled
share based compensation, it represents the cash payment, being
the difference between the exercise price and the average closing
price of the shares of the Company for the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the date of cancellation of the share options.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Bank was a party and in which
a director of the Bank had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2021: Nil).

No other emoluments were paid to or receivable by any director in
respect of directors’ other services in connection with management of
the affairs of the Bank or its subsidiaries undertakings during the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

No termination payments or benefits were made to the directors and no

consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for making
available directors’ services during the year (2021: Nil).
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

16. |RE 16. DIVIDENDS
2022 2021
EIRF RS - FREEAR2.258 T Interim dividend paid of HK$2.25
(20214 : 2.25%87T) (2021: HK$2.25) per ordinary share 139,500 139,500
FORREARE : BARE@EAR6.10787T Proposed final dividend of HK$6.10
(20214 : 5.00/%7T) (2021: HK$5.00) per ordinary share 378,200 310,000
517,700 449,500
17. BERERTHERR 17. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS
2022 2021
Re RIFRITHLERR Cash and balances with banks 3,273,316 3,019,169
BRI ERTER Money at call and short notice 14,529,515 8,989,779
17,802,831 12,008,948
Mk - ORE%EE Less: impairment allowance
—PEER1 — Stage 1 (1,951) (1,195)
17,800,880 12,007,753
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

18. HEEERAENESRUQFETE 18. TRADING SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS

BESBETABENEREE AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2022 2021
FHEEERGRNES Trading securities:
BEBES Debt securities:
—&ELET — Listed in Hong Kong 16,866 12,285
—3k M — Unlisted 545,295 4,413,099

562,161 4,425,384

LAAFERFE BEHE B A Financial assets at fair value through
BRle/mEE profit or loss:
HWEES Investment funds:
—&ELEM — Listed in Hong Kong 9,303 14,119
9,303 14,119
&t Total 571,464 4,439,503
PREEBHELFAR Included within debt securities are:
—BERER(ZRBELER) — Treasury bills which are cash
equivalents 89,278 2,304,220
—Hih BB =g — Other treasury bills 455,887 2,108,879
- B ES — Government bonds 16,996 12,285
562,161 4,425,384
BT - By issuers:
— R R ERTT — Central governments and
central banks 562,161 4,425,384
—1% — Corporate entities 9,303 14,119
571,464 4,439,503
20224 2021612 A31H » Eill &R ER As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no certificates of
HERBEERE - deposit held included in the above balances.
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. fT£E€mIT A 19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
20225 12 A1 AR ZTET AR HRER The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and
SREQNFEAT : their fair values as of 31 December 2022 were as follows:
&8/
£5eE o¥E
Contract/ Fair values
notional &E =l
amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEEREZITETE 1) Derivatives held for trading
) SNELTETA a) Foreign exchange derivatives
REREEAY Forward and futures contracts 89,702,960 619,726 (517,746)
B8\ O L N B Currency options purchased and written 15,996,882 54,410 (55,034)
B R Cross currency interest rate swaps 258,108 8,646 (8,565)
Z) FIELTETA b) Interest rate derivatives
| &4 AR Interest rate swaps 2,546,183 61,362 (56,702)
A) EmtTE TR ¢) Equity derivatives
B RO s 1 e Equity options purchased and written 229,616 2,400 (2,400)
HIEEBERBZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
BE/(BR)AF trading 108,733,749 746,544 (640,447)
2) FHEEDRR®ZITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
) IEEURTFELFZ a) Derivatives designated
1TETA as fair value hedges
st Interest rate swaps 47,823,185 3,154,692 (357,190)
BEgRRBZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
BE/(BE)AR hedging 47,823,185 3,154,692 (357,190)
ERRAZITESRIA Total recognised derivative financial assets/
LE/(BE)As (liabilities) 156,556,934 3,901,236 (997,637)
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. fTE€mI A 19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
R2021F 12 A1 AR ZITET AR HNRER The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts and
SREQNFEAT : their fair values as of 31 December 2021 were as follows:
a4/
£50W A¥E
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE BE
amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEEREZITETE 1) Derivatives held for trading
i) SNELTAET R a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BEERREBEESH Forward and futures contracts 73,866,338 305,938 (266,003)
B RO o Currency options purchased and written 8,296,314 5,106 (5,275)
Cross currency interest rate swaps 404,909 4,734 (4,491)
Z) FIELTETA b) Interest rate derivatives
S Interest rate swaps 4,953,683 25,773 (21,335)
) EapTET A ¢) Equity derivatives
BB O e e 1 Equity options purchased and written 472,050 18,854 (18,855)
BEEERGZITETIA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
BE/(BE)A trading 87,993,294 360,405 (315,959)
2) BEHRBIITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
) EEUARNFEE P2 a) Derivatives designated as
tTETAR fair value hedges
Sy Interest rate swaps 49,477,473 260,651 (1,109,406)
BESRRBZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities) held for
BE/(BE)AR hedging 49,477,473 260,651 (1,109,406)
ERRAZITESMTAEEE/ Total recognised derivative financial assets/
(BE)AF (liabilities) 137,470,767 621,056 (1,425,365)
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

19. fTEE€mIAEmw 19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

BEERS HHRS @t
Trading Hedging Total
CEFA Notional amount 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
EEEH Exchange rate contracts
EHRAEAN Forward and futures
contracts 89,702,960 73,866,338 - - 89,702,960 73,866,338
SNEERESL Foreign exchange option
contracts
—BASNEEE ~ Currency options
purchased 8,066,306 4,235,863 - - 8,066,306 4,235,863
— i HNE B — Currency options written 7,930,576 4,060,451 - - 7,930,576 4,060,451
— R E Tl — Cross currency interest
rate swaps 258,108 404,909 - - 258,108 404,909
105,957,950 82,567,561 - - 105,957,950 82,567,561
MEaH Interest rate contracts
FllZ s 5 Interest rate swaps 2,546,183 4,953,683 47,823,185 49,477 473 50,369,368 54,431,156
2,546,183 4,953,683 47,823,185 49,477,473 50,369,368 54,431,156
HinaH Other contracts
EnltHEAY Equity option contracts
N - Options purchased 114,808 236,025 - - 114,808 236,025
— b #RE — Options written 114,808 236,025 - - 114,808 236,025
229,616 472,050 - - 229,616 472,050
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20. BEEXRRHEMIRE

fre MR T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2022 2021

BEFERRBRERE

OB+ REEE
—PEER1
—PEER2
—F&ER3

K SRERE
B
— R

Hith & 2= (Ff7k29)

B - REREE
—FEER1
—REER2
—FEER3

BHEERNHEMRR

Gross loans and advances to customers 136,530,371 144,314,008

Less: impairment allowances
— Stage 1
— Stage 2
— Stage 3

Trade bills

Less: impairment allowances
— Stage 1
— Stage 2

Other assets (Note 29)

Less: impairment allowances
— Stage 1
— Stage 2
— Stage 3

Advances and other accounts

(406,618)  (469,184)
(342,731)  (354,154)
(887,053)  (547,609)

(1,636,402)  (1,370,947)

134,893,969 142,943,061

3,666,988 4,253,850

(5,569) (7,347)
(1) -
(5,570) (7,347)

3,661,418 4,246,503

4,184,605 5,296,498

(10,169) (11,298)

(2,238) (489)
(12,786) (13,771)
(25,193) (25,558)

4,159,412 5,270,940

142,714,799 152,460,504
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. SEEFKREMRE @

() BEEEFERRBRzBEHEEK
BRINE :

EFERLBNEEREREMERAAREMR
EFMZEBANMEETFEP ZRBREF
o ANREABRAREERRERERE - @\
EBEZLBEE -

20. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)

(a) Loans and advances to customers include finance
lease receivables as follows:

Loans and advances to customers include net investments in
equipment leased to customers under finance leases and hire purchase
contracts having the characteristics of finance leases. The contracts
have an option for acquiring by the lessee the leased asset at nominal
value at the end of the lease period.

2022 2021
REERENRSE 2 EWARESE - Gross investment in finance lease
receivables:
1E AR Not later than 1 year 901,741 1,088,890
16 LA EE55F Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 1,652,739 1,721,515
5% Later than 5 years 837,773 419,025

REHE 2 RMEUZBE WA

BMEMEREFBRZOMMT

1EAR
1F LA EE5F

5F AL

20224 2021128310 » LllREHER
BREANWSHEERFISERE -

R2022F 12A318 - "EBEZEFREEEE

BARKE 2 mERERURIER N EFET A
30,782,000/ 7T (20214F : 51,224,000/ 7T) °

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,

3,392,253 3,229,430

Unearned future finance income on
finance leases (468,733) (195,201)

Net investment in finance leases 2,923,520 3,034,229

The net investment in finance leases is
analysed as follows:

Not later than 1 year 801,909 1,010,973
Later than 1 year and not later than

5 years 1,482,616 1,640,033
Later than 5 years 638,995 383,223

2,923,520 3,034,229

There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross
investment in finance leases above as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The allowance for uncollectible finance lease receivables included
in the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2022 of the Group
amounted to HK$30,782,000 (2021: HK$51,224,000).
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

21. UAFEFEEEESHFAEMEZE 21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

KENEMEE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2022 2021
BFES Debt securities:
—&B&EL™ — Listed in Hong Kong 13,609,856 16,676,005
— BB TR — Listed outside Hong Kong 15,742,345 16,208,367
—3 M — Unlisted 8,590,336 8,459,782

HER MBS -
L
~3 Lt

BIEEERELRNE
—FENEHRE
-BEEZR(ZRAELER)

—HEERE
—BRES
—H AR ES

AT (E 8 EREBEHA
Hip 2 ERENSBARE
BRTRBERH T

ERHES -
— e R R IR
— DB
— RATRH A S RIS
— 0%

RIS
— %

37,942,537 41,344,154

Equity securities:

— Listed in Hong Kong 337 481
— Unlisted 674,977 89,101
675,314 89,582

Total 38,617,851 41,433,736

Included within debt securities are:

— Certificates of deposit held 234,493 489,774
— Treasury bills which are

cash equivalents 897,617 2,439,243
— Other treasury bills 3,867,536 5,459,898
— Government bonds 635,348 708,540
— Other debt securities 32,307,543 32,246,699

37,942,537 41,344,154

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are
analysed by categories of issuers as
follows:

Debt securities:
— Central governments and central

banks 9,160,937 7,987,115
— Public sector entities 802,807 789,164
— Banks and other financial

institutions 5,902,047 6,792,715
— Corporate entities 22,076,746 25,775,160

37,942,537 41,344,154

Equity securities:
— Corporate entities 675,314 89,582

38,617,851 41,433,736
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

21. UAFEFEBESFHFT AEMEHE
WENEREE @)

ETUAFEFEBEEH T ALMEERED
EatTARERFRNERBESRZEREZME
HE o RIIE®RA - & 2 A F{ER7,817,000
7&70(2021 : 17,741,00078 7T ) I 4 ) & BT E
18 (2021 « R51EE/R33,619,000%7T) °

22, DBBRAIIRNEREE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

Certain investments in equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income have been sold during the year
due to risk monitoring consideration. The fair value of the investments
at the date of derecognition was HK$7,817,000 (2021: HK$17,741,000)
and no cumulative gain or loss on disposal has been recognised during
2022 (2021: cumulative loss of HK$33,619,000).

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST

2022 2021

BEBES Debt securities:
—&BELE™ — Listed in Hong Kong 11,895,925 9,748,480
— BB TR — Listed outside Hong Kong 12,981,228 9,869,613
—3EETM — Unlisted 8,108,343 4,943,209

kR - REREE

—PEERA

BREBBESFANE
—RAENTFRE
—BERE
—BUFES
—HEHES

AR ATIR S RIE E
WBITHIBRR DT

— PR REEAT B AR RERTT

N
—PITRE S AR

—6%
—Hib

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,

32,985,496 24,561,302

Less: impairment allowance
— Stage 1 (59,406) (30,116)

Total 32,926,090 24,531,186

Included within debt securities are:

— Certificates of deposit held 3,120,178 1,537,364
— Treasury bills 1,121,950 921,707
— Government bonds 214,612 242,800
— Other debt securities 28,528,756 21,859,431

32,985,496 24,561,302

Financial assets at amortised cost are
analysed by categories of issuers as

follows:
— Central governments and central

banks 1,336,562 1,164,507
— Public sector entities 1,410,432 529,658
— Banks and other financial

institutions 10,420,964 7,880,487
— Corporate entities 19,817,538 14,984,197
— Others - 2,453

32,985,496 24,561,302
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. BMEQRARE

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

2022 2021
ELEEFE Share of net assets 6,489,667 6,878,328
[k Goodwill 344,623 344,623
6,834,290 7,222,951
MR - REZERE Less: impairment allowances (4,675,000) (2,992,000)
2,159,290 4,230,951
12A31B 2R E Fair value at 31 December 1,866,400 2,045,244

AEEBREERITZEENATFEDNZEEER
TTHRE 20224 2021 48 2 Wi (8 -

The fair value of the Group’s investment in Bank of Chongqing shown
above is calculated with reference to the closing market price of
BOCQ’s H-shares as at the end of 2022 and 2021.

2022 2021 F12 AB1B 2B E AR 2 X E & The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31
BT December 2022 and 2021:
MR EE R FiEERE St
=18 Place of incorporation FEEWR Percentage of
Name and operation Principal activities interest in ownership
2022 2021
BERIT AREE A RHEAME BT
Bank of Chongging People’s Republic of China Banking 13.20% 13.20%
2022 2021
1H1H At 1 January 4,230,951 4,277,927
(AT SEE Share of results, net of tax 656,691 697,954
FE(RBRFRBIEE BAHEE Share of investment revaluation reserve,
net of tax (226,037) 44,040
B AR S Dividend received (209,484) (206,338)
B ERRE Impairment loss charged (1,683,000) (726,000)
REME 2 k58 Loss on deemed disposal (10) (31,202)
BE 3 22 2 [ A SR B Exchange differences and other
adjustments (609,821) 174,570
12H31H At 31 December 2,159,290 4,230,951

Eﬁ RAKEHEEERRITNEFEAZIRKAER [
FraE 2 EARREMVRKBIE - MARBIRR AYE
BIRITAEARTES -

W-—W

The Group is considered to have significant influence over BOCQ on
the basis of its representation on the board of directors and participation
in policy-making process.
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

190

23. BZEATRE@m) 23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)
() EBRRITZREMKER (a) Selected financial information of BOCQ
EERRITZEEENSEAHA12A318 - The statutory accounting reference date of BOCQ is 31 December.
B E2022F K 2021F12 A31 A L FEHIfE - A% For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the results of
BEEERITE AMREE2022612A31H BOCQ were included by the Group on the basis of BOCQ’s financial
1E12{B A 2 B iRk 2 248 - statements announced for and made up to the 12 months to 31
December 2022.
20224 20214
12A31H 12A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
EEROTIEREERAEEH Selected balance sheet information of
BOCQ
Be RIERRIRITHES Cash and balances with central banks 45,946,001 45,612,239
FEUCEL b ERTT M B Due from other banks and financial
institutions 48,589,056 54,969,190
BRERM Loans and advances to customers 383,513,820 376,276,117
i Jﬁl%rﬂéﬁ? Other financial assets 275,311,617 268,688,065
HinEE Other assets 13,465,538 13,365,802
BEAT Total assets 766,826,032 758,911,413
eI R ERTT Due to central banks 44,158,597 62,080,178
RPEH - ERBEITREMSR Customer deposits, and amounts due to
IS RE banks and other financial institutions 476,494,843 431,920,104
Hivemad Other financial liabilities 183,203,799 198,505,347
Hiv& & Other liabilities 5,297,773 6,023,426
BEas Total liabilities 709,155,012 698,529,055
E=mAE Total equity 57,671,020 60,382,358
ek EfbiERET A Less: Other equity instruments (6,239,197) (6,019,400)
b 8RR Less: Non-controlling interests (2,417,877)  (2,419,756)
TR E S ERE R Total equity attributable to ordinary
shareholders 49,013,946 51,943,202
EERIT R ERA T Reconciliation of BOCQ's total shareholders’
RRITHREFBREAZ equity to the carrying amount in the
EREEUER Bank'’s consolidated financial statements
RRITEG R R ER AR The Bank’s share of total shareholders’
equity 6,468,932 6,855,608
m: BERZHERATERE Add: Goodwill and fair value adjustment at
acquisition 365,358 367,343
b - BE Less: Impairment (4,675,000)  (2,992,000)
REE Carrying amount 2,159,290 4,230,951

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,




23. BZEATRE@m)

(F) EERITZREMBER @
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(a) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)

20225 20214

12A31H 12H31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

[EEERRITZ AR ERAE Share of BOCQ's contingent liabilities and

commitments 12,065,327 9,919,288

20225 20214

1818 1A18

£20225F 220214

12A31H 12A31H

1E121@ A 1H121E A

12 months 12 months

from from

1 January 1 January

2022 to 2021 to

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

BRI EERERER Selected income statement information of
BOCQ

SEFIBUA Net interest income 12,536,232 13,994,140
FREE KA WA Net fee and commission income 883,061 927,758
EXBBER Loan impairment charges (4,128,183)  (6,155,105)
BIES Tax expense (1,359,852)  (1,488,054)
FREEM Profit for the year 5,934,531 5,863,517
Htb 2 Other comprehensive income (1,739,289) 372,671
2EMEEEE Total comprehensive income 4,195,242 6,236,188
BUEERITRE Dividend received from BOCQ 209,484 206,338
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. HKEQATRE®

(2) REZBERNARR2022F #E 2R
=1

M2022F12A318 - AEEEEERITZREZ
AFHESRREBEARLNIF « At - AEEFE
HIEEFRITZIRE 2 R EETRE R AT
AU El & 58 »

WMEARLHAGEERBE(ERER)ME
EZEERTAINESENZIRE 2 RHE - £
REENRBEEEGREZEERRITANRK
RIS - REEREERITHHMERZER
REBEFERZFERARROAERTFEE  EH
RBRERFE - BEAREREEHEZ
BERE T2 Z RN R TS EE 2 EERITRA
AT EHE ©

ETERBEEFEASEZKREZTKRE S
B ARBERMARBRAREETSEHLE
ERRARRFEEREEZ2H8AE - HET
BEHARREBERRTT 2 RIE N R LR
EEROTAREKAFHEZPHRERTERE -
EHEEBRTZAKRREREPFTEETREE
ER2HE -

192 X#RITERAT 20224 53

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2022

At 31 December 2022, the fair value of the Group’s investment in
BOCQ had been below the carrying amount for approximately 9 years.
On this basis, the Group continues to perform an impairment test on the
carrying amount of the investment in BOCQ to assess the recoverable
amount.

The impairment test is performed by comparing the recoverable amount
of BOCQ, determined by a value in use (“VIU”) calculation, with the
carrying amount of the investment. The VIU calculation uses discounted
cash flow projections based on management’s estimates of BOCQ'’s
earnings and dividends to be paid in future, and the estimated probable
exit value in future after considering the growth of BOCQ and its net
asset value for the medium and longer term. The discount rate applied
to the VIU calculation was estimated with reference to BOCQ’s cost of
equity, which is publicly available in the market.

In performing the VIU calculation to arrive at the recoverable amount
of the investment, the Group considers all relevant factors including
market views and qualitative factors to ensure that the inputs to the
VIU calculation are appropriate. Adjustments need to be made to
reflect the latest situation affecting BOCQ and also market outlook for
the medium and longer term that are relevant in projecting BOCQ’s
future performance. Significant management judgement is required in
estimating the future cash flows of BOCQ.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. BZEATRE@m)

(Z) BEZRENZRRR2022F R ZH
B (@)

R2022F - B EREC B FETHAEEN
I D 287 HEGBE AR R EMNEER R
REBEERITARRABEARRATEA - R IEH
BMIRENHSEUARREERITEINTIRER
2o PNIBEBMEE TETHE 2022012 A31 A{FEAE
1B732,159,000,000/% 7T * & FIERA 2 ERLE
T

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2022 (Continued)

In 2022, Senior Management has revised their best estimates on
certain inputs in the VIU calculation to reflect the latest economic
conditions and projection of BOCQ’s future performance. The PB ratio
has been refined to better reflect the latest trend of BOCQ’s PB ratio.
The key inputs underlying our HK$2,159 million VIU on our investment
in BOCQ as at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

2022 2021

FERFIERE Annual profit growth rate Z2024FMEHMA  F2025FHEEN
NF6%ZE7% NTF6%ZE7%

REEER% TRBFER%

Ranging from Ranging from

6% — 7% in the 6% — 7% in the

near term up to near term up to

2024, and 5% per 2025, and 5% per

annum thereafter annum thereafter

R SR B L 2 Dividend payout ratio 25.3% 29.3%
BRER R Discount rate 12.0% 13.3%
AT REE Bz KRB KR EEER PB ratio for estimation of 0.27 0.66

iR

F A EEMN2EE T A RPN 2022 F & = 1y E
B & - 20224 £1,683,000,0005%8 7T ¢ HH LR
20214 #9726,000,000/8 7T °

potential future recovery
value under different holding
periods

The revision of the inputs used in the VIU assessment has brought a
higher impairment charge in 2022 at HK$1,683 million compared to
HK$726 million in 2021.
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. HKEQATRE®
(Z2) BEZREANRRNR2022FRREB 2R

B (@)

TEMPERERACRNALNEASH LS
BUEAEEOYE - L THERRER EEY
SE-FASHZWENHHEE - ZR—EHH

B TR e

TRATBETA R — B ) 3R

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2022 (Continued)

The following table illustrates the impact on VIU of changes to key

inputs which management considers as reasonable and possible. The

following summary reflects the sensitivity of the VIU in response to the

change of each key input. It is possible that more than one favourable

and/or unfavourable change may occur at the same time.

BHlwEe ARlpEe
Favourable change Unfavourable change
EREEN EREEN
3 Tk
20224 2022 Increase EREE Decrease ERER
(AE%T) (In millions of Hong Kong dollars) inVIU ViU in VIU ViU
FRRTERE Annual profit growth rate +1% 42 2,201 1% (42) 2,117
R BIRE L& Dividend payout ratio +5% 126 2,285 5% (126) 2,033
B % Discount rate -25H % 25 2,184 +25E % (25) 2,134
-25 bps +25 bps
L= PB ratio +15% 50 2,209 1% (50) 2,109
+1bp -1 bp
BHmEs Nk
Favourable change Unfavourable change
FREEN HREER
H T
20214 2021 Increase  {FAEE Decrease  {#FFAfEE
(BB#T) (In millions of Hong Kong dollars) in VIU ViU in VIU ViU
FERMERE Annual profit growth rate +1.0% 76 4,307 -1.0% (76) 4,155
REIRE & Dividend payout ratio +6.3% 99 4330 -6.3% (99) 4132
HRE Discount rate -25EZ 54 4285 +255% (54) 4177
-25 bps +25 bps
iR PB ratio HE 50 4,281 1% (50) 4181
+1 bp -1bp
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23. HKEQATRE®

(Z) BEZREINRRR2021 FEREBZH
B (@)

RIEEZE2022F 12 A31B ZARR T EZE LM E
RE2HNGRENS2E 2 E N TR EMmE
TZaHh KA ERZEREBERKERMAE
HAZ(EBEHE2021F12A31BEERZZ
FORERR)MEE2BEMEE 2 T KRE S5
TSNERBREAE - AEEFE2022F12 431 H 2tk
SUETTBEITREAR - RELTEFABEERZ
A e B AHE AIEA IR B E20215F12 A31H
2 25TR{ERT$22,992,000,00078 7014 Z BREIE -
T A RRE % 51,683,000,000/8 7T ° AL 7
2022 FF FF [ HERFTIL R B #451,683,000,0007% 7T
LAFERZIE & 2 (BfE£2,159,000,00055 7T °

HEARITZERFT R RWEBIEZIRE 2R
BAMN  HARTUREERTZESK SR
N o MEZIRERIFTERNIERVIRIEERAZ
1,213,000,000/8 7T - %18 & 2 MBS T E AR
TZERFRLLE -

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Impairment testing on the investment and impairment
recognised in 2022 (Continued)

Based on the assessment conducted for the position up to 31
December 2022, which takes into account the sensitivity of the key
inputs shown above and the effects of possible interaction of these
inputs, the recoverable amount, as determined by the VIU calculation
and after considering all relevant factors (including the cumulative
impairment charge having been recognised as of 31 December 2021)
and valuation inputs, remained below the carrying amount. The latest
impairment test performed by the Group for the position as at 31
December 2022 concludes that the recoverable amount, based on
the VIU calculation, is assessed as lower than the carrying amount,
after deducting the cumulative impairment allowance made up to 31
December 2021 of HK$2,992 million, by HK$1,683 million. As a result,
an additional impairment charge of HK$1,683 million was recognised
in the year of 2022 to reduce the value of the investment to HK$2,159
million at 31 December 2022.

The calculation of the Bank’s capital adequacy does not include the
retained earnings from the investment, except for BOCQ cash dividend
received by the Bank. Provided that the investment continues to be
held at or above the original cost of the investment of HK$1,213 million,
impairment made on the investment does not affect the Bank’s capital
adequacy.
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24, HEEZEHERKRE 24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES
2022 2021
JE LT » A Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000
RGBS Share of post-acquisition reserves 103,072 94,373
123,072 114,373
20224 2 2021F 12 A31 B £ EEH E 2 The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December 2022
N and 2021:
HERRZESL
i B FTEERRQE I Percentage of
28 Place of Principal activities and effective interest
Name incorporation place of operation in ownership
REEIRAR AR BB REER - BF
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, Hong Kong 13.333%
REMETEAR LA ) BECER BB
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%
Hong Kong
RIS AR AT 5 BESER  BE
BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business, 13.333%
Hong Kong
ERBHERBR AR 2 ERAARRITIFA - MR The interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is directly held by the
BEE AR A A MR & B AR A A SR B E % Bank. Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited and BCT Financial
BERATZE2EWB AT ° Limited are the wholly owned subsidiaries of Bank Consortium Holding
Limited.
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25. BERENEE

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

EFEfE
& BOVER BY&E
EVEE  BFEE  Customer B eEEs
%%  Contract Coredeposit relationship Trade Club &5
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles name debentures Total
A Cost
20221 A1A At 1 January 2022 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 - 1,047,801
i Additions - - - - - 2,753 2,753
20224128318 At 31 December 2022 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 2,753 1,050,554
2HERE/ B Accumulated impairment/
amortisation

2025118 R At 1 January 2022 and

20224124318 31 December 2022 98,239 26,499 80,583 70,777 - - 276,098
REE Carrying value
20221278318 At 31 December 2022 713,451 - - - 58,252 2,753 774,456

XP#E
aH BUER B &R
BYEE EVEE Customer (Bl
HE Contract  Core deposit  relationship Trade B
Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles name Total

XA Cost
2021F1 /18 K At 1 January 2021 and

2021F12A31H 31 December 2021 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 1,047,801
SRERE Accumulated impairment/

amortisation

20211 1B % At 1 January 2021 and

2021F12A31H 31 December 2021 98,239 26,499 80,583 70,777 - 276,098
FEE Carrying value
2021F12A31H At 31 December 2021 713,451 - - - 58,252 771,703

EERABRZEBVEEREAN BROEREE
FRRELEERARBEREREN F5E12F
ZAIREHEE o  BRLSRESRBERYR
W& SFRHERERENAK A NG RERE
EERIR -

Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core deposit
intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, and are amortised
over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing
balance method. Trade name and club debentures are carried as an
asset of indefinite life and is tested annually for impairment losses. It is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment loss.
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. BEREFEEE®

]
A
23 2

=

FEZ 25T -

BORERENNEERSRE-BNELS
ERACKRSELEN([REELSM]) - &
g

25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)

identified according to business segments in line with the internal

management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill allocation is

presented below.

aE P
Hong Kong Macau
BEERLT B A SBAT BIMRAT
Corporate Personal Overseas &5
Banking Banking Banking Total
BN Cost
2022F1 1B & At 1 January 2022 and
202212 A31H 31 December 2022 98,239 220,428 493,023 811,690
2IERE Accumulated impairment
2022F1H1B & At 1 January 2022 and
2022412 A31H 31 December 2022 98,239 - - 98,239
AREE Carrying value
2022%F12H31H At 31 December 2022 - 220,428 493,023 713,451
e R
Hong Kong Macau
RERTT EASRTT FBIMRTT
Corporate Personal Overseas A&F
Banking Banking Banking Total
BN Cost
2021F1A1B & At 1 January 2021 and
202112 A31H 31 December 2021 98,239 220,428 493,023 811,690
RIERE Accumulated impairment
2021F1A18 K At 1 January 2021 and
2021F12A31H 31 December 2021 98,239 - - 98,239
BREE Carrying value
2021%12H31H At 31 December 2021 - 220,428 493,023 713,451

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,
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25, BEREFEEE®
(a) BEREFEEDRERR

HEESFERENR  HHEBREFTE 2 ERAE
EMETEZ2HRCELBEMNIBIRSE - ZiTEE
FRHEEEIREABM&ES - 5FT 812 FAR
S KEREASGFRREANETEFIERE
2%HEBIEEEF AR ENE - Z5FtElmmEERE
AEBERHEUBBRECELEN EBRZES
FATERIES B KB (R 1B Z ATAS PR AR 51 o BT FE A
2R R T EENAEE 2 E AR AN TF I
11.10%(20214F : 11.12%) °

HREFETZREARDNEALSRBRREER
R 52 3%t Bl A HE B f2 LA HA 5T &1 2 T8I Uk
A BHERIZESFLAME TR - FTEAZAIREA
11.10% (20214 : 11.12%) HEERAEE 2 &
P AN o

SREFVREIAGSNSFRBALEBEES
REFNEBEREMSGEELT  EEMSE
EERREER R AMERK -

AEEVEERTE BRASEEFNREE
1E(20214F « ) o

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
(a) Impairment testing on goodwill and intangible assets

Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on
value in use calculation. The calculations use discounted cash flow
projections prepared by the Senior Management based on the latest
5-year business plan, taking into account projected annual growth
rate of net profit, and in perpetuity with 2% constant growth rate
after the fifth year. The 5-year business plan was developed by the
Senior Management based on their evaluation of the businesses and
associated projected discounted cash flow of net profit of the relevant
CGU and the conditions in which such businesses will operate over
the projection period. The discount rate used is based on the Group’s
weighted average cost of capital at 11.10% (2021: 11.12%).

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rate of 3% with reference to similar business transactions,
projected revenue in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity after the
fifth year. The discount rate of 11.10% (2021: 11.12%) used is based
on the Group’s weighted average cost of capital.

Impairment testing in respect of club debentures is performed annually
by comparing the book value of each club debenture with its market
value. Impairment loss is recognised when the market value is below
the book value.

No impairment losses on goodwill, trade name and club debentures
were identified in the year (2021: Nil).
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. FEBLF

R2022F12A31H * ANRTTZE BB AR W0

T

AEEH
Name of company

26. SUBSIDIARIES

2022:

FTEEY

Principal activity

S it B
Place of incorporation

The following is a list of the Bank’s subsidiaries as at 31 December

BRTEBERRA
Particulars of
issued ordinary
share capital

AFRTT (B BRAA

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
EPIERRITRD BR AT

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
KRR AR DA

Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited
RIEFEER AT

Dah Sing Nominees Limited

Dah Sing Properties Limited
RHTEHBRRE
Dah Sing Securities Limited

DSB BCM (1) Limited

DSB BCM (2) Limited

CWL Prosper Limited

ZEINEERAF

OK Finance Limited

BHRENE(EB)BRAF

Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited

HEREFRAR

Vanishing Border Investment
Services Limited

Wise Measure Limited

Reliable Associates Limited

Talent Union Holding Limited

200  KERITERA R 2022F F

$R1T

Banking

RiT

Banking

IREAE4A
Insurance broking
IR ARRTS
Nominee services
REER
Investment holding
EHEE
Securities dealing
BEZER
Investment holding
REER
Investment holding
MEE
Property investment
&

Money lending
|

Inactive

MEE

Property investment

MEE
Property investment
MERE
Property investment
MEHRE

Property investment

hEARKME
People’s Republic of China
iy

Macau

e

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
FB

Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
RKEBRIHE
British Virgin Islands
BB

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
Ee

Hong Kong

RKEBRIEE
British Virgin Islands
HBELHES
British Virgin Islands
RBRLHE
British Virgin Islands

RMB1,200,000,000

MOP225,000,000

HK$500,000

HK$100,000

HK$9,998

HK$10,000,000

HK$1

HK$1

US$1

HK$1,000

HK$450,000,000

HK$20

US$1

US$1

USs$2
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26. MIBQTE @)

BRIBRPIR 2RI TAR D B BR A B (H22% M s Al 52 7
DSB BCM (1) Limited ’2DSB BCM (2) Limited#
BN U ERREARBIT2EEERES -

BORPIERRITROAR AR ~ AFIRT(PE)
BRRR R EMFIBREEEAINEMA N AF
SN B RRIIETBLE

KFiR77 (P E) AR A FH2008F7 AEHRH R
A, - EARE A E A RZLMB 2 AR M
BIERABI(EREE BFICRMZEER
&) o

27. TERHEMBEEEE

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

26. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above companies are all wholly-owned and directly held by the
Bank except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., with 22% interests
indirectly held through DSB BCM (1) Limited and DSB BCM (2) Limited,
which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank.

Except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified
above, all other companies operate in Hong Kong.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company” (solely funded
by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body) under the laws of the
People’s Republic of China.

27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

2022 2021

12 ~ B REE Premises, furniture and equipment 3,141,706 3,219,846
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 503,997 582,382
3,645,703 3,802,228

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27. TEREMGEETEE@® 27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (continued)
() 17E - BRI REE (a) Premises, furniture and equipment
A
BERARE
Furniture,
equipment
TE and motor A%
Premises vehicles Total

EE2021412A31BILEE Year ended 31 December 2021
FHIREFE Opening net book amount 2,780,135 423,094 3,203,229
i Additions - 232,902 232,902
HE Disposals - (7,627) (7,627)
FEZ W (FF11) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (76,455) (137,271) (213,726)
EHER Exchange difference 3,249 1,819 5,068
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 2,706,929 512,917 3,219,846
2021512 A31H At 31 December 2021
DEN Cost 3,360,201 1,387,523 4,747,724
ZiEE Accumulated depreciation (653,272) (874,606)  (1,527,878)
REFE Net book amount 2,706,929 512,917 3,219,846
HZ20225128310 LEE Year ended 31 December 2022
FHREFE Opening net book amount 2,706,929 512,917 3,219,846
i Additions 97,452 85,243 182,695
HE Disposals - (2,659) (2,659)
FEZ W (1) Depreciation charge (Note 11) (77,993) (165,598) (243,591)
ENER Exchange difference (9,852) (4,733) (14,585)
FRIEEFE Closing net book amount 2,716,536 425,170 3,141,706
2022412A31H At 31 December 2022
B AR Cost 3,445,950 1,432,175 4,878,125
ZEME Accumulated depreciation (729,414)  (1,007,005)  (1,736,419)
REFE Net book amount 2,716,536 425,170 3,141,706
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27. TEREMEEEE®
(R) 17 - BRERE@

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Premises, furniture and equipment (Continued)

TEZEREFERE The net book value of premises comprises:
2022 2021
THEH Leaseholds
HEFERA ZTHIED Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(fE10&504F 2 &) lease (between 10-50 years) 2,282,821 2,346,945
BB LAIMNEA 2 B Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(fE10E504F 2 &) term lease (between 10-50 years) 433,715 359,984
2,716,536 2,706,929
(2) HE (b) Leases

IR AR B RAEE A Z HEREEH

() BERRGEHBRIEZEH

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

FEMBRARANBEEE 2 28R The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
N following amounts relating to leases:
2022 2021
EREEE Right-of-use assets
ES Properties 503,997 582,382
HESE Lease liabilities (included in other
(BEEEMRE RER) accounts and accruals) 534,378 614,940

22FHRFENHEETREEES
73,626,000 7T (20214 : 110,438,000/5
JC) °

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2022 financial year
were HK$73,626,000 (2021: HK$110,438,000).
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27. TEREMEEEE®
(Z) HE@m
(i) BRRGENZRZSHE

HFAlaRENERBE 22 BIIRNT -

27. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b) Leases (Continued)

(ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income

statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following amounts

relating to leases:

b
Note 2022 2021
ERREEZITEXE Depreciation charge of right-
of-use assets
LZJES Properties 11 148,144 192,366
MEXZH(BEENEXH -HEARE) Interest expense (included in
interest expense — lease
liabilities) 7 8,201 9,654
EHRRHHERREREE2S S Expense relating to short-term
(PRETEREMETEES L leases and low-value assets
TRIEHE) (included in premises and
other fixed assets expenses,
excluding depreciation) 11 3,952 4,800

2022FNEAMEZRERELRER
157,077,000/ 7T (20214 : 199,800,000/%8
JT) °

(iii) FEEHEEZERANTAR

REEEEFEYE - 7K20214F k2022
FoHEAR—MRAIFEIF ZETHR
B AT BER #5001 (iv) Bk il 2 FE R IR I2HE ©

RERRERBEREEREEZHH TR
R BN - BRHBAARAREZEEZE
RIEZSIN - HEARLTRIMEMZRL - T
EZEEBFTRENEERE EAEER
1 o

(iv) ZERRAIEZEE

ERFMEIDEERERBREARERITZET
YEHER - RAKEEERNZERERZ
BEMS  EAZSEHITERSELER
A RZBUISE CERRR ILRERRA]
RASREMIER HAEATTRE
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The total cash outflow for leases in 2022 was HK$157,077,000
(2021: HK$199,800,000).

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various properties. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 year to 9 years for 2021 and
2022, but may have extension options as described in (iv) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

(iv) Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property leases across the Group. These are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group’s operations. The majority of extension and termination
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessor.
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

28. REME 28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2022 2021
1H1H At 1 January 756,353 682,911
#ig Additions 84,651 68,806
EHAFEBE), WS Fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation (38,311) 4,636
12AH31H At 31 December 802,693 756,353
RERIFH 2 BELIFE KE=IRF Unrealised gains or losses recognised
ERER 2 KRB IR e o B 18 in consolidated income statement
relating to those assets held at the
end of the year
— A HAE(EE), M — Fair value (losses)/gains (38,311) 4,636
BB 7 BREFERIE The net book value of investment properties comprises:
2022 2021
TR Leaseholds
EEARFA 2P EHAELY Held in Hong Kong on medium-term
(fE10=50F 2 f4) lease (between 10-50 years) 683,557 633,150
BB LAIMNEA 2 B4 Held outside Hong Kong on medium-
(fE10E504F 2 &) term lease (between 10-50 years) 119,136 123,203
802,693 756,353
HEREYWEZATE Fair value measurement of investment properties

AEEP20224F K 2021F12 A31H A EMERN
BEETTEM - WIHEBBE T EESTASA
F-AFEHET(HEREEEMD)BRAR AN
REBRFHEBRNZIEEMERSE — K TR
CRF) BRARABMINEP ZIEEMELRERE L
BHESRARBEE T EA2E 2 HUY
FHET AR AT AL B R ETT - R EREYEME
BF - HR-—BEFEZRBERAKLERRMHE - B Rk
ERIE =BT RN RIEEFTEE /& B
B - HEBMNERN THREERIREMEZR
FEAEFHEEE LR D  RZIA -

MZEEAME HMEER  HEFBYBHB®RE
EHIF1FUAFEFFE)VFZAFETE B KL
BEEARTSLEENS Z&xa NMEENYER

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2022 and 2021 by adopting the direct comparison approach or the
income capitalisation approach. Under direct comparison approach,
valuation is referenced to recent transactions for similar premises as
far as practicable by independent, professionally qualified valuer Savills
(Valuation and Professional Services) Limited for investment properties
in Hong Kong and Mainland China, and by Savills (Macau) Limited for
investment properties in Macau. The key inputs was the unit sale rate
taking into account of time, location, and individual factors such as
size and levels of buildings. A decrease in unit sale rate would result in
decrease in fair value measurement of the investment properties by the
same percentage and vice versa.

The basis of the valuation of property was market value which is
consistent with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” and takes into account the highest and best use of the
property from the perspective of market participants.
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

28. REWEm)
FTEREVEZATE®

BREMEARI DT ABR 2 BBERME A
SREQYE EROBERAT /B BVBRE
AR B13FARFEAEIRTRTFESZRHNEIR
i

MNRARBEELTZEERAFEZREYE
BRZHERFRARBEECREERZEY
E2 X HBEHETERKAZENET - XFEF
EEMSEEKICARMRAER - Bhi5RasRKE
TRERRR -

WAREBECTDETABER 2 8UE -

28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are measured at fair value using valuation
techniques with significant unobservable inputs which are classified as
Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair
Value Measurement”.

Under income capitalisation approach, investment properties of which
the fair value is determined using the income capitalisation approach,
the assessment is conducted on the basis of capitalisation of net
incomes with due allowance for outgoings and reversionary income
potential. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
market rental and inversely correlated to the market yields.

Unobservable inputs on income capitalisation approach:

fRES % FABE 2 HE

Valuation technique(s) Unobservable input(s) Range

REME HELEETTA PHE BAER BF 75 R1,6477%8 T E108,90078 7T
(20214 : FF77IR1,9388 T

%116,0007%70)

Investment properties Direct comparison Unit sale rate HK$1,647 to HK$108,900 per square foot
approach (2021: HK$1,938 to HK$116,000

per square foot)

WARBEEENTE i & 2.00%%3.10%

(EE ) (20214 : 2.00%%3.10%)

Income capitalisation Market yields 2.00% to 3.10%

approach (reversionary yield) (2021: 2.00% to 3.10%)

miHAE BEHR27TBTEIBT

(20214 : FFFR28BITEI7HIT)

Market rental HK$27 to HK$91 per square foot

206  KERITEIRA R 2022F F
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(LAE®F Th5I7R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

29. HhEE 29. OTHER ASSETS
2022 2021
FEW R IE RIEIE B Accounts receivable and prepayments 2,583,622 4,289,797
FERTULA Accrued income 1,479,954 865,354
HA Others 121,029 141,347
4,184,605 5,296,498
30. FFEERENERE 30. TRADING LIABILITIES
2022 2021

HEBERENEEES

31. BEFER

Short sales of treasury bills and treasury

bonds

730,491 1,511,927

31. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

2022 2021

R R R R
BEE R
FH - RAOREBER

BRES BRLEHRERIN  AEEMEPER
ERFRER

Demand deposits and current accounts
Savings deposits
Time, call and notice deposits

34,156,924 48,639,038
37,661,100 41,505,926
127,984,571 106,877,477

199,802,595 197,022,441

Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer deposits

carry variable interest rates.
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

32. ERMTHERE

32. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED

2022 2021
JRENRF Z R B T DA fRA AR At amortised cost with fair value
MAE N EE R FHREIETER hedge adjustments
(for hedging interest rate risk) 4,228,983 6,489,717
TRER IR AT BR At amortised cost - 100,000
4,228,983 6,589,717

20204 202147 - 7SR MK RO HIHA TERRES
AR RTEREAN AT BN EALE
S AR -

AEBANSEETHFRENPENIZENOEN
K& BB E LA AT 2 BR {8 = 60,000,000 7% 7T

(20214 : 511,000,000/ 7T) °

33. REEH

During 2022 and 2021, the Group did not designate on initial recognition

any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through profit or loss.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$60 million

higher (2021: HK$11 million higher) than the above carrying amount.

33. SUBORDINATED NOTES

2022 2021
JREDRF R RS T A R AR KA TE At amortised cost with fair value

¥R AEETIE hedge adjustments (for hedging

interest rate risk):

225,000,000 7T 20294F | £ K] US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed

ELBEEEBRGE(R)) Rate Notes due 2029 (Note (a)) 1,708,812 1,810,359
300,000,000 7T 742031 4 2| B ) US$300,000,000 Subordinated Fixed

ELBERBGE(Z)) Rate Notes due 2031 (Note (b)) 2,092,683 2,318,087

3,801,495 4,128,446

R20224F 2021 F N + ANEBE KRB R YIA HERRF
EFEEMEBEGEEAARFEFEBEEZETA

18

E\
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During 2022 and 2021, the Group did not designate on initial recognition

any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.
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BESE@

bt TR ERFT 201941 A 15 H %172 225,000,000
ETEBRBHAERIMAERRR(TEBRSH])
EARGAEBERBENMETTE A -REARN
10FHE BREER([EK]) (HAEFEBGR
TEER)BADZER) - LEEBEFR2029
F1H15AFI8 - iBIFMFEE H A2024F1 A 15
HeBBETAZHERENEER  £8A5%
BYERME—IR - Hig - WEBREERLER
AEE  TEOFEeS ] RERsFHERE
BEEHSENMB5HF - BRSEASEREL
B - NRITRAIAREBERERRE GEE )&
% o ARIRITINE —EIRRIRATEI A RS 4
HESHEE R BiR i AU ETTRTRERE A
B E)FEF SR

It T 7R 8R4 T72021 411 A2 A #17,2.300,000,000
ETHEBBR P LT RFAGE EEBBENMHK
RERZAERKI0FHE BREBBK([EBK])
(EEPEACRITE(ER)BRBDZIER) « F
BB R2031F11 A2B 38 - REHEEER A
2026511 A2H - AEITHEHEEMEEH
FRER3%  BEFERE—R - Hig  MEBKK
ERBEEEAERD  TROMNESE] AL
SEHXBBEEES B EMI05E T - ERIFEE
SERESME - ABTAAREEEELE
(GEE P ) ET o ANRITINE B —BBRIRITEI LA
KIS K EBEE N SERABAETRIT
A 47 SR B A FENF B -

ANEBEM S B EBEDEBIRANENNESEE
B A AP 2 BR T {E & 292,000,000 7T (2021
F : {£35,000,000/& 7T ) °

33.

Note:

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

SUBORDINATED NOTES (Continued)

This represents US$225,000,000 Basel |1l compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 15
January 2019 (the “Notes”), which are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The Notes will mature on 15 January 2029
with an optional redemption date falling on 15 January 2024. Interest
at 5% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest
rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest at the then prevailing
5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 255 basis points. The Bank may, subject
to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole
but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate
payment liability of the Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has
been entered into with an international bank.

This represents US$300,000,000 Basel |1l compliant 10-year Subordinated
Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank (subject to the
provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong) issued on 2
November 2021 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SEHK. The Notes
will mature on 2 November 2031 with an optional redemption date falling
on 2 November 2026. Interest at 3% p.a. is payable semi-annually from
the issue date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes
are not redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear
interest at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 195 basis
points. The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par. An interest rate swap
contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the Notes to floating
interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with an international
bank.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$292 million

higher (2021: HK$35 million lower) than the above carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. EZLEHIR
BELEHREENRBBENYERIEREBRIENITE

HI[E] — ISR R R 5 PIETT - BIH 2 @
T~

34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

2022 2021
RIERIEE E Deferred income tax assets 262,273 120,418
REBIREE Deferred income tax liabilities (36,267) (14,977)

BEERBEENRAGBRBENZE ZHABENK
Bl S 2 TR BB AT T -

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the
underlying category of temporary differences and the expected date of
recovery and settlement are as follows:

2022 2021
FRERRBEEE Deferred income tax assets:
— AITE12E A& 4Bl 2 IR IH & B — Deferred income tax assets
to be recovered after more than
12 months 347,384 271,748
FEERIEEE - Deferred income tax liabilities:
— 12 ARERE ZVEERIERE — Deferred income tax liabilities
to be settled after more than
12 months (121,378) (166,307)
226,006 105,441

EEIRMR B BEBNT

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

2022 2021

1418 At 1 January 105,441 113,082
ARG Was AR R I8 B Tax credited to the consolidated

(fF3E14) income statement (Note 14) 28,970 4,847
REMEEKESAFBEDR (ZH) Tax credited/(charged) to other

(Pff7138) comprehensive income (Note 38) 97,430 (17,362)
e ER Exchange difference (5,835) 4,874
12H31H At 31 December 226,006 105,441

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,




34. EEBE@)

fra M ERR M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

BLEHIBEERBERAFE ZES - TEER The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the
MRRBUAE S N 2 R T year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

BEBRAE - Deferred income tax assets:
HE
EHEREE EEX
Impairment RHEM
allowances Deferred REER
and expensesand  Investment a5t
provisions others revaluation Total

20211 A1H At 1 January 2021 204,868 51,008 - 255,876
PEAWRERRE (1) Credited/(charged) to the

consolidated income statement 12,417 (1,701) - 10,716
FAEL fth 2 TH i O [ 5% Credited to other comprehensive

income - - 282 282
ERER Exchange difference 1,255 3,619 - 4,874
2021F12A31H K& At 31 December 2021 and

2022F1A1H 1 January 2022 218,540 52,926 282 271,748

ENOBEELEHEE Reclassified from deferred income

tax liabilities - - (53,031) (53,031)
Rz EERiRE AR () Credited/(charged) to the

consolidated income statement 10,814 (8,228) - 2,586
A EL A 2 T Ui 2 A 1 Credited to other comprehensive

income - - 131,912 131,912
ERER Exchange difference (4,000) (1,804) (27) (5,831)
2022%F12A31H At 31 December 2022 225,354 42,894 79,136 347,384
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. EEBE@)

34. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

BLEREBESE: Deferred income tax liabilities:
MEHRKTE REWEER
Accelerated Investment REEM
R tax properties Investment &t
Provisions depreciation revaluation revaluation Total
20211 A1H At 1 January 2021 7,727 95,737 3,872 35,458 142,794
A RESREAT Charged/(credited) to the
(EH#) consolidated income statement 3,726 2,490 (347 - 5,869
REM2EKEAX T Charged to other comprehensive
income - - - 17,644 17,644
2021124318 1 At 31 December 2021 and
2022%171H 1 January 2022 11,453 98,227 3,525 53,102 166,307
ENSBEREHEE Reclassified to deferred income
tax assets - - - (53,031) (53,031)
P AREEREA(ER),/  (Credited)/charged to the
¥t consolidated income statement (11,453) (16,884) (156) 2,109 (26,384)
REMEEKENST Charged to other
comprehensive income - - - 34,482 34,482
EHzZE Exchange difference - - - 4 4
2022125318 At 31 December 2022 - 81,343 3,369 36,666 121,378

T FEAREMEEREA R () 2B

JEFRIA

The deferred income tax credited/(charged) to other comprehensive

income during the year is as follows:

2022 2021
PRI RS 2 A T ERFE Fair value reserves in shareholders’
equity:
—ATHERF 2 EEEE A LM EK RS — financial assets at fair value through
SREE (MI7E38) other comprehensive income
(Note 38) 97,430 (17,362)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. ERKEAQ T AR

RAFMBHAREARE BEEKERRR KB

EEETR B EL AT

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

35. BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions are
balances with the ultimate and immediate holding companies arising
from transactions conducted on normal commercial terms:

2022 2021
ZIEEREEMIKRE Advances and other accounts 584 591
2EER Deposits from customers 732,184 143,717
HMAR B MTER Other accounts and accruals 91 121

RAEMBRNRARE BRER RHE QR Z 4

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position captions are

SREEFIAAE ¢ balances with fellow subsidiaries detailed as follows:

2022 2021
ZIEEREEMIKE Advances and other accounts 6,074 7,545
BPER Deposits from customers 613,430 1,957,011
HAR B MTER Other accounts and accruals 18,277 18,038

36. RABEBERAIE
() EREE

R12A1AKRE A RREBER ZEMER KB

ABEBEZERASEMT ¢

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed assets
as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:

2022 2021

EROBREREEZHAX

Expenditure contracted but not
provided for 71,857 102,589
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

36. WABEBRAE@® 36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(Continued)

(2) EE&E (b) Credit commitments

AEEEEBBERINKERETEFPZERIA The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-

SRREREEERRMNEESBENT balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to

customers are as follows:

EREE
Contract amount
2022 2021
HEEEERER Direct credit substitutes 2,135,043 1,383,242
B PR 2 HATEE Transaction-related contingencies 495,616 496,192
R P HRE 2 ATEE Trade-related contingencies 247,910 703,597
AR BB T NETE ST M A 2 Commitments that are unconditionally
cancellable without prior notice 66,596,620 69,241,096
HAbiE Other commitments 4,814,077 4,304,623
BB TR Forward forward deposits placed 317,824 -
74,607,090 76,128,750
EERIMEREE
Credit risk weighted amount
2022 2021
SR BE A SE Contingent liabilities and commitments 2,657,818 2,454,143
= BRI EEE IR BCIRITE (B A) RRIDFT The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the
THE - Banking (Capital) Rules.
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36. HARBEBERAE@

(R) EFERZEE

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Assets pledged

2022 2021
EEHCHEEEABEER Trading assets and financial
SRETEIEBEER investments pledged to secure
liabilities 3,185,206 2,593,024
—Er o ROEE R — of which: under repurchase
agreements 2,453,089 1,518,732
BRzEBESHE Amount of liabilities secured 2,678,069 2,585,362
—Hh RO — of which: under repurchase
agreements 1,946,069 1,510,862

ERIIRIEERANEEMR DB RERERE
RZBE - ZERZGHREFREFNERZ S
(BIEE B MR E EUREA R RER EE
B2 SR ) IRBOEETT -

(T) BEHEEARE

WAEEZ ARIRHEA - RAFATBUEELE
HEMRAREW 2 SAERE AR T

The table above shows assets where a charge has been granted to
secure liabilities on a legal and contractual basis. These transactions
are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to
collateralised transactions including repurchase agreements, and
include assets pledged to cover short positions and to facilitate
settlement processes with clearing houses.

(d) Operating lease commitments

Where a Group company is the lessor, the future minimum lease
payments receivable under non-cancellable building operating leases
are as follows:

2022 2021

1F AR Within 1 year 12,165 14,584
15 Z224F Between 1 and 2 years 7,941 3,721
2FE3F Between 2 and 3 years 6,083 891
26,189 19,196

AN - AEBEEAETA - B1R20224F 20214
12A31BEF B TIMARBZEE - EZEHE
i & 2 5 2 M E I R EE & 51 /3 16,596,000/% 7T
(20214 : 28,982,000/87T) °

In addition, the Group has, as a lessee, entered into a number of leases
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 that have not yet commenced.
The aggregate lease payments payable under these leases amount to
HK$16,596,000 (2021: HK$28,982,000).
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

37. AR 37. SHARE CAPITAL
2022 2021
R [} [ &N
ZEK Ordinary shares, Number of Share Number of Share
ERITRAZRE issued and fully paid: shares capital shares capital
1H1BX12H31H At 1 January and 31 December 62,000,000 6,200,000 62,000,000 6,200,000
2022F 12 AT HE HT BRI MNEE &1 A The total number of ordinary shares in issue as at 31 December 2022
62,000,000f% (20214 : 62,000,0008%) - FTBLE is 62 million shares (2021: 62 million shares). All issued shares are fully
BT 2R EET paid.
38. 18 38. RESERVES
TEEf REEf NRHEE REBEA
Bl B BEM (&)
GARE Premises  Investment EiGE —#ffE  Share-based Retained
Consolidation  Revaluation  Revaluation Exchange General Compensation Earnings &it
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve (Note) Total
202%151A At 1 January 2022 8,827 233,100 467,041 225,363 700,254 15,814 21,979,750 23,630,149

IATEFEAEFE AL Net change in fair value of debt
PENENEFIAZATE  instuments at fair value through

2958 other comprehensive income - - (834,317) - - - - (834,317)
ElhREREAREN Share of other comprehensive income
BEMZAMEENE of an associate accounted for using
the equity method - - (226,037) - - - - (226,037)

IATEEEEZHT AL Net change in fair value of equity
RERGERERETEZATE instruments at fair value through

2950 other comprehensive income - - 586,378 - - - - 586,378
REEEREZYZELHE  Deferred income tax on movements in
(Fizkad4) investment revaluation reserve
(Note 34) - - 97,430 - - - - 97,430

WATEHEEEREIAZ L Netchange i allowance for expected
FENENEBIAZES  creditlosses of debtinstruments

GEERERRY TR atfair value through other
comprehensive income - - 7,109 - - - - 7,109
BOMERMHTEZREZE  Distribution payment of additional
equity instruments - - - - - - (41,652) (41,652)
BEBMUERBRE Exchange differences arising on
MEHZER tranglation of the financial statements
of foreign entities - - - (719,179) - - - (719,179)
DR AR EAER  Provision for equity-settled share-based
Az BEREMER compensation and other adjustment - - - - - 239 - 239
ERER Profitfor the year - - - - - - 1,588,499 1,588,499
AN FRERSE 2021 final dividend - - - - - - (310,000) (310,000)
2002 A 2022 inerim dividend = - = = - - (139500)  (139,500)
2022%12A31A At 31 December 2022 8,827 233,100 97,604 (493,816) 700,254 16,053 23,077,097 23,639,119
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38. fEE@®

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

38. RESERVES (Continued)

BZ12A3MBLEE
Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
BERREBENAZ Proposed final dividend/final dividend
RO R ERR B, BIRAHR 2 paid included in retained earnings
(Fff¥zE16) (Note 16) 378,200 310,000
[ Note:

RBTANEE BT AEREE BV BEREERRS
AN BABIRE R - M4 2 B E R (R T SORPIRE
FRTIT ROARHIRTT (P ED) Y B E BB IRIT D RUA
FHEERAMNZAMEERTE - ZEERBRRATIK
BETRRZHEBSE EEMBIEDARETELER
TR - WE BN SR E AR

12022412 431 H - ZNiR1T 2 45 7F 438,460,000 %5 7T
(20214 : 432,194,000 70) « £ BIEAEE RE LK
SHERE — G - BEBRARTZEARBARNF

I

The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of
those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory
reserve, which also covers BCM and DSB China, is maintained to satisfy
the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance and local regulatory
requirements for prudential supervision purposes. The regulatory reserve
restricts the amount of reserves which can be distributed to shareholders.
Movements in the regulatory reserve are made directly through equity reserve
and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2022, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$438,466,000 (2021: HK$432,194,000) first against the consolidated general
reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against the
consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

38. RFE@® 38. RESERVES (continued)
TEEf REEHR RN BE REEF
f i TRIRE 2 GefB (&)
BARR Premises  Investment B Gh —#&E  Share-based Retained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation ~ Revaluation Exchange General  Compensation Earnings B
Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve (Note) Total
20215141H At 1 January 2021 8,827 233,100 335,843 18,199 700,254 15,334 20,847,169 22,158,726

DTERGEME BT HER  Fair value gain realised and
IATEAEEEEHHA  transferred to consolidated income
Ef2EUEHEBIAE  statement upon disposal of debt
ERREBENGE instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income upon
derecognition - - (4,993) - - - - (4,993)
PATEFEAEFE AL Net change in fair value of debt
RENENEFIAZATE  instuments at fair value through

2858 other comprehensive income - - 69,682 - - - - 69,682
i REREAREN Share of other comprehensive income
BEMAZAMZENA of an associate accounted for using
the equity method - - 44,040 - - - - 44,040
IATEHEEEEHH AL Net change in fair value of equity
FENENERIETIAL instruments at fair value through
NYERYFE other comprehensive income - - (1,176) - - - - (1,176)
REEEREZYZELEHE  Deferred income tax on movements in
(Fi334) investment revaluation reserve
(Note 34) . . (17,362) . . . . (17,362)

WATEHEEESET AL Netchange in allowance for expected
SENENEFIAZES  creditlosses of debtinstruments

GEERERRYTE at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - 7,388 - - - - 7,388
REIBAR  ENAE Reclassification of net change in fair
DATEFEEEEHHA  value of equity instruments at fair
El2ENENESETAZ  value through other comprehensive
ATEZFE income upon derecognition - - 33,619 - - - (33,619) -
EMERMTEZRESUE  Distribution payment of additional
equity instruments - - - - - - (41,325) (41,325)
RERIEENBER Exchange differences arising on
HELZE translation of the financial statements
of foreign entities - - - 207,164 - - - 207,164
DA RARRERERE  Provision for equity-settied share-based
Bz BEREMEE compensation and other adjustment - - - - - 480 - 480
EERT Profit for the year - - - - - - 1,638,425 1,638,425
NNEXERE 2020 final dividend - - - - - S (914000 (291400)
0NERERE 2021 interim dividend - - - - - - (135000 (139500)
2021127318 At 31 December 2021 8,827 233,100 467,04 225,363 700,254 15,814 21,979,750 23,630,149
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

39. FIMERZMTA 39. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
2022 2021
150,000,0005 L FESMER 1T T A (FE(FF)) US$150,000,000 AT1 Capital Securities
(Note (a)) 1,167,810 -
115,000,000 LA MER T T A (FE(2)) US$115,000,000 AT1 Capital Securities
(Note (b)) - 898,587
1,167,810 898,587

i Note:

() P2022F12A8H « AIRTTEITHEEER BT (@) On 8 December 2022, the Bank issued Basel lll-compliant undated non-
111 % 7N & /4 150,000,0003% 7T 2 E AR 3E 215 cumulative subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital securities (the “AT1
BREBFZBIN—RELRES ([FEIN—RELE Capital Securities”) with a notional principal US$150,000,000. The AT1
%5]) o RBIN—MERBED R ARFIRITEE Capital Securities were subscribed in full by DSBG and DSFH to the
N K7€ @ 24 110,000,000 3 7T % 40,000,000 3% extent of US$110,000,000 and US$40,000,000 respectively.

TEHRE -

WEBBLERBMART  REFELERK The principal of the AT1 Capital Securities will be written off up to the

Bz BRRERER - RAMBEREIIN—RELRE amount as directed by the HKMA if the HKMA notifies the Bank that in

FAMNE  BRIRNRITHEREE - AN R the opinion of the HKMA or a relevant government body that a write-off is

BRABAZASHGHEMBEETERERMAET necessary, without which the Bank would become non-viable.

ZEEE o

RETHEHN2027F12 A8 2R EMEER Distribution at 11.5% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date

I RBEFEERRI15%  B¥FIN—K - to the optional redemption date falling on 8 December 2027. Thereafter,

Hig o WEIN—RERESHAFER @ JRES X if the AT1 Capital Securities are not redeemed, the distribution rate will

HNBEFER—R - HERSFHERBER be reset every 5 years and it will bear distribution at the then prevailing

£ EENNT788EL T  RIBFIN—MEREH 215 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 788 basis points. The Bank has the right

FRAGHFSE 2 R - ARITE ISR X to cancel distribution payment, subject to the requirement as set out in the

' REBHZIREZ BT R5T - terms and conditions of the AT1 Capital Securities, and the distribution

cancelled shall not be cumulative.

ERGEASERELIE  RRITOUREEN The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,

EEANKEZRESNBAREEEESE redeem the AT1 Capital Securities in whole but not in part, at par either on

(FESF D ) FEIN—REARFEFH o the optional redemption date or any distribution payment date thereafter.
(Z,) M2017F12A8H  RIRTTEITHEEER BT (b)  On 8 December 2017, the Bank issued Basel lll-compliant undated non-

&% 7 ¢ £115,000,0003% 7T 2 EHRIERTE
BEBFZBEIN—RELREFES ([FEIN-RELRE
%5]) c ERAMSMEERE - WEEI—RE
RFEFH2EFMEERB2022F12A8H © AR
TR2022F 2 BB B L FEIN-RELREF ©

cumulative subordinated Additional Tier 1 capital securities (the “AT1
Capital Securities”) with a notional principal of US$115,000,000. They
were fully subscribed by DSFH. The AT1 Capital Securities had an
optional redemption date falling on 8 December 2022. The Bank had fully
repaid the AT1 Capital Securities in 2022.
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

40. GZEBEREBLEERKTE

() ilrE TREREEEEZWHERER
Al 8 ERAEEEEFHRA(FTA)
REFHEERR

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit before gains and
losses on certain investments and fixed assets to net
cash from/(used in) operating activities

2022 2021
MBEETFRERETEEZ WS REERZ Operating profit before gains and losses
EIER T on certain investments and fixed assets 2,986,844 1,971,435
ERLEMA Net interest income (4,371,627)  (3,940,392)
% S e Dividend income (4,126) (15,243)
EERERSE Credit impairment losses 803,100 373,343
ne Depreciation 391,735 406,092
BRI 1R 2 B R SEF Advances written off net of recoveries (511,989) (276,162)
AR HE SZ AT ARR 1 VE A EE TR SR BN 2 B Provision for equity-settled share-based
compensation 239 480
BUCHLE Interest received 6,347,542 5,839,811
BEARFE Interest paid (1,606,779)  (1,056,820)
BB Dividend received 4,126 15,243
EBEENABEH 2 EERT Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 4,039,065 3,317,787
HEEERBECE Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:
e RIERITOEAR LR D BB — cash and balances with banks and
3 A 2 xR G Bl K money at call and short notice with
an original maturity beyond three
months 331,234 (1,047,941)
— REHAHBE3(E A 2 IR TR — placements with banks with an
original maturity beyond three
months (3,241,056) 1,771,401
—RFIEEERENES — trading securities 1,648,281 2,475,892
—PTEEmMIA — derivative financial instruments (3,707,908)  (1,251,065)
—ARFEEAEZEST ABRNEREE — financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 4,816 (14,119)
- — trade bills 586,862 (462,726)
—BPERRER — loans and advances to customers 7,783,637  (6,735,434)
—H AR B — other accounts receivable 1,726,493 1,427,535
—HAPEE A HEBH AR EE — financial assets at fair value through
WM ERMEE other comprehensive income 1,026,320 (661,325)
— DABBAR RS BR ) R B 2 — financial assets at amortised cost (8,522,259)  (2,240,061)
—RITER — deposits from banks 2,409,296 (1,797,245)
—FHEEERSENAR — trading liabilities (781,436) (58,748)
—-BPER — deposits from customers 2,780,154 5,780,760
—BITIERE — certificates of deposit issued (2,336,292)  (1,555,672)
— Bt fERTER B R TRLR — other accounts payable and accruals 397,388 (388,259)
b 5 R Exchange adjustments 263,046 (36,653)
REZEDRA (IR KRS Cash generated from/(absorbed by)
operating activities 4,407,641 (1,475,873)
SHBBEITHEREZFE Interest paid on certificates of deposit
issued (65,885) (85,161)
EHEBFIEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (252,600) (525,728)
BEBINR Overseas tax paid (13,319) (10,576)
EEBRA (TR RS FE Net cash from/(used in) operating
activities 4,075,837 (2,097,338)

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise the following balances
with maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition, deposits that are readily convertible to

e known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
2022 2021
IR & MATRITH &R Cash and balances with banks 2,894,529 2,636,182
[REIEF B FE3ME A sk A T 2B KA HiTF R Money at call and short notice with an
original maturity within three months 13,108,548 7,241,778
[REERAE3ME A S AT 2 R IRI TR Placements with banks with an original
maturity within three months 2,270,451 1,421,398
PRABIFEERENESF N BERR Treasury bills included in trading
securities 89,278 2,304,220
BRERARNTESESEZ A Treasury bills included in financial
Hit2EmmemEEAN s BERE assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 897,617 2,439,243
19,260,423 16,042,821

RELE ERIT A R R ERTTHY 45 ££378,787,00075 7T
(20214 ; 382,987,000/ ) B[ IRERERE
+EE IRETIRRBEEIRE RERITHLE
BRIERIET ©

Included in cash and balances with banks, HK$378,

787,000 (2021:

HK$382,987,000) were balances with central banks for prudential

purposes and have been excluded from cash and cash

equivalents.
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

40. FEREREH

(A RERMEFH 2 BEIHRER (c)

Ti’«%uiﬂtﬁ‘i@ﬁﬁmﬁl&éé@JZE R B2
ﬁémﬁﬁ/ﬁEﬂZEﬁ 5
EAKEGERE

B &3!55%&2

e %Z%W iﬁﬁﬁﬂéiﬁ?ﬁbfﬁﬁﬁZ%fE °

FERME @ 40.

CASH FLOWS (continued)

cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the consolidated statement of

FEREEE
ALt
Total
HESE #EES EMFE  liabilities from
Lease  Subordinated Interest financing
liabilities notes payable activities
R2021F1A1R At 1 January 2021 694,598 3,828,458 47,304 4,570,360
RERGME Changes from financing cash flows:
fiﬁﬂ?‘?ﬂéf R Interest paid on subordinated notes and
LEBESRZHE debt securities issued - - (170,924) (170,924)
BITRERR Issue of subordinated notes - 2,320,246 - 2,320,246
BREEES Repayment of subordinated notes - (1,949,775) - (1,949,775)
BEHEAR Repayment of lease liabilities (199,800) - - (199,800)
BERS M EBAE Total changes from financing cash flows (199,800) 370,471 (170,924) (253)
Hih &) Other changes:
BETRERBRERES Interest accrued on subordinated notes and
IERHFIS debt securities issued - - 175,565 175,565
FRHEAR Additions to lease liabilities 110,438 - - 110,438
EREE Exchange difference 50 14,610 - 14,660
HEREZFISXH Interest expense on lease liabilities 9,654 - - 9,654
AT{EL hER Fair value hedge adjustment - (85,093) - (85,093)
HinZHas Total other changes 120,142 (70,483) 175,565 225,224
R2021512831H%20221 518 At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 614,940 4,128,446 51,945 4,795,331
BERSR &) : Changes from financing cash flows:
§ZHE‘?’Y‘?T?§1 R Interest paid on subordinated notes and
REBES 2 FE debt securities issued - - (164,342) (164,342)
TR EES Repayment of lease liabilities (157,077) - - (157,077)
MERSR B EAE Total changes from financing cash flows (157,077) - (164,342) (321,419)
Hin#E) - Other changes:
BETREGHRERES Interest accrued on subordinated notes and
ZIERTHIE debt securities issued - - 164,346 164,346
FRHEAR Additions to lease liabilities 73,626 - - 73,626
ERERE Exchange difference (5,311) 315 - (4,996)
HEEECAETN Interest expense on lease liabilities 8,201 - - 8,201
ATEE R Fair value hedge adjustment - (327,266) - (327,266)
Hit# a8 Total other changes 76,516 (326,951) 164,346 (86,089)
R2022612831H At 31 December 2022 534,379 3,801,495 51,949 4,387,823

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,
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M. ERTESRHEBAEHRE

RIBEFBQRED(F622GE ) F1781(HBEES
FHER)  BEERTFESZEHZ20224F 22021
FI2AMBIEFEZHEFS W27 -

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

41. LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND ENTITIES
CONNECTED WITH DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans to directors disclosed pursuant to section 17
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622G) (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 are shown as below.

2022 2021
M12A31B 2B S AREEERE Aggregate amount of relevant
transactions outstanding at
31 December
—ERRER — Loans and advances 803 1,137
FRNEBR G 2 w=iBER Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
transactions during the year
—EREBR — Loans and advances 1,712 1,672

R20224F 220214 Lt 2 R BB R 5 M ANERTT

1T -

42. BBEEALTZRE

RRT2BEEER AR ARMBRITEEBR QA
(TRFRITEE]) REREERARAFERER
EEAEMNES LHARF]

R20224F 220214 » AIRTTHE—ARE MK - B
ERA R R EMR R B AR E S BSERE
X5 BREBRITREFRRBH - HERDHA
FhRRRER  REEMRITRY -

AN - REBITIRAKKIER AR RERRZMB A
ARHEKNRITBRY  HERSEMETRE
HIERR] o

The above relevant transactions in 2022 and 2021 were all transacted
by the Bank.

42. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank’s immediate holding company Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (“DSBG”) and the ultimate holding company is DSFH. Both
holding companies are incorporated and listed in Hong Kong.

During 2022 and 2021, the Bank entered into various continuing
connected transactions with its holding companies, and other fellow
subsidiaries on normal commercial terms. These transactions include
interbank placements and deposit taking, marketing and distribution of
life and general insurance products and the provision of other banking

services.
In addition, the Bank also provides computer and administrative

services to its immediate and ultimate holding companies and its fellow
subsidiaries, leases and sub-leases properties to fellow subsidiaries.
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

42. EBEEATZXZwm)
WMAEBBEBALTZEARZNT :

(F) BERARAKEANBLARANRSERE

42. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:

(a) Transactions and balances with holding companies

2 and fellow subsidiaries
(i) WARSZH (i) Income and expenses
HERBAERAR
Immediate and EEA PN
ultimate holding companies Fellow subsidiaries
2022 2021 2022 2021

ERFLE Interest paid (912) (731) (15,672) (6,804)
EUFE Interest received - - 11 24
BKAEE Commission received - - 25,972 27,091
B BRH &, U El Service fee received/recovery of

A &E I other operating expenses 6,818 6,921 6,375 6,096
EdiEE REEAE Rental and related building

BER management fee received = - 3,060 4,357
B EMEES Other operating expenses paid - - (9,162) (7,286)
BfHEE Rental paid - - (4,459) (4,419)

224  KEHRITAERADF 2022F F 3
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42. EBEEATZXF @)
() XEEEBAE
() HEERFTEEFNEZEAX
B R
FR - ARITIRBWEEFER - 8 - EHRF
FIRERBTFEEEEAS  HIEHENES

WEMRAESIRE - WIRENIESES
BIEP IR R EE A S TR -

hin

=

IT2ERABZRGMEL ZWARHIL
TEX MERRGFRZERNAT

42,

(b)

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Key management personnel

(i) Material transactions and balances with directors
and key management personnel

During the year, the Bank has banking transactions with the key
management personnel, their close family members and the
entities controlled by them including deposit taking, loans, credit
card facilities and investment services. These transactions were
provided in the ordinary course of business and at the same
terms with other employees.

Income and expenses arising from the transactions with key
management personnel are immaterial and the loans and
deposits balances with them are shown below:

2022 2021

BERRER Loans and advances 745 1,137
TR Deposits 464,480 374,128
KEA 2 EFUEEE Undrawn commitments 3,872 3,785
713 Guarantee - —

(i) FTEEEASHE

ARITEREEABRITES - EHRMC
BEENZFIRMEES -

(A) REBERARAFZEHER RS RE
R

FARN - ARTKIEBERAEERT
209,484,000/ 7T (20214 : 206,338,000/%5 7T ) i%
BURA o 7202212 A31H » AIRITWEEZH
EERITELEOE ST (20214 : 48,529,000
BIT) o BN ARITERUSERIEHIERE 2T
i EH 720224 12 A 31 B 17 51 4 # /226,552,000
7570 (20214 : 510,113,000/ 7T ) ° F A » AR
77U R B F E 1 H] B 8221,180,00078 7T.(2021 4F ¢
24,240,000 7T) IR BURA » EL R 5 RAASHRITIR
HEEGEER —BEERRIESE

()

(ii) Remuneration of key management personnel
Key management personnel of the Bank are executive directors

and their remunerations are included under Note 15.

Transactions and balances with associate and jointly
controlled entities

During the year, the Bank received from BOCQ, an associate, dividend
income of HK$209,484,000 (2021: HK$206,338,000). As at 31
December 2022, there is no outstanding balance of Bank accepted
trade bills issued by BOCQ (2021: HK$48,529,000). During the
year, the Bank took deposits from jointly controlled entities and the
balance of deposit as at 31 December 2022 was HK$226,552,000
(2021: HK$510,113,000). During the year, the Bank received from
a jointly controlled entity dividend income of HK$21,180,000 (2021:
HK$24,240,000). The transactions and balances were provided in the

ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms.
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43. IR HER R E

AEERFABREX N 2 RAR S A2 AR
RETERENET B -

() BARBE N URD HER BN
(FF) BREX R E &

AREEEBRHIRITEE 2 RBAEFTEI([ K
FERTTERERE D REZERARAH @S
BARAR 2 BRI ([ A EatEl])
PR AR ST AR ) AR AN T HE
ERBEITHAE -

(i) KRHEBITEEE

RIFTERITEBAR RN 201455 A27H
HEER AR R ST 2

ZE R TR A RITEE BN
ZIER NG EAE T - B RRE
ZATEETRREANFHEE SRR
ARIBITEEEFGUTSERNE
BR S ETRAIZE17.03(E)FRE
T mAMERAT2IEF Z&EEE
BEE - (VKRARITEERNDER TR
REBRZAEEZWHIE « R(i)K
FTERITERBER O A ZER T H A5
LBEANBERZMEE 2 FHRS

= o

BAHIRTTEBEF S BERMBRE
2022F12A31H @ & T AN

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Group operates equity-settled and cash-settled share-based
compensation plans. Details of the share-based compensation paid to
directors under these plans are disclosed in Note 12.

(A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
(a) Equity-settled share option scheme

Pursuant to the DSBG’s Share Option Scheme (the “DSBG
Scheme”) and the Share Option Scheme of its holding company,
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the “DSFH Scheme”),
equity-settled share-based compensation is available to directors
and senior executives of the Group.

(i) DSBG Scheme

The shareholders of the DSBG approved the adoption of a
share option scheme on 27 May 2014.

The share options were granted in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the DSBG Scheme. The exercise
price per option share was concluded by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) on behalf of
the Board of DSBG on the basis no less exacting than
the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(E) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and was
determined as no less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of DSBG’s shares traded on the SEHK on the date of
grant; and (ii) the average closing price of DSBG’s shares
traded on the SEHK for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

Share options granted under the DSBG Scheme since the
date of its adoption to 31 December 2022 are as follows:

T~
BRITEEGER)
®FH 5l REHE TEH Exercise price
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period per share (HK$)
20184 A26H VARSCHE 2 A+ 20185F4 H26H & 201954 H26E &
202354 H26H 202454 H26H
26 April 2018 Equity-settled 26 April 2018 — 26 April 2019 — 18.24
26 April 2023 26 April 2024
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43. DR AERRMET S @ 43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
() IR RER AR B E W 3R 5t 8l (A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans

(Continued)

() URBEZ TR RETE &) (a) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)
(i) AFLEHE (i) DSFH Scheme
7201565 H27H © AF LB R On 27 May 2015, the shareholders of DSFH approved the
HE SR MR ER S ([ KFF S mbst adoption of a share option scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”).
I
REEREHEI B RN B A8 E 2022412 No share options had been granted under the DSFH
A318 1k WA RARERIE A Scheme since the date of its adoption to 31 December
SRGTEIRL - 2022.
ARG Wam AR TR 2 DA RS RE S A DA R A7 /2 Equity-settled share-based compensation charged to
EMmM s HIT consolidated income statement is as follows:
2022 2021
VAR #E S2 AF 2 SRR Equity-settled options 239 480
LURES 2R RE Equity-settled options
B RITE BB FTR T 2 ARES With respect to the equity-settled options granted under the
N RARE - ERETAZAFETIA=IE DSBG Scheme described above, the fair value is determined by
HEEEBREGH - using the Trinomial Option Pricing Model at the date when the

options are granted.

R20224F - N AF{A] AR 32 A 2 SR AR No equity-settled options were granted under the DSBG Scheme
BEAFRITEEFT I RAF e E =5 and DSFH Scheme in the year of 2022.
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43. DR AEERRMEE @
() LURBES ARG BB R 8l

() BUREX R & #)

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans

(Continued)

(a) Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

LRESS T 28R ) Equity-settled options (Continued)
BT 2 R ES B REMETFHITEE & Movements in the number of share options granted and their
T - related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
RABTERTE RE SRS
DSBG Scheme DSFH Scheme
2022 2021 2022 2021
B St BF Sl
BEAH RELH L BE
BITEE RITERE AR AFed
ZRET  METE  2RER ETS ARER  mETHS JRER ET
g | eE KA e  RHHE E RhEE 718
Number (A7) Number (1) ~ Number (Bm)  Number (BT
of DSBG  Weighted  of DSBG ~ Weighted =~ of DSFH Weighted  of DSFH  Weighted
shares  average shares  average shares  average shares  average
inshare  exercise  inshare  exercise ~ inshare  exercise  inshare  exercise
options price options price ~ options price options price
granted (HKS)  granted (HK$) ~ granted (HK$)  granted (HKS)
1A18 At 1 January 1,200,000 18.24 1,200,000 18.24 - - - -
el Granted - - - - - - - -
[R5 Expired - - - - - - - -
BT Exercised - - - - - - - -
BEVH/ B Cancelled/forfeited - - - - - - - -
12R318 At 31 December 1,200,000 18.24 1,200,000 18.24 - - - -
12A318T77(E Exercisable at 31 December 960,000 1824 720,000 18.24 - - - -

KFIRITEE R 202212 A31 B R 1TF 2
RIHE 2 1T B RETT18.248 7T (20214 -
18.2487T) - REMEFORBREERAR
1324 (20214 : 2.32F) - R AEEE
EREBITBRABAERZ KT mMARMRK
- 1R2022F 12 A31 B8 B K172 KH
©RERARAE(20214F 1 S8 ATT(H 2 RAIE) ©

228  KERITEIRAD R 2022F FH

DSBG’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2022 have
an exercise price of HK$18.24 (2021: HK$18.24), and a weighted
average remaining vesting period of 1.32 years (2021: 2.32
years). In respect of directors and senior executives of the Group,
there is no DSFH’s share option outstanding as of 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil).
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. LR AERBMEE @ 43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
() IR RER AR B E W 3R 5t 8l (A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)
(Z) Bt7Z%matE (b) Share award scheme
DRI RIT R B B © B R B ERANAR 17 DSBG and DSFH have each established a share award scheme
2ENETEI (D Bl Al KFTIRI TS E R SEEpat (hereinafter referred to as the “DSBG Share Award Scheme”

BRI K& Rk 2R &) - AKRBGE and the “DSFH Share Award Scheme” respectively) as another

TREXNEF  ERISEE - WHE) & 526 long-term incentive plan to recognise the contribution or value of

REREREBRPERBR - BRGHEIF certain employees or directors and to motive and incentivize them

1FaAF in furtherance of the long-term business objectives of the Group.

Details of the schemes are as follows:

()  WIERFEI572021F9 A9H 434 - i ()  Both schemes took effect on 9 September 2021 for a term
[RA106F - of 10 years.

(i) ARAXAEEZAMRNEENES (i)  Any employee or director (including executive director, non-
(BEHTES  FPTEETRBEY executive director and independent non-executive director)
FEMITER A ERBHEETE - of the Company or any other member of the Group is

eligible to participate in the Scheme.

(i) EFRIAREEEREATERER (i) The Board or its Delegate shall determine the vesting
2 BB RERE 4SRN A schedule, vesting criteria and other conditions in the Award
AR o Letter.

(iv) BEBROHEBBKREMISEA - 87 (iv) The Award Shares should be acquired via on-market
FIBIBEITHIIRES o purchase and/or issue of new shares.

(1) R¥FE&BBROEBE (1) DSFH Share Award Scheme
ZET BRI 2021 F9 9B I & The scheme was established on 9 September 2021 and
202243 A30H{E5] - BERMBREZE further amended on 30 March 2022. Award shares granted
2022F12A31H I |TFH”RMH W under the scheme since the date of its adoption till 31
Ik December 2022 are as follows:
BRATEE
(#&7)
#FH RTRBROEA FEAE Fair value per share
Date of grant Number of award shares granted Vesting period (HKS)
2022F12A6H 2022F12A6H =
2027 12H6H
6 December 2022 358,100 6 December 2022 — 18.34

6 December 2027
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. DR AEERRMEE @
() LURBES ARG BB R 8l

(Z) R #EBE =)
1) XHFLBBROEBTE @
REFEWEERERER Z G ZE S T

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

(b) Share award scheme (Continued)
(1) DSFH Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Share award expense charged to consolidated income

T statement is as follows:
2022 2021
& 17 22D Share award incentive 209 -
RyiHn ZEEE 2 ZEWT Movements in the number of award shares granted as
follows:
AEF &R EBTE RERITEERGEBE
DSFH Share DSBG Share
Award Scheme Award Scheme
2022 2021 2022 2021
A¥FEE RIem AHBRTEE KHRTEE
RHEEE & in 21 B R EE &R
Number Number Number Number
of DSFH of DSFH of DSBG of DSBG
shares shares shares shares
1A1H At 1 January - - - -
(o Granted 358,100 - - -
5B Vested - - - -
BRI Forfeited - - - -
12A31H At 31 December 358,100 - - -
Bz ATE Fair value per share HK$18.34 - - -
FRR BN SR TR FFS Details of award shares granted during the year:
BT RALMHEE Ll
Number of BRZATE Vesting period
®FH award shares Fair value =] ES
Date of grant granted per share From To
202212 A6H 202212 A6H 2027 12H6H
6 December 2022 358,100 18.34 6 December 2022 6 December 2027
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LU0 BEE R E =)

() BURBESZ Y ARAD R E R M e &8l (a0

(Z) R #EBE =)

(1) AFEERDEBETE (@0
P {7 B2 YT &R o 55 8 HA ]

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(A) Equity-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

(b) Share award scheme (Continued)

(1) DSFH Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Remaining vesting periods of award shares outstanding:

2021%F12A31H
At 31 December 2021

2022%12A31H
At 31 December 2022

ERGETETAEREIURITER
2022 F FEAEH M E B © 20224 &
HIRIRIEAE R 2023F3 A31 B # K
FTEREEEMNEEKRET - AEEN
ETEIREF(EMITHRAE DR
2022F MR IBILALBHR R BE FE A
RIS B - 20226 M E X
FERE - BRITRA BRI &M
RIEB 15 UARR 7 B2 51 81 3 HuR T
Bil& o S f2022F RIBIELL T i
THRABRZHE - BIEELEE RS
B, - B R2023F3 A30H 7
ARITEFERATEMNEES B
B o BT EMITRABIER2022F %K
WICARPRLEN € 25 2 B FIRIER
m BETERTERERENRD
HREET B AS R R R R H
Ak - HER = FHERA D = @itk
B8 o

(2) AFRITEERHGEDE
HZE 202291231 H &k2021412 A
318 » 8B KHIRITEBARD 2B T
BT RHERG -

FeRBE R ROHE FIHEEDH EEanE4E
Remaining Remaining

vesting Number vesting Number

BT A Shares granted in period of shares period of shares
4.93F -

202212 A6H 6 December 2022 4.93 years 358,100 - -

As a reward to eligible employees to recognize their
contribution for the year ended 31 December 2022, 2022
performance bonus was advised to or paid to eligible
employees including directors of the Group as of 31
March 2023. For certain employees and directors (“Senior
Executives”) of the Group, their 2022 performance bonus
was granted in the form of deferred remuneration similar
to prior years, and starting from 2022 performance year, a
portion of the deferred remuneration payable to the Senior
Executives is in the form of deferred shares granted under
the Company’s Share Award Scheme. The arrangement
of the payment of 2022 performance bonus to Senior
Executives, including granting to them deferred shares,
was approved by the Board of the Bank and the Board of
DSFH on 30 March 2023. The deferred shares granted
as a portion of the deferred remuneration to the Senior
Executives as their 2022 performance bonus will be vested
in three equal tranches over a three-year period, subject to
vesting and satisfying other conditions per the bonus and
share award letter given to the Senior Executives.

(2) DSBG Share Award Scheme

By the end of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,
no award share was granted under DSBG Share Award
Scheme.
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43. DR AEERRMEE @
(Z) UREZFURBIELERREN 2

RIRTEERAFERMERT —BAURE N
VAR An A5 250 2 SR DR M1 81 (20 Bl A [ AR R
175 B 2R R AT &8 ) R [ A3 & b 22 B 4 A 5t
) ERRERENRIEEE -

(FF) A#R{THBERRET 1

At BRI 20183 A20H - BIER4VH L
£2022F12A31 81 - BT ZHEFT -

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans

DSBG and DSFH have each established a cash-settled share-based
incentive option scheme (hereinafter referred to as the “DSBG Incentive
Option Scheme” and the “DSFH Incentive Option Scheme” respectively)
as a long-term incentive plan to incentivise employees.

(a) DSBG Incentive Option Scheme

The scheme was established on 20 March 2018. Incentive
options granted under the scheme since the date of its adoption
to 31 December 2022 are as follows:

BRITEEGER)
®FH Al REHE TEH Exercise price
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period per share (HKS)
201844 H26H AR & X+ 201854 H26B % 201954 H26E %

2023F4H26H 202454 H26H

26 April 2018 Cash-settled 26 April 2018 — 26 April 2019 — 18.24
26 April 2023 26 April 2024
2019F6 H5H AR & 201946 A5H% 202066 A5H%
2024F6A5H 20256 A5H

5 June 2019 Cash-settled 5 June 2019 - 5 June 2020 — 13.66
5 June 2024 5 June 2025
202047 A22H AR &2 fF 202057 H22H % 2021F7H22H =
20257 H22H 20267 H22H

22 July 2020 Cash-settled 22 July 2020 — 22 July 2021 — 7.33
22 July 2025 22 July 2026
202048 H28H AR & X+ 202058 H28H & 202158 H28E %
20258 H28H 20268 A28 H

28 August 2020 Cash-settled 28 August 2020 — 28 August 2021 — 7.44
28 August 2025 28 August 2026
2021410H29H AR & 20215F10H29R = 20225F10H29R =
202610 A29H 2027F10A29H

29 October 2021 Cash-settled 29 October 2021 — 29 October 2022 — 7.46
29 October 2026 29 October 2027
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43. LR AERBMEE @ 43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(Z) MBS URBIELAERRHE (B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans
€ (Continued)
(Z) A#FE£MERMEFTE (b) DSFH Incentive Option Scheme
AT BRI A2018F3720H - BIRMARE The scheme was established on 20 March 2018. Incentive
£2022F12A31HLE BT &EEE 2% options granted under the scheme since the date of its adoption
T - to 31 December 2022 which are related to employees of the
Group are as follows:

BRITEEER)
£#FH kR3] BB T8 Exercise price
Date of grant Type Vesting period Exercise period per share (HK$)
202049 H28H AR & X+ 20205F9 H28H & 2021579 H28E &

202599 528H 20269 528H
28 September 2020 Cash-settled 28 September 2020 — 28 September 2021 — 19.89

RN TR R ERT SR B A 2 BhET 2
RGBT T - BN Z1TE(E
TR E RHME B SRR ARHIRITEE R
ARTEREFEUINERENBERSM L
MRANFE7.03E)ERET @ HAERIAT
2IER 2 B EEERE ¢ ()RIRITEE,
AR CRROERTEREERSMES
WHE « R (i) KFIRITSR B K€ Rk
MEEERTHAEZXANETERSM
BEZFHWRHE -

ZATEIE TRORER - T BEFE1EE
FOSHFIRBI A TIATTE - HMER
WRAEERNAET - ARAFTRARE
EVRER] o 22T BIR— B AR ARREEK
FRITER B A BEHBNETR S
RE)EHE - A FRARABEITERARR
TERERAH SR

28 September 2025

28 September 2026

The incentive options were granted in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the respective DSBG and DSFH schemes.
The exercise prices per incentive option were concluded by the
NRC on behalf of the respective Boards of DSBG and DSFH on
the basis no less exacting than the requirement set out in Rule
17.03(E) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
SEHK and were determined as no less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of DSBG’s/DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK on
the date of grant; and (ii) the average closing price of DSBG’s/
DSFH'’s shares traded on the SEHK for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

The rights granted under the respective schemes shall be
exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal tranches commencing
from the first anniversary of the date of grant. Subject to the
satisfaction of performance appraisal factors, the grantees may
exercise their vested options. No shares of DSBG or DSFH will
be issued to the grantees of the options under the schemes
which are essentially deferred cash incentive schemes linked to
the performance of the grantees and the share price of DSBG
and DSFH.
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43. DR AEERRMEE @

(Z) DR EXNUROERERFEMT B
(#0)

(Z) A& @ERER B @)
RERB R IRAIER 2 LR & N AR &

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

(b) DSFH Incentive Option Scheme (Continued)

Cash-settled share-based compensation charged to consolidated

Bz 2 HaA T income statement is as follows:
2022 2021
BRI RN Cash-settled options - 12,000
UBEZTZEF Cash-settled options

Bh DA AR IRTT 5 B S K Fh & Bh AE B R R U P
BRTREREZURSIMNOEN - HR2HRA
ZRFETIA=AA SRR EERLE - 102022
FWEE T AR 2 S EHER - 112021F BIER
BTz FHEZERBRENT

With respect to the cash-settled options granted under the DSBG and
DSFH Incentive Option Schemes which are related to employees of
the Group described above, the fair value is determined by using the
Trinomial Option Pricing Model at reporting date. There were no cash-
settled options granted in 2022. The assumptions used to estimate the
fair value of the options granted during 2021 are as follows:

RERITER
REEREE
DSBG Incentive
Option Scheme

®HA

Grant date

AR B AR IRTT R E R E B T)
Share price of DSBG as at grant date (HK$)
TEEGET)

Exercise price (HK$)

& ERR 08 (5L (i)

Expected volatility (Note (i))
HRESw (F)

Option life (years)

422 L P ) =R (R (i)

Risk free rate (Note (ii))

T8 HARR B3 (R (i)

Expected dividend rate (Note (iii))
HEIRZE2 A TFE(ET)

Fair value of a share in the option (HK$)

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,

202110 A29H
29 October 2021

7.46

7.46

37.22%

1.20%

3.94%

2.01
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43. DR AEERRMEE @

(Z) MBS URBIELAERRHE
()

UBEFZMHZEF m)

i

(i) BRER B R TR EE M TE R R B R B RFIRTTE
B A RRENES RS R EEA
2R EHEHRLBRBHEANRTEERE

BAZA—FARENEL KB EMETE - W
EXFAR -

iy BERAESFBIMNEESRENEE ARERE
RSB -

(i) TEARERZURLBAMNELREE -

RYREREE 2ENBE REMEFHTEEL
ZEHMT

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans

(Continued)

Cash-settled options (Continued)

Note:

@

(ii)

(iii)

Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility
of the share price of DSBG or DSFH, as appropriate, during the one
year period immediately preceding the grant date and is based on the
assumption that there is no material difference between the expected
volatility over the time to maturity of the options and the historical volatility
of the share price of DSBG, as appropriate, as set out above.

Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
time to maturity at grant date.

Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends at grant date.

Movements in the number of options granted to employees of the
Group and their related weighted average exercise prices are as

follows:
AFBTEBRBERNE K5 & R BERIE
DSBG Incentive Option Scheme DSFH Incentive Option Scheme
2022 2021 2022 2021
BT BT

G} e BT BT

KB AT ) EE
£8 e £ ETY  AFER  METH  heR BT
AR ER e RRET TRE  RREP ke DR 718
gt ] (Bm) MhEA (Br)  RH#HE (Bm) RhH#E (#7)
Number ~ Weighted Number ~ Weighted =~ Number  Weighted Number ~ Weighted
of DSBG  average of DSBG ~ average =~ of DSFH  average  of DSFH  average
sharesin  exercise  sharesin  exercise ~sharesin  exercise  sharesin  exercise
options price options price ~ options price options price
granted (HKS) granted (HKS) ~ granted (HKS) granted (HK$)
1A18 At 1 January 14,750,000 1223 15,200,000 12.37 400,000 19.89 400,000 19.89
B Granted - - 550,000 7.46 - - - -
[RE I Expired - - - - - - - -
Bk Exercised - - - - - - - -
BEVH/ 8 Cancelled/forfeited (500,000) 9.93  (1,000,000) 11.81 = = - -
12A318 At 31 December 14,250,000 1231 14,750,000 12.23 400,000 19.89 400,000 19.89
127318717 Exercisable at 31 December 8,070,000 13.80 5,360,000 1452 160,000 19.89 80,000 19.89
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43. DR AEERRMEE @

(Z) DR EXNUROERERFEMT B
(#0)

UBEFZMHZEF m)

MERTFZURSINZERN - NEEBREHRA
2 BN TFEHE AR A& A12,000,00075 7T
(20214 : 12,000,000/ 7T) °

R AEEES e MRITIRA B A ER 2 KR
TEBERRFTSREN - 7K202256F12 431 HAKTT
B2 REIEZITEED B AN T7.338 TE18.24
P (20214F : 7.33 LE18.244870) % 19.897%
To(20214  19.89%7T) « REMFEFIIFIRERE
H15 Bl 52.644F (20214 : 3.644F ) }3.754F (2021
G 4.75%F) ©

44. TREERKBENHE

BB ER ERBIERITOEN TS HEREE
RBEZEERSHE  URABNFHEEEHE
HEIFRBEREENBERE  AUTKERE
ERBEMEHH -

(F) kFEEEHBEEYCHERS MR
MEALHEEMEEREE

AEEBAEBTETRGEERAR([HFETR
BEHDARZEPREPETREEERS -
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43. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

(B) Cash-settled share-based compensation plans
(Continued)

Cash-settled options (Continued)

In relation to the cash-settled options granted, the Group has recorded
liabilities of HK$12,000,000 (2021: HK$12,000,000) with reference to
the fair value of the options at the reporting date.

As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding cash-settled options under
the DSBG and the DSFH Incentive Option Schemes related to directors
and senior executives of the Group have exercise price in the range of
HK$7.33 to HK$18.24 (2021: HK$7.33 to HK$18.24) and at HK$19.89
(2021: HK$19.89) respectively, and a weighted average remaining
vesting period of 2.64 years (2021: 3.64 years) and 3.75 years (2021:
4.75 years) respectively.

44. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

(a) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the consolidated statement
of financial position

The Group maintains an account with the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”) through which it conducts
securities trading transactions for its customers.
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44, cTREEHRESBENEHE@®

(F) kFEEEHBEEYCHERS MR
MERAHHE 2 EMEEREE@®

REBRZF| R R EN TP REL 2 SR
BB HEERREE 2 EWGRIERE R ER R
THAARE © 1R2022F 124318 » 2 F R AENIA
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

44. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (continued)

(a) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the consolidated statement
of financial position (Continued)

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC, the Group has
offset the gross amount of the accounts receivable from and the gross
amount of the accounts payable to HKSCC. As at 31 December 2022,
the net amount was a payable and was included in “Other accounts
and accruals”, and as at 31 December 2021, the net amount was a
receivable and was included in “Accounts receivable and prepayments”
in Note 29. The amounts offset are shown below.

2022 2021
[EWE AR RES 2 FRIREE Gross amount of accounts receivable
from HKSCC 9,253 93,037
[EN BB REE 7 FIERH Gross amount of accounts payable to
HKSCC (69,208) (984)
(Bf) /M E B REEFHE Net amount due (to)/from HKSCC (59,955) 92,053

(2) BFERERFERBERSUHRR
RANHBEZEHEERAE

BEFEAELH

AEESRAREXSHFIILARFHREER
B WREEERR - FEEEBRATE - —8B
HRENEN  AESRRBIEFIZIRTKUR S
BEKILE - MABBRFIERPARFHREE -
WIFREROEMN AR TF IR ENEE
BER—BIEEGEMBERARDHHEE R
BfE-

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the consolidated
statement of financial position

Master netting arrangements

To mitigate credit risks, the Group enters into master netting
arrangements with counterparties whenever possible. Netting
agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty will be terminated and all amounts
outstanding will be settled on a net basis. Except for the event of
default, all outstanding transactions with the counterparty are settled
on a gross basis and generally do not result in offsetting the assets and
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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4. TREERBSENHE@® 44. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL

LIABILITIES (continued)

(2) SFEFEERFEREEFRSUHRR (b)
RABHE EREEREE®

Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)

Master netting arrangements (Continued)

BREFEREZH ®)

TR  ERR N 2 @RFHREER
PERBRIBHEMAORNEE T RS -

The following tables present details of financial instruments subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar

agreements.
BREGRHBRAZA
L H2EBeE
RAEA  RESHE Related amounts not set
ﬁfﬁZEﬁE% ﬂzﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂ off in the consolidated
ERRRER BJTZQN statement of . .
e RERE financial position FIRAME
amounts of  Net amounts BB
recognised  of financial $HMIA 58
oRESH financial assets  (BFERE e
EEME liabilitiesset  presented ERG) bk ]
Gross off in the in the Financial Amounts not
amountsof  consolidated  consolidated instruments EXREER subject to
recognised  statement  statement (including Cash F8#  enforceable
financial  of financial  of financial non-cash collateral Net netting &it
20225127318 At 31 December 2022 assets position position collateral) received amount  agreements Total
SHEE Financial assets
fTEeBIA Derivative financial instruments 3,732,908 - 3,732,908 (730,160)  (2,002,713) 1,000,035 168,328 3,901,236
Esﬁé[g\;ﬂ% ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
KRER  HEAHBR ez EBeE
HaynE REh Related amounts not set
SREEEE  fRoed off in the consolidated
Gross  BEFE AR FERAME
amounts of Netamounts financial position wHEg
recognised  of financial $BIE 2R
BERASM  financial  liabilites  (BIEFRE HEYE]
BfERE assetssetoff  presented it ok
Gross inthe in the Financial CER Amounts not
amountsof  consolidated  consolidated  instruments RefR subject to
recognised  statement  statement (including Cash B8  enforceable
financial ~ of financial of financial non-cash collateral Net netting S
20226128318 At 31 December 2022 liabilities position position collateral)  placed out amount  agreements Total
SRAER Financal iabilties
FIEHR Deposits from banks 1,245,724 - 124574 (1,245,724) - - 2866769 4,112,493
{TEERIA Derivative financial Instruments 873,366 - 873,366 (730,160) (102,009) 41,197 124,271 997,637
FIEEERRNAR Trading liabilties 730,491 - 730,491 (730,491) - - - 730,491
EfiRE RER Other accounts and accruals 700,345 - 700,345 (700,345) - - 7214684 7,915,029

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,
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44, sRIEEHSENEHE@® 44. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (continued)
(2) SFEAERHERBEFSMBMRR (b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
RAEHzEMEEREB® agreement but not offset on the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)
HREFEEETHE®) Master netting arrangements (Continued)
AR VEEAMBIRARA

BRER  MSABE HE ERER
HETORZ tppxs  Related amounts not set
LBABEE  FITIAR off in the consolidated

Gross ~ AEFHE statement of THRAE
amounts of ~ Net amounts financial position BT
recognised  offinancial  £ETE A+
ERALH financial assets  (BEIEES e
EESH  liabilties set  presented #AR) kx|
Gross off in the in the Financial Amounts not
amounts of  consolidated  consolidated  instruments  EUIR SR subject to
recognised  statement  statement (including Cash 8  enforceable
financial  offinancial ~ of financial non-cash collateral Net netting Ait
20215 12A31H At 31 December 2021 assets position position collateral) received amount  agreements Total

SRAE Financial assets
fiEERIA Derivative financial instruments 565,259 - 565,259 (504,251) (44,316) 16,692 55,797 621,056
WA Y TEEERHTRARA
RERN RRARK HEZ LS
o pdak Uhp £y Related amounts not set
SWEELE  NFI4R off in the consolidated
Gross  EfEFE statement of TR
amounts of  Net amounts financial position BT
recognised  offinancial  £RIE LR
ERALH financial liabilties  (RFEFEEL tEhE
BEME  assetsset  presented HER) pkx
Gross off in the inthe  Financial EER Amounts not
amountsof  consolidated  consolidated  instruments & subject to
recognised  statement  statement (including Cash 8 enforceable
financial  offinancial ~ of financial non-cash collateral Net netting Ait
20215 12A31H At 31 December 2021 liabilities position position collateral)  placed out amount  agreements Total
EREE Financial liabilities
FEH Deposits from banks 1,203,131 - 1,208,131 (1,203,131) - - 500,066 1,703,197
fiEERIE Derivative financial instruments 1,381,163 - 1,381,163 (504,251) (851,835) 25,077 44,202 1,425,365
BEEBERRNAR Trading liabilities 1,511,927 - 1511927 (1511927 - - - 1511927
HinfR B RFER Other accounts and accruals 307,731 - 307,731 (307,731) - - 6228855 6,536,586
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TIREAAREE 2 ERHERER A M BERER 28
M INER - EXIFEEFFERMBRERZ —#

,T/\ °

1. BEXRZEHLR

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as
part of the accompanying information to the consolidated financial
statements and does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

1. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

2022F 20214F
12H31H 12A31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021

BARF R Capital adequacy ratio
—EBlRE—R — Common Equity Tier 1 15.2% 14.2%
—— — Tier 1 15.9% 14.7%
— — Total 19.3% 18.1%

202212 A31A K2021F12 A1 B ZE AL 2
LR DARRITEER AR (B FERPIEERIT K
FTRTT (R ED ) RBEGRITE(BER)RADHEER
MENERAAE - ZEXRTRELHLENFEEE
EE TSR AR IERRE o

RIPITRBBEMBITARBEBRITEMED
BTEAT L RKEENR - BFIHERITAE
SARRFIIRITRE TR ERARFRIT(PE)
AETARTERITREENRE °

REEGRITE(EKE)RAD)  FEAEEEEER
RN E AR EE 2 BEINE R B RIS A RITA
H http://www.dahsing.com + 3 A &8 LA T B £ &
# : hitp://www.dahsing.com/html/tc/about_us/
regulatory_disclosures.htmlEA ©

240  KEEITERA R 2022F FH

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021 represents the consolidated position of the Bank (covering BCM
and DSB China) computed on Basel Ill basis in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules. This capital adequacy ratio takes into account
market risk and operational risk.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to
the minimum capital adequacy ratio requirement under the Hong Kong
Banking Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking regulations and
DSB China is subject to China banking regulations.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
additional information relating to the Group’s regulatory capital
and other related disclosures is published in the Bank’s website at
http://www.dahsing.com and is accessible at the following direct link:
http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/regulatory_disclosures.html.
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(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. LEVERAGE RATIO

2022F 20214

12A31H 12A31H

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

AR & Leverage ratio 10.6% 9.9%

ERTIARBITZHEERNZ LK R IRERTT L
K2 HERGAEREH -

REECRITE(RE) RA) - BEAKHE
BREEZHENEHEHHAERRTHEE
WA &N B #E
## 45 ¢ http://www.dahsing.com/html/tc/about_us/

http://www.dahsing.com -

regulatory_disclosures.htmliE A ©

3. RBEeRHHLE

The above ratios represent the consolidated position of the Bank and
are computed on the same consolidated basis as the capital adequacy
ratio.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
additional information relating to the Group’s leverage ratio is published
in the Bank’s website at http://www.dahsing.com and is accessible at
the following direct link: http://www.dahsing.com/html/en/about_us/
regulatory_disclosures.html.

3. LIQUIDITY MAINTENANCE RATIO

2022 2021

MB MRS R

MBI IT L R T ARIT (BHRFIA R RITREX
FrRIT(RED) R BREEESERE ANFHEAR
PUERF L ENEE IR - RBUERFLLETD
REBCGRITEORBIE)RADE -

RIBITRBREMRITARBEETBRITERENE
SREMEESER  RFIHRRITABTERR
FIRITREE R ERKHRIT(PE)BAETEH
AT BIIRITREERTE °

Liquidity maintenance ratio 50.4% 46.9%

The LMR is calculated as the simple average of each calendar month’s
average consolidated LMR of the Bank (covering BCM and DSB China)
for the financial year. The LMR is computed in accordance with the
Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject to the
liquidity requirement under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. BCM
is subject to Macau banking regulations and DSB China is subject to
China banking regulations.
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4. SMNERPBR

T3 BE2022F12 A31 B 2 E T ME AR &
ZONEFEE (BRI 2 HNE SR FR R B T S YNE SR R
10%) + REAAME 2 LR -

R2022F12 A31H Kk2021F12A31H » N&EE
WA AR IEINE IS 8055 - SR 0R
BRTEINERES N2 SRENERSE AERT

4. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

The following sets out the net foreign exchange position in USD and
other individual currency that constitutes more than 10% of the total
net position in all foreign currencies as at 31 December 2022 and the
corresponding comparative balances.

The Group did not have any structural foreign exchange position as at
31 December 2022 and 2021. The net position is calculated in the basis
of the delta-weighted position of all foreign currency option contracts.

o
HAt oM AT
Ak Other Total
EY AR Macau foreign foreign
2022%12831H At 31 December 2022 US dollars Renminbi Pataca currencies currencies
BERBEAT Equivalent in HK$ millions
BEEE Spot assets 72,101 16,890 9,502 9,356 107,849
REAR Spot liabilities (55,594) (15,503) (10,912) (10,016) (92,025)
REEA Forward purchases 41,010 5,859 - 16,671 63,540
EHE N Forward sales (56,946) (6,958) - (16,027) (79,931)
Hig s Net options position 33 3 - 17) 19
&/(R)eFE Net long/(short) position 604 291 (1,410) (33) (548)
H oM SNEEE
SRPHE Other Total
ey AR Macau foreign foreign
2021%12A31H At 31 December 2021 US dollars Renminbi Pataca currencies currencies
HERBEST Equivalent in HK$ millions
REEAE Spot assets 73,869 16,988 9,917 5,947 106,721
HEEE Spot liabilities (54,003) (16,632) (11,278) (8,594) (90,507)
RHEA Forward purchases 30,077 11,240 - 18,947 60,264
EHEM Forward sales (49,845) (11,480) - (16,318) (77,643)
HitE e Net options position 35 3 - (5) 33
®/(R)B3E Net long/(short) position 133 119 (1,361) (23) (1,132)
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5. EERBREZEIDN

ERRARSERUARERRRENE D

REEZH I HER

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES

() RITEXS B2 EFERRBIRBE (a) Gross loans and advances to customers by industry

sector classified according to the usage of loans and

Ee o #r) analysed by percentage covered by collateral
2022512A31H 20214 12A31H
At 31 December 2022 At 31 December 2021
ERRBTAHE BR kB
SHEARIRE SHRRIRE
ZED ZAML
% of gross % of gross
loans and loans and
REREH advances REELEH advances
Outstanding covered by Outstanding covered by
balance collateral balance collateral
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEeRm Industrial, commercial and financial
-MEER ~ Property development 5,194,440 63.5 5,467,229 75.2
—MERE — Property investment 21,406,840 88.0 19,253,002 93.2
— SR E - Financial concerns 2,564,573 16.0 4,661,129 14.9
—-RELL — Stockbrokers 842,926 56.9 1,642,984 61.6
—HEETEX — Wholesale and retail trade 4,825,599 92.7 5,401,435 91.8
—BlER — Manufacturing 1,954,317 44,5 1,987,035 60.7
— B RERRE — Transport and transport equipment 2,247,726 78.2 2,269,160 79.2
- REEE - Recreational activities 79,708 99.8 59,895 99.1
—ERRE - Information technology 22,048 59.8 59,058 91.1
—Hft - Others 6,054,928 80.1 6,970,986 74.4
45,193,105 77.6 47,771,913 775
{EN Individuals
~BE[REEEENE] — Loans for the purchase of flats in
[FLA2EBEERE R Home Ownership Scheme, Private
[BEEEEHEEFTER Sector Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 484,470 99.7 529,218 100.0
-REEMEENEER ~ Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 33,911,826 100.0 33,473,466 100.0
~EERER — Credit card advances 3,674,222 - 3,670,096 -
—Hh - Others 12,181,304 45.0 13,105,677 51.0
50,251,822 79.3 50,778,457 80.1
EEBFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong 95,444,927 78.5 98,550,370 78.8
ZHRAGE) Trade finance (Note (1)) 5,752,611 725 8,123,088 67.3
EBEBUIMERNER () Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2)) 35,332,833 61.4 37,640,550 58.4
136,530,371 73.8 144,314,008 72.9
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. EBEEREFEZEIMND @

() ROTEPBEZEFERRBRAEENU
EXAZSERUSEERRENE D
tb 2 #7) @)

LRIRZBSMERSEEESEREHZA
BiEsImaEARELED HONEBOMNRE -
UEEMESBEEZER

TEREBZ BHMEABER(BIEARRITZEINE
TNBRATRTZEHEE)181E281,123,000/%
JL(2021F12 531 H : 485,128,000/ C) 7 E7
[TEBEBUIMERMERIET -

[EEBMMERNESR IBEETREEPEE
BEAIMERZ B
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(@)

Note:

ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (continued)

Gross loans and advances to customers by industry
sector classified according to the usage of loans and
analysed by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of imports
to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong and merchandising
trade classified with reference to the relevant guidelines issued by the
HKMA.

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade finance
extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of the Bank) totalling
HK$281,123,000 (31 December 2021: HK$485,128,000) are classified
under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to customers
located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside Hong Kong.
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5. EREREREZBEIDH @

() BT B2 EFERRBRBE
ERRARSERUARERRRENE D

tb 2 #7) @)

FRAPSEXNEFLPER N BREEE10%H A
TR EREERESENRE  BHERE B
EZ3 ~ KBS MBS 2EFUREEBIT ¢

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (continued)

(a) Gross loans and advances to customers by industry
sector classified according to the usage of loans and
analysed by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

For each industry sector reported above with loan balance constituting
10% or more of the total balance of loans and advances to customers,
the attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans, Stage 3, and
Stage 1 and Stage 2 impairment allowances are as follows:

EXR
ByEE
AHAEER B R FEER2
HEER HBiB3fEA PR ER3 HEEE
(B£E%3)  Gross loans WE%fE  Stage1and
AEELH Impaired and advances Stage 3 Stage 2
Outstanding loans  overdue for  impairment  impairment
2022F12A318 At 31 December 2022 balance (Stage 3) over3months  allowances  allowances
EEBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THeE Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE — Property investment 21,406,840 34,299 92,035 2,095 138,453
A Individuals
-BEHMEE — Loans for the purchase of other
MEER residential properties 33,911,826 81,842 92,156 11,350 24518
TEEBIMERBER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 35,332,833 1,685,840 1,413,348 618,858 261,878
BTk
PHETE
BAMKRER PRER1 I P ER2
fBiA3(E A EEE] REER
WEEF  Gross loans WEEE  Stage 1and
KEERHS (f&E%3) and advances Stage 3 Stage 2
Outstanding Impaired overdue for impairment impairment
2021124318 At 31 December 2021 balance (Stage 3) over 3 months allowances allowances
EEBERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEsa Industrial, commercial and financial
-WERE - Property investment 19,253,002 51,919 38,121 11,729 89,789
A Individuals
-REEMEE — Loans for the purchase of other
MEER residential properties 33,473,466 89,902 85,138 9,624 24,502
TEEBUIMERRER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 37,640,550 392,169 368,601 163,778 342,823
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. EREREREZBEIDH @

(2) HHEAEREBNERER

REFBSER(RITERE)RA) - U THF
BAEEBNBBE T H2REBSERYF
BIRPEZETSRMER P AT 2 IERITRRZHEFR
AIREEREFEBEEENDE  HhREEAR
TREAHRITIHB R BR T 2 B AEEBH
T o

5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (continued)

(b) Mainland activities exposures

The analysis of Mainland activities exposures is based on the
categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct exposures
defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules with
reference to the HKMA Return of Mainland Activities, which includes the
Mainland activities exposures extended by the Bank and its Mainland
subsidiary bank only.

BESERA BEAER)
HEhE )23
On-balance Off-balance Bere
20225 2022 sheet exposure sheet exposure Total exposures
1. PREST - PREGEEM 1. Central government, central government-
BERANBARNES owned entities and their subsidiaries and joint
NRI([AERAT]) ventures (“JVs”) 7,328,050 106,667 7,434,717
2. MAHBE - ABAEAR 2. Local governments, local government-owned
KERERBRATNEE entities and their subsidiaries and JVs
N 631,492 592,303 1,223,795
3. EEETEMMzERHE 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or
B AR A R EL other entities incorporated in Mainland China
REMBRAMAERT and their subsidiaries and JVs 10,500,933 1,932,334 12,433,267
4, KRBEELME-EEH/RZHP 4 Other entities of central government not
REFE R et reported in item 1 above 3,753,802 71,984 3,825,786
5. KRBEELME-IAZH/2M 5. Other entities of local governments not reported
TBFEO AR in item 2 above 943,649 170,022 1,113,671
6. FEEFEAMHUNZER 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland China
N TE R B A AN S A or entities incorporated outside Mainland
g - S ROEFRT China where the credits are granted for use
At A in Mainland China 11,535,421 593,574 12,128,995
7. EMXSHF  HHEHR 7. Other counterparties where the exposures are
{EE B AREIERI TR considered to be non-bank Mainland China
FHBE exposures 440,041 - 440,041
35,133,388 3,466,884 38,600,272
AFITRERMRITINBARZ Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland
MRBER C BEA subsidiary bank after provision 237,109,784
BEBBERANBELEEAST  On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
[Epi):d total assets 14.82%
. L ERBERERFEFEEREMUESR Note: The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,

BZE8 -

other balances of claims on the customers.
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. ERERSEIEIDT@® 5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND

EXPOSURES (continued)
(Z) BB RpEEKREREE (30

(b) Mainland activities exposures (Continued)

BEBREXA BEBERN
igfoe IR
On-balance Off-balance BHE
20214 2021 sheet exposure sheet exposure Total exposures
1. RRERE PREFEAES 1. Central government, central government-
BERANBARMAEE owned entities and their subsidiaries and JVs
NS 9,094,497 120,098 9,214,595
2. MAHBE - HABAEAR 2. Local governments, local government-owned
BERANBARNAEE entities and their subsidiaries and JVs
NS 1,447,842 263,538 1,711,380
3. EEATEAMzERSE 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland China or
B A S R B R other entities incorporated in Mainland China
REMBRARMEE LA and their subsidiaries and JVs 14,376,645 1,504,435 15,881,080
4, FEELME-TBEH/RZHP 4. Other entities of central government not
R E S reported in item 1 above 2,890,926 10,714 2,901,640
5 ARBELMEZEZ® M 5. Other entities of local governments not reported
IR E in item 2 above 1,060,321 249,582 1,309,903
6. BEETEAMLANZER 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland China
AL B A ASNK L &) or entities incorporated outside Mainland
g - My REOBEFRT China where the credits are granted for use
st in Mainland China 11,835,454 806,339 12,641,793
7. EMXSUTF  HEEWIR 7. Other counterparties where the exposures are
{EE B AR TR considered to be non-bank Mainland China
PHEBE exposures 732,977 289 733,266
41,438,662 2,954,995 44,393,657
AT RE RHIRTT Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland
IMEBARLZ NG subsidiary bank after provision
Rz EEAR 233,473,940
BEBERANBE On-balance sheet exposures as percentage of
HEEGHBEAL total assets 17.75%
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(LAFE®EF LAz517R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. EBERERESFEZEIMD @

(A) BEASMZBEFERRBRAERE
HER

EEERRBRY BT HIEEDEERRS
BRI ISHEFRERAIE - —BHE  BEX
BRI B S HF A 2 BEE - AR
W -

TERREFPEREBYRERE REFFPER LD
H(FEER3) - SR P ER BN - BRI - RE
B Mg B 2R E IR RIS DT -

5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (continued)

(c) Analysis of gross loans and advances to customers
and overdue loans by geographical area

Loans and advances to customers by geographical area are classified
according to the location of the counterparties after taking into account
the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advance is
guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that of
the counterparty.

The following table analyses gross loans and advances to customers,
impaired loans and advances to customers (Stage 3), overdue loans
and advances to customers, Stage 3, and Stage 1 and Stage 2
impairment allowances by geographical area.

HERFER
EFER REX(KRS) BUEFER )
REFEHE Impaired k&% PR EX3 REEE
Gross loans and Overdue WEEE Stage1and
loansand  advances to loans and Stage 3 Stage 2
advances to customers advancesto  impairment  impairment
2022%12A31R At 31 December 2022 customers (Stage 3) customers  allowances  allowances
&k Hong Kong 115,764,347 2,067,175 1,489,458 762,476 685,000
i China 5,983,130 226,926 120,975 35,611 34,403
R Macau 13,466,387 244,911 244,911 88,966 20,320
Hty Others 1,316,507 - - - 9,626
136,530,371 2,539,012 1,855,344 887,053 749,349

REZPER
EFPER RBR(ER3) RETFER BB & BR2
KB F4a%E Impaired R#7 PR EL3 AR
Gross loans and Overdue WELEE  Stage 1and
loansand  advances to loans and Stage 3 Stage 2
advances to customers  advances to impairment impairment
2021412 A431H At 31 December 2021 customers (Stage 3) customers allowances allowances
&k Hong Kong 121,821,903 1,114,820 539,610 469,827 676,463
H China 7,615,412 72,577 62,677 1,865 62,079
BF Macau 13,778,604 211,439 211,439 75917 76,856
Hty Others 1,098,089 - - - 7,940
144,314,008 1,398,836 813,726 547,609 823,338

AFIRITAR AT 2022F F 5,
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

5. EBEEREFEZEIMND @

(T) EIFR{ERE

BREREHREZRERRNEBRER  REXS
HFH AL MNEL MO ZH FREEH K
B - —RME  EXHHTFNEEREHETR
BRONZ—HTER  XETERS -BRTHE
HNDAT > MEARZENTRMNER - 1+ SHER
ERA—BEREBEES—BR - L5 REMRA
ZRAREBR - REHBKER EERER10%3 A
EZRIETEHHE -

(LA™ F ThI57R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS ON CLAIMS AND
EXPOSURES (continued)

(d) International claims

The information of international claims discloses exposures to foreign
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account any
transfer of risk. In general, transfer of risk from one country to another
is recognised if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed by
another party in a different country or if the claims are on an overseas
branch of a bank whose head office is located in a different country.
Only regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate international
claims after taking into account any recognised risk transfer are

disclosed.
FRTAARE
Non-bank private sector

ke

FER1T ARE

SREE Non-

BAKE Non-bank financial
202212318 At 31 December 2022 BT Official financial private EEAE
BEER In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions sector  Total claims
BEEPD Offshore centres 6,660 8,643 5,483 152,869 173,655
—-Ha: H/E - of which: Hong Kong 5,822 7,398 5,399 137,402 156,021
FRADAR Developing Asia and Pacific 27,231 1,094 1,375 17,580 47,280
—Hep: — of which: Mainland China 19,734 949 1,106 12,901 34,690

FERTRAKLE
Non-bank private sector

FoR

JEIRIT FLABEE

SEIEE Non-

B Non-bank financial
20214124318 At 31 December 2021 #17 Official financial private EREBE
BEAT In millions of HK$ Banks sector institutions sector  Total claims
BEPL Offshore centres 5,278 12,937 5,891 155,733 179,839
—Hi: FE — of which: Hong Kong 4,715 11,890 5,813 139,779 162,197
BEAGAER Developing Asia and Pacific 24731 1,216 795 18,695 45,437
—Ef — of which: Mainland China 19,423 1,055 451 14,731 35,660
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAH SING BANK, LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the
“Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages
36 to 239, comprise:

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

J the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Impairment allowances on advances to customers

. Recoverable amount of investment in an associate, Bank of
Chongging (“BOCQ”)

o Recognition of the fee and commission income from the early

termination of the Hong Kong Distribution Agreement (“HKDA”)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment allowances (“ECL”) on advances to customers

Refer to notes 4(a) and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded
impairment allowances of HK$1,636,402
thousand in respect of its advances to
customers.

The determination of the impairment allowances
involves complex methodologies and significant
management judgement. In addition, the
extent and pace of recovery from COVID-19
and other current macro-economic conditions
have impacted the inherent risk and estimation
uncertainty involved in estimating impairment
allowances.

Key judgements and estimates in respect of the
measurement of ECL include:

*  Applicability of ECL model methodologies,
and appropriateness of key measurement
parameters and assumptions;

o (Criteria for determining whether or not
there was a significant increase in credit
risk (‘SICR"), or a default;

¢+ Determination of macro-economic
forecasts, and the application of economic
scenarios and weightings;

o The estimated future cash flows for loans
and advances to customers in stage 3;
and

*  Appropriateness of management overlay
applied.

We understood and evaluated management’s
internal controls and assessment process for
the measurement of impairment allowances on
advances to customers.

We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as the complexity of estimation
models used, the subjectivity of significant
management judgements and assumptions, and
susceptibility to management bias.

We tested the key internal controls over:

o Selection of ECL model methodologies,
determination and approval of significant
management judgements such as staging and
macro-economic forecasts and their related
probability weightings, and appropriateness
of management overlay applied;

o Timely identification, assessment and
reporting of credit impaired advances to
customers;

*  Estimated future cash flows with respect
to advances to customers in stage 3 under
a range of possible scenarios and their
weightings based on financial information
of borrowers, collateral valuations and
information on other available sources of
recovery;

o Input of key data used in the impairment
models.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment allowances (“ECL”) on advances to customers (Continued)

Impairment allowances on advances to
customers is an audit focus due to the material
balance of the Group’s impairment allowances
on advances to customers and high inherent
risk given the uncertainty of estimates, adoption
of complex models, involvement of significant
management judgements and assumptions and
use of numerous parameters and data inputs in
such measurement.

In addition to testing the key controls, we have also
performed the following substantive procedures:

We involved our credit risk experts in
evaluating the model methodologies for
ECL measurement including significant
management judgements and assumptions.
We also assessed the supportability of the
management overlay applied;

On sampling basis, we assessed the
appropriateness of the internal credit
ratings, management’s judgements used in
determining significant increases in credit
risk and identification of default and credit-
impaired advances to customers based on
the borrower financial and non-financial
information and other external evidence
provided by management;

We evaluated management’s selection
of macro-economic forecasts, economic
scenarios and weightings assigned. We
assessed the reasonableness of the macro-
economic forecasts by comparing them
to available public information, taking into
account the latest developments of COVID-19
and other current macro-economic conditions;

For a sample of advances to customers in
Stage 3, we assessed the reasonableness of
key management judgements and estimates
to the ECL calculation such as estimated
future cash flow from borrowers, latest
valuation of collateral, range of scenarios and
scenarios weightings.

We checked and evaluated the financial
statements disclosures in relation to the
measurement of impairment allowances on
advances to customers.

Based on the procedures performed, we
considered that the models, significant judgements
and assumptions, as well as relevant data and key
parameters used by management in measuring
impairment allowances on advances to customers
were supported by available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Recoverable amount of the Investment in an associate, Bank of Chongging (‘BOCQ”)

Refer to notes 4(d) and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group's investment in BOCQ is accounted
for as an associate, using the equity method.
The Group carried the investment in BOCQ
of HK$2,159,290 thousand at 31 December
2022, after making a cumulative provision for
impairment of HK$4,675,000 thousand as at
year end.

The gross carrying amount of the investment
(prior to impairment allowances) was higher
than the market value of BOCQ. This is
considered as an indicator of impairment.
Therefore, management performed an
impairment assessment and concluded that the
recoverable amount of the investment in BOCQ
was lower than its gross carrying amount,
leading to an impairment allowance. The
recoverable amount was measured as value-in-
use (“VIU") estimate calculated by discounted
cash flow model.

The recoverable amount of the investment in
BOCQ is an audit focus as it is subject to a high
degree of estimation uncertainty, particularly
in estimating future cashflows arising from
holding the investment in BOCQ and any future
disposal proceeds and in determining the
discount rate. The inherent risk is considered
significant due to the subjectivity involved in
management judgements and assumptions
used in developing the estimate.

We understood and evaluated management’s
internal controls and assessment process for
the measurement of recoverable amount of the
investment in BOCQ.

We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as the complexity of estimation
models used, the subjectivity of significant
management judgements and assumptions, and
susceptibility to management bias.

We have performed the following procedures:

*  We involved valuation experts in assessing
the appropriateness of the valuation
model used by the management and the
mathematical accuracy of the calculations;

+ We assessed the reasonableness of
key assumptions and inputs used by the
management based on relevant supporting
evidence and our knowledge of the business
and industry;

o We performed scenario analysis and
developed our range of VIU estimates, by
using independent inputs and assumptions,
and compared with management’s estimates;

*  We obtained representations from the Group
that assumptions used were consistent with
information currently available to the Group;
and

o  We checked and evaluated the financial
statements disclosures in relation to the
measurement of recoverable amount of the
Group’s investment in BOCQ.

Based on the procedures performed, we
considered that the recoverable amount of the
investment in BOCQ were supported by available
evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Recognition of the fee and commission income from the early termination of the Hong Kong

Distribution Agreement (‘HKDA’)

Refer to notes 4(f) and 8 to the consolidated
financial statements

On 8 July 2022, Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited, the
ultimate holding company and immediate holding
company of the Bank, announced that the Bank
issued a notice to terminate the Hong Kong
Distribution Agreement (the “HKDA") between the
Bank and Tahoe Life Insurance Company Limited
(‘Tahoe Life”) and Tahoe Services Limited with
effect from 8 July 2022.

Under the HKDA, the Bank was appointed by
Tahoe Life as its non-exclusive insurance agent
for distribution of life insurance products in Hong
Kong and Tahoe Life as the Bank’s exclusive
supplier of life insurance products in Hong
Kong for its retail customers for a period of 15
years. The Bank received an upfront payment
of HK$1,972,000 thousand in 2017 and Tahoe
Life agreed to pay ten equal annual payments of
HK$52,800 thousand to the Bank in the first 10
years, of which five have been received by the
Bank as at 31 December 2022.

Prior to the termination of the HKDA, the
accounting treatment for the payments received
were recognised as receipt in advance and
were recognised as fee and commission income
over the contract term. Following the termination
of the HKDA, with the involvement of an
external legal counsel appointed by the Group,
management of the Group are of the view that
the HKDA was validly and effectively terminated
on 8 July 2022 and the upfront payment of
HK$1,972,000 thousand and the five annual
payments of HK$52,800 thousand received are
non-refundable. Therefore, management of the
Group concluded that the revenue recognition
criteria under HKFRS 15 are met and
recognised the remaining unamortised portion
of the receipt in advance prior to the termination
of the HKDA as fee and commission income
in the consolidated income statement for the
year ended 31 December 2022. Accordingly, a
fee and commission income of HK$1,394,149
thousand was recognised in relation to the early
termination of the HKDA.

The recognition of the fee and commission
income from the early termination of the HKDA
is an audit focus due to the significance of
the balance and the involvement of significant
management judgements in evaluating whether
the revenue recognition criteria are met,
this includes determining the validity of the
termination of the HKDA and the refundability of
the payments received by the Bank.

We understood and evaluated management’s
assessment for the recognition of the fee and
commission income from the early termination of

the HKDA.

We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the subjectivity
of significant management judgements and
assumptions, and susceptibility to management
bias.

*  We obtained understanding of the HKDA

matters through our review of the terms
and conditions set out in the HKDA, review
of the correspondences with the Group’s
external legal counsel and discussions with
management and the Group’s external legal
counsel;

*  We obtained management’s assessment for

the recognition of fee and commission income
from the early termination of the HKDA, and
evaluated management judgements involved
in their assessment and accounting policies
applied;

*  We obtained written opinions from the

Group's external legal counsel and discussed
with the Group’s external legal counsel
their analysis and views as to the validity of
the termination of the HKDA and the non-
refundability of the payments received by the
Bank. We evaluated whether the analysis
supported the relevant judgements made
by management with the assistance of our
internal legal expert;

*  We assessed the competency, capabilities,

and objectivity of the Group’s external legal
counsel; and

*  We checked management’s calculation

schedule of the fee and commission
income from early termination of the HKDA
recognised during the year.

Based on the procedures performed, we
considered the judgements made by management
of the Group in relation to the recognition of the

fee and commission income from early termination

of the HKDA were supported by the evidence
obtained.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lam Hung.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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LISTS OF BRANCHES

41T Branch

ik Address

B Tel

{#H Fax

RHFRITAERDA

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

ERBEDT

Hong Kong Island Branches

BRFD1

Aberdeen

SEEEFLDIT
Admiralty Centre

R 21T

Causeway Bay

FED1T
Central
BEWLDT
Fortress Hill

BIRWA1T
Heng Fa Chuen

HETBEDT

Johnston Road

AT
North Point

ERKERDIT

Queen’s Road East

LEEDT
Shaukiwan
RIEEDIT
Shek Tong Tsui
Bo1T

Sheung Wan
REHD 1T
Taikoo Shing

BB UESE =B a R iE
Shop 1, G/F and Portion of the Basement of Site 3,
Aberdeen Centre

ERBISEETOHS 105
Shop No. 10, 1st Floor of the Podium, Admiralty Centre,
No. 18 Harcourt Road

SRR ET B R T 84685 DB P P O T K E
G/F and Basement, Cameron Commercial Centre,
No. 468 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay

fEEE R 199URIRAE ) TASR &
Shop A, G/F, Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central
Ik AT 238293-29957 1 = A E i T 15-225% & K thE=

Shop No.15-22, G/F and basement, Empire Apartments,
Nos. 293-299 King’s Road

Se SRR 10058 AL TR A AL FT ik 212234-23557 4

Shop Units 234-235, 2/F, Heng Fa Chuen Paradise Mall,
100 Shing Tai Road, Chai Wan

BT HETZGE 1645

164, Johnston Road, Wanchai

2 iE433-437 R REAE
Chu Kee Building, 433-437 King’s Road

A 2R RER 2485 AFT 2 R LH T G7, G7TAR G854

Shop No. G7, G7A & G8, Ground Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre,

248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai

G HEEBE7-87HR AL 183 T GBIt A
Shop G8, G/F, Tai On Building, 57-87 Shaukiwan Road

25 RiEFT443-4535% 0 T~ 15-165% 40
Shop No. 15-16, G/F, 443-453 Queen’s Road West

FIRIESER 2885 F B E AE M TB25iE —EBE
G/F & 1/F, No. 288 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan

BERA G AEE SRR & 501554
Shop No. G501, On Shing Terrace, No. 28 Taikoo Shing Road &
No. 1-9 Tai Yue Avenue, Taikoo Shing

2554 5463

2529 1338

2891 2201

2521 8134

2922 3389

2558 7485

2572 8849

2561 8241

2321 8912

2568 5271

2857 7473

2851 6281

2884 4802

o i
N
i

2554 0843

3110 2818

2591 6037

2526 9427

2887 7604

2889 2520

2891 3743

2811 4474

2598 5300

2567 5904

2108 4539

2581 2216

2884 3151
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LISTS OF BRANCHES

47 Branch b3k Address B Tel {BH Fax

REFRTHRAE

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

hEEST

Kowloon Branches

ROBST R EE8895R A O T 157 4

Cheung Sha Wan Shop 1, G/F, CRE Centre, 889 Cheung Sha Wan Road 2361 0951 2958 0985

AW DT ALR) &R 728557 S ME Rt T3 45k 4 - 118257 i R 21E 35k 4

Hunghom Shop No. 3 and 4 on G/F, Shop No. 2 on 1/F and Shop 2365 8110 2363 5917
No. 3 on 2/F, Cheron Court, 28 Wuhu Street, Hunghom

EBRB 1T {EZR B 3355

Jordan 335 Nathan Road, Jordan 2385 0161 2782 0993

BEST R R 28455 B & /0 R 7-95% i

Kwun Tong Shop Nos. 7-9, G/F, Yee On Centre, 45 Hong Ning Road, 2389 3911 2389 8239
Kwun Tong

EEHWDIT ZEF 30 EAR 5 18 1 0AHD NN26E K F55

Mei Foo Sun Shop No. N26E & F, G/F, 10A Nassau Street, Stage V, 2370 2660 2370 2006

Chuen Mei Foo Sun Chuen

HADIT it A ZE697 55

Mongkok 697 Nathan Road, Mongkok 2394 4261 2391 9104

REH DT BlyEpK 11090 TA

Shing Yip Street Shop A, G/F, 10 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong 2191 8103 2191 8723

EREES 1T NEEER RS — B 12F5A-FEATR

Telford Gardens Units F5A-FBA, Level 2, Telford Plaza |, Kowloon Bay 2927 4130 2755 4967

RBB AT S HFEZCEB6-705: 2T AE

Tsimshatsui Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui 2366 9121 2311 1491

BERLD AT FANMEFARNF O FEEEH TG3CH A

Wong Tai Sin Shop No. G3C, Ground Floor, Temple Mall South, Wong Tai Sin 2326 5165 2350 0894

SR 2 4T JH T 5P 2B 561 557

Yaumatei 561 Nathan Road, Yaumatei 2782 1339 2385 9285

FRAEST

New Territories Branches

BEDT 58 B A EE 885k LA E S TA11-A14 2 110-11257 &5

Fanling Shop Nos. A11-A14 and 110-112, Ground Floor, Flora Plaza, 2677 8830 2669 9950
No. 88 Pak Wo Road, Fanling

BE 51T 255 BT RR1785% B E M N 25% 48

Kwai Fong Shop 2, G/F, Edition 178, 178 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung 2487 8033 2489 1253

BE AT 1% TR BN EE 155 The LOHASEER 41241457 48

LOHAS Park Shop Unit 414, Level 4, The LOHAS, 1 Lohas Park Road, 2838 2023 2719 6373
Tseung Kwan O
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LISTS OF BRANCHES

47 Branch b3k Address B Tel {BH Fax
RFRITERA A
Dah Sing Bank, Limited
HARAEDIT
New Territories Branches
BRILES ST FSEL PR E56085% 5 3% L1 B35 = 1233557 &
Ma On Shan Plaza Shop 335 on Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, 608 Sai Sha Road, 2929 4137 2633 3432
Ma On Shan
BERHEDT S K5 W 3355k H 7K 108 D-E5k 4
Maritime Square Shop 108 D-E, Maritime Square, 33 Tsing King Road, Tsing Yi 2435 1368 2435 1582
BB 51T P32 5168-23657% #1711 12 93-955%
Ocean Walk Shop 11 and 93-95, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, Tuen Mun 2404 6931 2404 7130
WHBES T ) 1H 18286-2885 i T
Sha Tsui Road G/F, Nos. 286-288 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan 2615 1510 2615 1099
DHDT D HEFEH O TS 95% &
Shatin Shop 9, G/F, Lucky Plaza, Shatin 2606 3533 2601 2413
ExzT _FIKET 2K 55-595% JKRIE Hh T BSR4
Sheung Shui Shop B, G/F, Siu Kai House, 55-59 San Fung Avenue, Sheung Shui 2671 5030 2672 1533
RFED1T NI 2 ZRER 1 57 IR B35 3 T 5355 S 5457 #
Tai Po Units 53-54 on Level 1, Tai Po Plaza, No.1 On Tai Road, Tai Po 2667 2588 2664 3637
REZSTT D HAEIE55-565 IE1E AT 14-185 BB T 1 X257 i
Tai Wai Shops 1 and 2 on Ground Floor, Grandeur Garden, 2691 1272 2606 1531
14-18 Chik Fai Street, 55-56 Tai Wai Road, Shatin
RKB BT RIKER B35 R AR S8R BX 2135 11 L1 205 i
Tin Shui Wai Shop No. L120, First Floor, Tin Shing Shopping Centre, 2448 9008 2448 9112
Tin Shing Court, 3 Tin Ching Street, Tin Shui Wai
HER #E BMCP Discovery— 12755 4
PP DT
Tseung Kwan O Shop 127, Level 1, MCP Discovery, Tseung Kwan O 2927 2101 2702 2305
Metro City Plaza
8517 ZEATE14-165 5B KNE
Tsuen Wan Dang Fat Mansion, 14-16 Tai Ho Road, Tsuen Wan 2492 8102 2415 0984
HMD1T T P40 & 1552-625% B £ 1EH T 455 R 55 4
Tuen Mun Shops 4 and 5 on G/F, Man Cheung Mansion, 2441 6218 2441 6613
52-62 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road
RS 1T U | 5RO B SR AT 1 5% SR AR B 3 TS 28557 47
Tung Chung Shop 23, G/F, Tung Chung Crescent, 1 Hing Tung Street, 2109 3484 2109 4353
Tung Chung, Lantau Island
THE BT TLERT L ABK TTRARR 162-1685% A 123t TN CoR A8
Yuen Long Castle Shop C, G/F, Len Shing Mansion, 162-168 Castle Peak Road, 2479 4555 2479 4522
Peak Road Yuen Long

262  AHRITAERAF 20225 F 3



DIDMER (HBERT)

LISTS OF BRANCHES (BANKING SUBSIDIARIES)

41T Branch

ik Address

B Tel

BM51T

Macau Branches
REBIT

Main Branch
REDT
Almirante Lacerda
WEST

lao Hon

BENMT
Kin Wa

BFATH1T
La Cite
BT
Mercadores
EFBHT
Nape

HEiM 51T
Palha

BT
Toi San

St SHS1T
Pedro Coutinho

SRS ER57255%
Avenida da Praia Grande, 572

5 LE I £2 B K 5 K 43-BR

Avenida Do Almirante Lacerda, No. 43-B

YR S — 4555 4Pk TEAE (58 —H)i NACHE

Rua Um Bairro lao Hon No. 45, Industrial Yau Seng (Fase I) R/C AC

BIRGIE B IK245 EEE TN 513 NARE

Estrada Marginal da Areia Preta, No. 24, Edificio Kin Wa,
Bloco 13 R/C A

2R H7230-2385 B F R N U « VAR

Rua Central da Areia Preta No. 230-238, R/C U e R/C V
S K H405R 0 N ARE

Rua dos Mercadores No. 40 R/C A

R R A 353635 % FIlH Lt N ORE

Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Asumpgéo, No. 363,

Edificio Hot Line, R/C O

B B 450 TARE

Rua da Palha, No. 4, R/C A

BIERAE+ —EIIR T ER 518 TN CCRE

Rua Onze Bairro Tamagnini Barbosa, S/N,

Jardim Cidade Nova, Bloco 18, R/C CC

=i S #25-D5E & 2 Kt NBEE

Rua de Pedro Coutinho No. 25D, Queens Court, R/C B

(853) 8791 0000

(853) 2831 6191

(853) 2837 8262

(853) 2845 0759

(853) 2822 8380

(853) 2857 2610

(853) 2872 2515

(853) 2837 3762

(853) 2823 8483

(853) 2821 6523

BEEAF

Taipa Branch
RFEHD1T

Prince Flower City

BAFRBAE K FIEH — AR T I

Rua de Evora, Prince Flower City, Lai San Kok, R/C I, Taipa

(853) 2884 2788

BRBREDT

Coloane Branch

BEBDT
Coloane

FRIRE S I HD 755 10 TN DR
Largo do Matadouro No. 7, R/C D, Coloane

(853) 2888 2374
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DITD MR (i EsRTT)

LISTS OF BRANCHES (BANKING SUBSIDIARIES)

41T Branch 3k Address B Tel

RETRT () FRD =

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

T YT 78 4 [ 4 B 38 R R R B% 5016557 R B 100K [E AR 1512

Head Office 15/F, Tower A, Kingkey 100 Building, No. 5016 Shennan Road East, (86-755) 2519 9033

RYNBIE AT
Shenzhen Qianhai
Sub-Branch
BN 1T
Guangzhou

LB T
Shanghai

MEZD1T
Nanchang
HEINT
Zhenjiang
FHLZT

Foshan Sub-Branch

Guiyuan Street, Luohu District, Shenzhen

IR L e D T 2B 2 g B2 50 (JL R ) 4-71R 4512123
Shop 123, Building 4-7, Zhuo Yue Wei Gang (North),

Industrial Road 7, Shekou, Nan Shan District, Shenzhen
EBRAEMNmEFER ARILFK604-25F A ERTAE1 B FI2/E01 £ T
Unit 01, 1/F-2/F, Dah Sing Bank Building, 604-2,

North Renmin Road, Yue Xiu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong
Eami AR R AL 5015 _ E/8E £ E%15/E06, 078 T
Room 06 & 07, 15th Floor, Sinar Mas Plaza,

No. 501 Dong Da Ming Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai

JLPEA A A= 2 L BK 13655 1-2/8

1/F-2/F, 136 Dieshan Road, East Lake District, Nanchang, Jiangxi
TLERA LT R O R R R 595K

59 Jiefang Road, Jing Kou District, Zhenjiang, Jiangsu

BRA LTS REN SRR R RRE R

1BE1114 ~ 12048

Shop 111, Shop 120, No. 1 Bauhinia Building,

Starcrest, 8 Jinyuan Road, Guicheng,

Nanhai District, Foshan, Guangdong

(86-755) 2519 9033

(86-20) 8116 0888

(86-21) 5598 7000

(86-791) 8688 7333

(86-511) 8530 9999

(86-757) 8513 3555
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Dah Sing Bank, Limited X#$R1TERAQ A

26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
BEBEFERKBR248FAF S B A 12612

Telephone &3 : (852) 2507 8866

Facsimile {&HE :(852) 2598 5052

Website &4k © www.dahsing.com

MIX
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